
 

Board of Directors Notice of Meeting 

June 28th, 2018 ~1:00 p.m., Mooretown Sports Complex 
Please contact Ashley if a ride from the SCRCA office is required 

  
Tentative Agenda  

 
1. Chair’s Remarks 
2. Declaration of Pecuniary Interests Minutes 
3. Minutes  
4. General Manager’s Report 

4.1 GM’s Report 
4.2 Updating Authority By-Laws 
4.3  Environmental Registry Commenting Procedure 
4.4 Voluntary Carbon Offset Program 
 4.4.1 CO Council Report on Carbon Capture 
 4.4.2 Voluntary Carbon Offsets Program Discussions Paper 
4.5 Olde Czech Hall 

5.  Chair & Conservation Ontario Report  
 5.1 CO April 16, 2018 Meeting Minutes 
6. Land Management Reports 

6.1 Conservation Lands Update 
7. Water Resources Reports 

7.1 Current Watershed Conditions 
7.2 Aamjiwnaang First Nation Shoreline Naturalization Work 
7.3 Floodplain Mapping Project 
7.4 WECI Projects 

8. Biology Reports 
8.1 Healthy Watersheds Program in Lambton Shores 
8.2 Ontario Trillium Foundation Update 
8.3 Healthy Watersheds Program Update 

9. Conservation Services Report 
 9.1 Spring Tree Planting 
 9.2 Larvicide Program in Lambton County 
10. Planning  
 10.1 Regulations Report 
 10.2 Monthly Planning Report 
 10.3 Appointment of Enforcement Officer under Section 28 of CAA (O.R.      
            171/06) 
 10.4 Drainage Act and Conservation Authority Act Protocol (DART) 
11. Finance Reports 



11.1 Revenue & Expenditure Report to April 30th 
11.2 April and May Disbursements 
11.3 2018 General Levy Update 
11.4 Investments 
11.5 MFIPPA and Power of Duty 

12. Communications  
12.1 Education Report 
12.2 Student Conference 
12.3 Schoolyard Greening 
12.4 Art Walk  
12.5 AOC Report 
12.6 Scholarship Report 

13. In-Camera 
14. New Business 
 14.1 Restricted Acts of Board   
15. Adjournment 

 
 

 
 

Please contact Ashley (call 519-245-3710, 1-866-505-3710 or e-mail 
Afletcher@scrca.on.ca) at the Administration Office by June 25, if you are unable to 

attend. 
 



June 28, 2018 
 

Board of Directors Proposed Resolutions 
 
2. It is requested that each Director declare a conflict of interest at the 

appropriate time, on any item within this agenda in that a Director may 
have pecuniary interest.  

 
3.1 Moved by: Seconded by: 

That the minutes of the Board of Directors meeting, held April 19, 2018, be 
approved as distributed. 

 
4.1 Moved by: Seconded by: 

That the Board of Directors acknowledges the General Manager’s report, 
dated June 15, 2018.  

 
4.2 Moved by: Seconded by: 

That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated June 15, 2018, 
regarding the need to approve and implement new bylaws for the Authority 
based on the updated Conservation Authorities Act and the proposed 
process for review and approval of new bylaws. 
 

4.3 Moved by: Seconded by: 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated June 15, 2018, 
regarding Ontario’s Environmental Registry and approves the proposed 
policy for the submission of comments regarding items posted on the 
Environmental Registry.  
 

4.4 Moved by: Seconded by: 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated June 15, 2018 
regarding Ontario’s proposed Voluntary Carbon Offset Program.  

 
4.5  Moved by:     Seconded by: 
  That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated June 15, 2108 

regarding the Olde Czech Hall and further accepts the three party      
agreement in principle and authorizes the General Manager to sign said    
agreement upon finalization. 
 

5.1  Moved by:  Seconded by: 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges the minutes of Conservation 
Ontario’s Annual General meeting held April 16, 2018 at Black Creek 
Pioneer Village in Toronto. 

 
6.1 Moved by: Seconded by: 

That the Board of Directors acknowledges the Conservation Lands 
Update, dated June 11, 2018 on Conservation Areas, McKeough 
Upstream lands and Foundation properties.  



 
7.1 Moved by: Seconded by: 

That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated June 1, 2018 
on the current watershed conditions and Great Lakes water levels. 

 
7.2 Moved by: Seconded by: 
 That the Board of Directors acknowledges the updated report, dated June 

15, 2018, on McKeough Operating Criteria. 
 
7.3 Moved by:      Seconded by: 

That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated June 15, 2018 
on NDMP funding and directs staff to work with the municipalities to obtain 
the required matching funding and continue to acquire proposals from the 
pre-qualified consulting firms. 

 
7.4 Moved by: Seconded by: 

That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated June 15, 2018 
on the ongoing Water and Erosion Control Infrastructure projects across  
the watershed and further acknowledges the updates on the WECI funding 
for 2018. 
 

8.1         Moved by:                            Seconded by: 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated June 8, 2018 
on the Healthy Watersheds Program “Walk the Watershed” in Lambton 
Shores, and endorses staff efforts to engage private landowners in Best 
Management Practices to improve the surface water quality. 
 

8.2         Moved by:                            Seconded by: 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated June 8, 2018 
on the Ontario Trillium Foundation Grant update. 
 

8.3        Moved by:                            Seconded by: 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated June 8, 2018 
on the Healthy Watersheds Program Update, and endorses staff efforts to 
engage private landowners in Best Management Practices to improve the 
surface water quality and continue to work towards a Healthy Lake Huron 
initiative.  

 
9.1 Moved by: Seconded by: 

That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated June 13, 2018 
regarding spring 2018 tree planting on private, corporate and public lands. 

 
9.2 Moved by: Seconded by: 

That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated June 13, 2018 
regarding the treatment of catch basins with a larvicide in Lambton 
County’s rural and urban areas. 

 



10.1 Moved by: Seconded by: 
That the Board of Directors accepts the Regulations Activity Reports on 
“Development, Interference with Wetlands & Alterations to Shorelines & 
Watercourses” Regulations (Ontario Regulation 171/06), dated June 5, 
2018 and includes the period April 1, 2018 to May 31, 2018, as presented. 

 
10.2 Moved by: Seconded by: 

That the Board of Directors acknowledges the St. Clair Region 
Conservation Authority’s monthly Planning Activity Summary Reports, 
dated June 6, 2018 for April and May 2018. 

 
10.3 Moved by: Seconded by: 

That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated June 12, 2018 
regarding the Appointment of Officer under Section 28 of CAA (O.R. 
171/06).   
 

10.4 Moved by:  Seconded by: 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report, dated June 13, 2018 
on Drainage Act and Conservation Authority Act Protocol (DART) 
Municipal drain activities for April and to date June 2018.  
 

11.1 Moved by: Seconded by: 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges the revenue and expenditure 
report to April 30, 2018, as it relates to the budget. 

 
11.2 Moved by: Seconded by: 

That the Board of Directors approves the April and May 2018 
disbursements as presented in the amount of $905,572.74. 

 
11.3 Moved by: Seconded by: 

That the Board of Directors acknowledges the status report on the 2018 
general levy receipts to May 31, 2018.  

 
11.4 Moved by: Seconded by: 

That the Board of Directors acknowledges the status report on the 
financial investments through May 31, 2018.  

 
11.5   Moved by:     Seconded by: 
  That the Board of Directors acknowledges and accepts the suggested  

revisions to the Delegation of Authority (Power Of Duty), and appoints the 
Director of Finance as the Freedom of Information and Privacy 
Coordinator under the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of 
Individual Privacy Act. 
 
 
 
 



12.1  Moved by:    Seconded by: 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges the education staff report dated 
June 12, 2018, on the Conservation Education Progress Report. 

 
12.2     Moved by:    Seconded by: 
  That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated May 25, 2018       
                      on Conservation Education fees and approve the recommended fee  
                      increase for Fall 2018 programming. 
 
12.3     Moved by:    Seconded by: 

That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report on the Schoolyard 
Greening Program in conjunction with Lambton Public Health dated June 
11, 2018 

 
12.4     Moved by:    Seconded by: 

That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report on Art Walk dated June 
11, 2018 

 
12.5     Moved by:     Seconded by: 

That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report, dated June 11, 2018 
on the St. Clair River Area of Concern. 
 

12.6  Moved by:    Seconded by: 
 That the Board of Directors acknowledges the Scholarship Program report 

dated June 11, 2018. 
 
13.  Moved by:    Seconded by: 
 That the Board of Directors move in-camera at ________________ to 

discuss confidential information with the General Manager remaining.  
 
14. Moved by:    Seconded by: 
 That the Board of Directors rise and report at _________________.  
 
15. New Business 
 
 Moved by: Seconded by: 

 That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated June 27, 2018,   
           regarding Restricted Acts (Section 275) of the Municipal Act, and   
           endorses the proposed 2019 budget development guidelines as presented  
           and further approves a temporary increase in the General Manager’s   
           signing Authority to $500,000 for the period from July 27, 2018 –  
           December 1, 2018. 

 
16. Moved by: Seconded by: 

That the meeting be adjourned. 
 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     1 
 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes   

 
 

Present: Steve Arnold, Chair; Andy Bruziewicz, Vice Chair; Betty Ann MacKinnon, 
Frank Nemcek, Joe Faas, Jeff Wesley, Alan Broad, Kevin Marriott, Gerry Rupke, Dan 
McMillan, John McCharles, Muriel Wright, Larry Gordon, Mike Kelch, Cindy Scholten, 
Dave Brewer, Steve Miller, Norm Giffen, Tony Bruinink, Jerry Westgate  
 
Staff Present: Brian McDougall, General Manager; Kevan Baker, Director of Lands; Erin 
Carroll, Manager of Biology; Dallas Cundick, Environmental Planner/ Regulations 
Officer; Nicole Drumm, Communication Technician; Chris Durand, IT/GIS Coordinator; 
Ashley Fletcher, Administrative Assistant/ Board Coordinator; Melissa Gill, Conservation 
Education/ Community Partnership Technician; Patty Hayman, Director of Planning; 
Sharon Nethercott, Conservation Education Coordinator; Tim Payne, Forest 
Management Specialist; Girish Sankar, Manager of Water Resources; Steve Shaw, 
Manager of Conservation Services 
 
Guests Present: Jenna Allain, Source Water Protection Coordinator 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and requested that each Director declare 
a conflict of interest at the appropriate time, on any item within this agenda in that a 
Director may have pecuniary interest. 
 

• At our Annual General meeting in February, the election of our Vice Chair for 
2018 was conducted by a Board appointed Chair, via secret ballot, and was 
observed and tabulated by Board appointed scrutineers – all aspects of which 
follows accepted election procedures 

• The first vote for Vice Chair resulted in a tie vote 
• The second vote for Vice Chair also resulted in a tie vote 
• Unfortunately, I was not able to confirm any procedures outlined in the Authority 

Bylaws for such a situation 
• Without assurance that all procedures were being adhered to, the election was 

deferred to the April Board meeting in order to clarify procedures for an election 
in the event of a tie 

• A review of the Authority’s Bylaws found no reference to tie votes or procedures 
to proceed beyond a tie vote 

Date: April 19, 2018 Time: 10:00 am 
St. Clair Conservation Authority Administrative Office 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     2 
 

• A review of the Conservation Authorities Act provided leave the following 
highlights of interest 

o At the first meeting held in each year or at such other meeting as may be 
specified by the authority’s by-laws, the authority shall appoint a chair and 
one or more vice-chairs from among the members of the authority 

o Each member of an authority is entitled to one vote 
• Historically, failing to have specific procedures to follow, the Authority Board has 

turned to Robert’s Rules of Order for procedural direction 
• The following is taken from ROBERT’S RULES FOR CONDUCTING 

ELECTIONS - April 18, 2016 - C. Alan Jennings, PRP, PRP 
o Elections are decided by majority vote unless your bylaws provide 

differently 
o In the case of a ballot election, an election isn’t complete until the position 

is filled, and a position is not considered filled until a candidate receives 
the threshold number of votes required for election 

o In most cases, the threshold is a majority of the votes cast 
o If you have only two candidates and the vote is a tie, you repeat the 

balloting until one candidate receives a majority 
o Should there be a tie vote between two candidates, new ballots will be 

distributed and a second vote held 
o Should there still be a tie after the second ballot a third vote shall be held  
o Should there be a tie after the third vote, the election of the office shall be 

decided by lot drawn by the Chief Administrative Officer or designate 
• With the changes to the Conservation Authorities Act, one of the requirements of 

each Authority is to update the Authority Bylaws, approve and implement these 
updated bylaws within one year (December 17, 2018)  

 
BD-18-27 
Scholten-Bruinink 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledge the report dated March 29, 2018, and 
further that the Board of Directors proceed with the election of the Vice Chair for 
2018 as outlined in Robert’s Rules For Conducting Elections and further that 
these election procedures be incorporated into the update of the Authority’s 
bylaws to be completed in 2018.” 
    CARRIED 
 
 
 
 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     3 
 

BD-18-28 
Marriott-Wesley 
“That Nicole Drumm and Chris Durand be appointed as scrutineers for the 
election of Vice Chair of the St. Clair Region Conservation Authority Board of 
Directors for 2018.” 
    CARRIED 
 
Andy Bruziewicz was elected Vice Chair for 2018. 
 
BD-18-29 
Kelch-Wright 
“That the ballots be destroyed.” 
    CARRIED 
 
The Nominating Committee Report was presented. One vacancy on the Executive 
Committee was identified following the election of the Vice Chair. Mike Kelch was 
nominated by Steve Arnold.  
 
BD-18-30 
Wesley-McMillan 
“That the St. Clair Region Conservation Authority adopts the revised 2018 
Nominating Committee’s Report.”  
    CARRIED 
 
Minutes of the February 22, 2018 meeting were reviewed. 
 
BD-18-31 
McCharles-Miller 
“That the minutes of the Board of Directors meeting, held February 22, 2018, be 
approved as distributed.” 
    CARRIED 
 
Canoe Race 

• It is with regret that the Annual Sydenham River Canoe Race be cancelled for 
2018.  

• Due to localized flooding, the start and finish sites will not be useable in time for 
the event.   

 
South West Woodlot Association 

• The Lambton County Woodlot Owners Association was established by a group of 
resident woodlot owners in 1994  



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     4 
 

• The Association’s fundamental purpose continues to be to encourage 
sustainable forest practices by helping landowners acquire the necessary skills 
and knowledge to undertake these practices 

• In promoting woodlots and their importance, the group holds educational events 
throughout the year (visits to managed and unmanaged woodlots, tree-planting 
demonstrations, sawmill tours, and an annual bus tour) 

• In 2016 the Lambton Chapter of the Ontario Woodlot Owners Association 
changed their name to South West Woodlot Association 

• Since its inception, the Authority has provided a Technical Advisor to the group 
• Initially, Donald Craig was the appointed advisor, and in his retirement Donald 

continues to be involved in the organization 
• In 2009, Tim Payne was appointed as Technical Advisor to the group and he is 

prepared to continue in this role   
 

Staff Changes 
• Patty Hayman has been the Director of Planning with SCRCA since 1989 
• Prior to joining SCRCA, Patty had also worked at Kettle Creek and Upper 

Thames River Conservation Authorities 
• Patty will be retiring on May 25th after almost 30 years of service to the 

organization 
• Many thanks to Patty for her passion for planning and the watershed and all our 

best wishes as she moves into the next chapter of her life 
• Dallas Cundick will assume responsibility for the Planning department as 

Manager of Planning as of May 1st  
• As with any senior staff departure, a review of the organization structure is 

ongoing to ensure that all options are reviewed for efficiency and effectiveness 
 

Innovative Farmer’s Board 
• Invitation to Jessica Van Zwol, Healthy Watershed Specialist to sit on the board 

of directors as a representative of the Conservation Authorities. 
 
BD-18-32 
Nemcek-Gordon 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the General Manager’s report, dated 
April 9, 2018.” 
    CARRIED 
 
It was recommended that Tim Payne be appointed to continue as Technical Advisor to 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     5 
 

the Association. 
 
BD-18-33 
McMillan-Marriott 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the correspondence from the 
Southwest Woodlot Owners Association dated March 29, 2018, and further that 
Tim Payne be appointed to continue as Technical Advisors to the Association.” 
    CARRIED 
 

• Black Creek Cemetery is located adjacent one of the upstream properties of the 
McKeough Dam on the south side of Stanley Line just east of Pretty Road 

• The Cemetery Board is dealing space issues and has requested that the 
Authority review any options for the transfer of a small portion of land to the 
cemetery 

• The Foundation has successfully worked with the Cemetery Board in the past to 
plant trees on and around the cemetery 

• The map below outlines the options that staff have reviewed based on this 
request 

• The Lang Property, known as Property 95, was purchase in 1983 
• The north portion of the farm, 47 acres, is lease to an agricultural tenant through 

2020 
 
Strategic Objectives(s): 

• Goal 3 of the Strategic Plan states – Provide recreation and education 
opportunities for the public to enjoy and learn from our natural environment – and 
further highlights community conservation and recognition 

• Goal 4 of the Strategic Plan states – Build a stronger and more valued 
organization through business excellence 

 
Financial Impact: 

• The financial impact of the transfer would be the ongoing loss of agricultural 
rental revenue for the 0.5 acres requested 

• Current rental rate for the property is $190 per acre 
• Therefore, the impact would be the loss of $95.00 annually 
• In the long term, the value of the property could be reduced by $5,000 - $10,000  

 
BD-18-34 
Bruziewicz-Kelch 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report, dated April 6, 2018, 
regarding the request from Black Creek Cemetery for a donation of land and 
further that the one half acre of land be transfer to the Cemetery at their cost.”  
    CARRIED 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     6 
 

A report regarding the locations of past and future Annual General Meetings was 
presented. Two errors were identified and corrected and two additional sites were 
added to the list. 
 
BD-18-35 
Bruinink-Wright 
“That the Board of Directors approves the additions, and revisions to the 
schedule of meeting locations for the Conservation Authority’s Annual General 
Meeting and adopts the list as a preferred rotation for subsequent years.” 
    CARRIED 
 
A verbal report of the Conservation Ontario Annual General Meeting held on April 16, 
2018 was given by Brian McDougall, General Manager. 
 
A new template regarding by-laws was developed and requires completion by 
December of 2018. SCRCA Staff will present a draft copy for review at the September 
board meeting. An edited version will be presented in November with the final copy 
submitted for approval in December, 2018. 
 
The Conservation Ontario 2018 Board of Directors welcomed a new Chair and Vice 
Chair: 

• Chair: Don MacIver, Credit Valley Conservation 
• Vice Chair: Mark Burnham, Mississippi Valley CA 
• Vice Chair: Lin Gibson, Conservation Sudbury 

Carbon offsets program for Ontario is currently being developed. Comments have been 
made requesting that the farm community be included within this program. 

BD-18-36 
Scholten-Gordon 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the verbal report of Conservation 
Ontario’s Annual General meeting held April 16, 2018 at Black Creek Pioneer 
Village in Toronto as well as Queen’s Park Day April 17, 2018.” 
    CARRIED  
 
Business Arising from last meeting: 
 
Lambton Children’s Safety Village 

• Update on self-generated Hydro options contained within handout report 
 

2017 Audited Financial Statements 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     7 
 

• Update on Forestry account of $11,000 (i.e. what this is, what restrictions are on 
this account)  

• Update to be provided at June 28, 2018 Board meeting  
 

Highland Glen 
• Directors request that signage is posted near boat launch reminding users to pay 

and outlining how parking fees have allowed for improvements. This may also 
include future plans and the cost of those jobs.  

• Appropriate signage has been completed and will be installed this month. 
• Verbal update to be provided at Board meeting 

 
BD-18-37 
Miller-Gordon 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the updates on business arising from 
the February 22, 2018 meeting.” 
    CARRIED 
 
Conservation Areas: 

• The Conservation Authority owns 15 conservation areas and manages 17 
properties for the Foundation 

• Of those 15 conservation areas, 6 are managed by the local municipality and 9 
are operated by the Conservation Authority 

• Of these 9, 3 conservation areas are regional campgrounds which attract 
campers from primarily Southwestern Ontario 

• Our three regional campgrounds have over 500 campsites and 420 seasonal 
campers and are financial self sufficient 

• Profits obtained from our campgrounds are used to offset capital improvements 
• The camping season in 2018 runs from Friday, April 27 to Thanksgiving Day 

Warwick Conservation Area 
• Hydro service, lights and a new ag tuff ceiling have been installed in the storage 

shed 
• The 9 hole mini golf course to be upgraded with new carpet and 4 x 4 lumber 
• Roads to be upgraded with gravel 
• All light fixtures and exterior lighting have been upgraded with LED bulbs and 

new fixtures 
• A new laundry shed has been constructed and installed at the main washroom 

building 
 
L.C. Henderson Conservation Area 

• Playground equipment surfacing to be upgraded with engineered wood chips and 
subsurface drainage  



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     8 
 

• Roads to be upgraded with gravel 
• Trailer pads to be installed on 5 campsites in the Towerview camping area 
• All light fixtures and exterior lighting to be upgraded with LED bulbs and new 

fixtures 
• A catch basin and subsurface tile drainage to be installed  
• A new solar pole light to be installed in the un-serviced camping area 
• 36 stumps have been removed and the area leveled with topsoil 

 
A.W. Campbell Conservation Area 

• The concrete sidewalk in front of the pool washrooms to be upgraded 
• Improvements to be made to the main entrance roadway between the river 

crossing and the main parking lot (fall 2018) 
• A hydro panel to be upgraded in the main campground area 
• Roads to be upgraded with gravel 
• Playground equipment surfacing to be upgraded with engineered wood chips and 

subsurface drainage (Foundation Funded) 
• The pavilion roof has been replaced with steel 
• All light fixtures and exterior lighting have been upgraded with LED bulbs and 

new fixtures 
• The Maple Syrup Festival was a success this year with over 1,350 people 

attending 
 
Highland Glen Conservation Area: 

• Approximately 60ft of new walkway along the inside of the boat ramp seawall to 
be installed 

• Welding repairs will be completed on a section of top railing and joints on one of 
the outer seawalls 

Other Lands Activities: 
• 12 board walk sections have been constructed and will be placed along 

conservation area trails (funded by Foundation) 
• Conservation Lands staff will be maintaining the Lambton County CN rail trail 

between Camlachie and Brights Grove; maintenance will include trail surface 
grading, grass cutting and tree removal and planting. 

• Sub-surface drainage and soil erosion works are planned for Property 82 on the 
McKeough Upstream lands 

• Forest management reviews and inventories will be carried out on the Evoy and 
Reid Properties 

• Staff have repaired or repositioned many of the boardwalks and bridges 
damaged by spring floods (Strathroy Conservation Area) 

• 13 stumps have been removed from along the access roadway at CJ McEwen 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     9 
 

• McLean Property (Foundation) – drainage pump shaft has been upgraded in the 
field pump house 

• Bannerstone (Foundation) – property access gates and signage to be install; a 
small parking area to be established off of Kent Bridge Line 

• Over the winter we have accepted campsite reservations (overnight camping 
only) at the administration office for our 3 regional campgrounds; as of March 31st  
839 reservations have been taken, collecting $109,000.00; as compared to 750 
reservations and $96,649.00.00 collected in 2017 (HST adjusted) 

BD-18-38 
Nemcek-McMillan 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the Conservation Lands Update dated 
April 7, 2018, outlining development and management activities on Conservation 
Areas, McKeough, Lambton County and Foundation Lands.” 
    CARRIED 
 
Timeline 

• August 2017 – Met with LCSV representatives to discuss overall concept 
• September 2017 – Overall concept and basic plan presented to the Board of 

Directors – Board acknowledge report and directed staff to report back on 
outlined issues – Issues identified include: power supply, septic services, impacts 
to existing programming (camping, education, lands) 

• December 2017 – Updated concept plan shown to Board and verbal report by 
GM 

• February 2018 – Update provided to Executive Committee of Board of Directors 
• February 2018 – Hydro One advises that power supply to the proposed 

development based on the available concept plan will cost between $35,000 - 
$50,000 to make power available to the conceptually proposed development 

• February 2018 – Updated the Board of Directors on the capital costs for power 
supply, advised them of consultant undertaking septic servicing review, concerns 
brought forward by staff regarding impacts on existing programs and additional 
information will be provided in April 

 
Comments 

• The Board of Directors has acknowledged that we are reviewing the concept of 
having the LCSV developed at LC Henderson CA and they have been updated 
on the status of that review three times 

• At this time, the Board of Directors have not approved the construction of LCSV 
at LC Henderson CA, endorsed the signing of an operating agreement or an 
implementation plan for the development 

 
 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     10 
 

Issues 
• Capital costs to have hydro service improved to have available power for the 

proposed work - $50,000 
• The report on the septic services is expected to be completed this week and will 

be provided to the Board on April 19th  
• Revenues generated from camping cover all operating and maintenance costs, 

as well as development and staff – no “tax dollars” (municipal levy) are provided 
to support LC Henderson CA 

• Conservation Education programs generate over 50% of their budget from 
donations and fees 

• Any impacts to these programs that result in financial losses (reduced camping 
use, fewer student programs) could have a direct impact on staff in these 
program areas  

• Based on the updated concept plan shared with the LCSV Committee (below), 
Authority staff have identified several points of concern that could impact existing 
programming:  

 
• Education Program potential impacts 

o Loss of useable space – major impacts on 7 existing education programs 
o Noise and visual distractions – it can be difficult to maintain children’s 

attention without the presence of other stimuli, especially when you are 
helping them to connect with the sites, sounds and feeling of natural areas 

o Congestion – at lunch time most days and during high wind days (when 
we do not use forested areas), space can be an issue based on the 
current use - the proposed additional classroom would help relieve some 
of this concern but with very limited open space, twice the number of 
children will reduce the quality of the experience of all programs and 
increases the risks of other issues 

o Current programs are fully booked – one of the benefits of the LCSV was 
identified as a draw for students to Authority Education programs – with 
fully booked programs there can be little impact 

o Parking – very often parents accompanying classes drive separately to the 
site – at times the existing parking lot does not meet demand (especially 
with younger classes) – with space already at a premium, any loss to 
parking is unreasonable, therefore additional classes will simply increase 
parking issues 

o Construction 
• Campground potential impacts 

o Noise and visual distractions – campers in our campgrounds are seeking 
a quiet and peaceful natural setting for their camping experience – 3 of the 
4 camping areas are located in close proximity to the proposed village 
location 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     11 
 

o Mixed messaging – issues, in the past, have resulted in battery powered 
vehicles (child sized) are not permitted at Authority campgrounds due to 
noise issues – the LCSV is expected to employ these vehicles as part of 
their programmes 

o Open Space Congestion – the campground operates from May 1 – 
Thanksgiving – currently no education programming is schedule during 
July and August, providing opportunities for campers to use open areas – 
any LSCV programs in the summer months could have an impact 

o Washroom Size and Maintenance – issues of use or overuse of washroom 
facilities or the Authority ability to maintain the facilities to the desired 
standard may be an issue that could impact camper satisfaction 

o  Construction 
• In order to reduce these impacts, a revised concept plan has been drafted for 

internal review (below)  
• Authority staff have confirmed that the revision does negate some of the issues, 

but several significant issues remain  
o Potential loss of revenue, noise issues, tree preservation, septic issues, 

construction disruption and agreement on annual costs sharing continue 
to be issues identified from the Camping program 

o Changes to the concept plan do move and concentrate the issues, but do 
not eliminate them – several education programs use the area of the 
existing mini-golf course and the proximity to the education centre will 
continue to make student focus an issue – the mini-golf area has also be 
an important area for shade as classes often use this as a cool down area 
out of the direct sunlight 

o As well, the mini-golf course has recently undergone a facelift with 
material costs of almost $5,000 

• This revised concept plan has not been reviewed with LCSV representatives and 
may not be satisfactory for their needs or desires 

 
The Board of Directors held discussion regarding the possible outcomes, including: 

• How the LCSV fits in with SCRCA’s mandate with regards to education 
• Competition to and distraction from current educational programs 
• Impact on camper experience and potential loss of revenue 
• Loss of Investments on improving the LC Henderson grounds (i.e. mini put, tree 

plantings) 
• Accessibility and visibility of the location  
• Congestion and overpopulation of the area 
• Current hydro and septic capacity 

 
 
 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     12 
 

Recorded Vote re BD-18-39 
Director For Against 

Brewer, Diane  x 
Broad, Alan  x 

Bruinink, Tony  x 
Bruziewicz, Andy x  

Faas, Joe x  
Giffen, Norm x  
Gordon, Larry x  
Kelch, Mike x  

MacKinnon, Betty Ann  x 
Marriott, Kevin  x 

McCharles, John  x 
McMillan, Dan x  
Miller, Steve  x 

Nemcek, Frank  x 
Rupke, Gerry  x 

Scholten, Cindy x  
Wesley, Jeff x  

Westgate, Jerry  x 
Wright, Muriel x  
Arnold, Steve  x 

Totals 9 11 
 
BD-18-39 
Kelch-Scholten 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated, April 6, 2018, 
regarding proposed Lambton Children’s Safety Village and further advises the 
Lambton Children’s Safety Village Committee that the proposed development will 
impact the existing programs at LC Henderson CA and therefore that Safety 
Village cannot be located at this location.” 
    LOST 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     13 
 

Recorded Vote re BD-18-40 
Director For Against 

Brewer, Diane x  
Broad, Alan x  

Bruinink, Tony x  
Bruziewicz, Andy  x 

Faas, Joe x  
Giffen, Norm x  
Gordon, Larry x  
Kelch, Mike  x 

MacKinnon, Betty Ann x  
Marriott, Kevin x  

McCharles, John x  
McMillan, Dan x  
Miller, Steve x  

Nemcek, Frank x  
Rupke, Gerry x  

Scholten, Cindy  x 
Wesley, Jeff x  

Westgate, Jerry x  
Wright, Muriel x  
Arnold, Steve x  

Totals 17 3 
 
BD-18-40 
Rupke-Broad 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated, April 6, 2018, 
regarding proposed Lambton Children’s Safety Village and further directs staff to 
advise the Lambton Children’s Safety Village Committee of the issues regarding 
the proposed development at LC Henderson Conservation Area and other 
Conservation Areas and negotiate a revised plan that alleviates impacts on the 
Authority programs for review and approval of the Board of Directors. 
    CARRIED 
 
• Current flow numbers have stabilized into March following the early freshet and rain 

event in the third week of February which resulted in the operation of the McKeough 
Floodway. With no significant additional rain, watercourses were flowing at normal 
seasonal levels. Some ice conditions persisted due to cooler temperatures throughout 
the March but have now dissipated. Snowfall was also present due to lake effect 
conditions however; there were no considerable accumulations, which have not had 
any impact on flow conditions. 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     14 
 

• Wallaceburg levels have continued to be consistent with normal conditions with the 
exception the February flood event and a smaller event in the first week of April. The 
Top of Bank level has been added for comparison with actual level.     

 
Precipitation 
• Regional precipitation numbers for the first quarter are at or above average (110.6%) 

for most stations with the exception of the upper reaches of the watershed at (99.6%). 
This quarterly average was due to higher than normal precipitation in February. This 
also increased six month figures (108.6%) but yearly numbers remain consistent with 
normal (98.5%)  

 
Snow Conditions  
• Most snowpack in SW Ontario was reduced in March but with overall lower 

temperatures, some snowfall was evident but with little or no notable accumulations   
• As expected snowpack continues to be still in place in northern areas of the province. 

The presence of snow in these areas may continue to contribute to anticipated higher 
lake levels. 

 
Flood Threat 
Consistent but cooler weather patterns into March reduced the flood threat and there were 
no significant events during the month. Spring rainfall events will, as in all years have 
potential for flood events when significant rainfall is experienced. Rain and wind events 
in the first part of April did not create any watershed based flooding however, significant 
wind coupled with high lake levels has resulted in shoreline surge conditions which are 
now being monitored. The Great Lakes online surge modelling system has been 
developed by the Provincial Surface Water Monitoring Centre as a result of the continued 
impact of high water levels and extreme wind conditions. These models and forecasting 
are now being utilized by those Conservation Authorities with shorelines to better predict 
and provide appropriate warning protocols and messaging. We will continue to monitor 
conditions and issue bulletins as needed.  
 
Forecasted Weather Conditions 
• Overall - Weather conditions into Spring show a relatively strong La Nina influence. 
• Long range - Model showing movement towards neutral effect, but remaining below 

neutral in La Nina conditions 
 
April - Average to below average temperatures in southwestern Ontario. Precipitation 
outlook is within seasonal conditions. 
 
May - While the rest of Ontario is moving to above seasonal temperatures and enjoying 
a traditional spring, our region is forecasted to remain in the seasonal temperature range.  
Precipitation is anticipated to be seasonal to slightly below seasonal levels 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     15 
 

 
June - Below seasonal temperatures with precipitation conditions drier than normal 
 
Summer - By July, our region is modelled at warmer than normal temperatures with 
precipitation modelled to be seasonal to drier than normal. Years identified as being 
similar based on modelling include 2006 and 2013.  
 
Great Lakes Levels 
The monthly comparison for February 2018 (current available data) indicates that Lake 
Huron levels higher again (26cm) compared to February 2017 suggesting a continued 
higher trend in local lake levels. Numbers also continue to increase above the 10-year 
average for Lake Huron by 67cm. Lake St. Clair levels are higher than last year (10cm) 
52cm above the 10 year average. Both Lake Huron and Lake St. Clair current values 
(February) continue to remain above the average for the entire period of record. 
 
BD-18-41 
Bruziewicz-Miller 
 “That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated April 5, 2018 on the 
current watershed conditions and Great Lakes water levels.” 
    CARRIED 
 

• 2018- 2019 Projects have been submitted on February 12, 2018 
• All applications will be reviewed by a committee of provincial and Conservation 

Authority staff representatives in March and will be ranked in comparison to all 
submitted projects from across the Province 

• List of approved projects is anticipated in May or early June  
• List of WECI projects for 2018 - 2019 is outlined below 

Structure Project 
Name Description of Work 

Total 
Project 
Cost ($) 

Grant 
Requested 

 ($) 

Courtright 
Park 

Courtright Park 
Shoreline 
Restoration – 
Phase 2 

Shoreline work at 
Courtright Park along St. 
Clair River using 
armourstone and riprap. 

$700,000 $350,000 

Sarnia 
Shoreline 
Protection 

Shoreline Repair 
(Helen and 
Kenwick St) 
Phase 2 

Carry out construction of 
Phase 1 from the 
recommendation of 
engineering study. 

$800,000 $400,000 

Head Street/ 
Coldstream 
Dams 

Decommissioning 
Study 

Study to consider 
decommissioning of the $120,000 $60,000 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     16 
 

 
Courtright Waterfront Restoration – Phase 1 
 

• A budget of $720,000 was confirmed for the project (WECI $350,000; St. Clair 
Township - $350,000, Great Lakes Community Guardian fund $20,000) 

• Construction work started last week of January, 2018 by Bre-Ex Construction Inc. 
• As of April 5, 2018, 49 working days have been completed of the project under 

the contract (a working day is any day during which the conditions permit the 
contractor to be able to undertake work to greater than 60 percent of capacity). 

• All in-water works were completed before March 30, 2018. 
• 2 outfalls were located and needed repair. This was not identified in the contract. 
• Approximately 130 meters of Shoreline work has been completed as of today. 
• Due to timeline restrictions and higher cost provided by Bre-Ex, SCRCA 

recommended that no additional work be completed. 
• Minor restoration and repair work is on-going and the crew will be completing 

restoration in May, 2018.  
• This is the first phase of construction at Courtright Park. 
• Pictures below is taken on April 5th looking south and north along the Courtright 

park. 
 
Sarnia Shoreline Protection – Phase 1 
 

• A budget of $700,000 has been confirmed for the project (WECI $350,000; City 
of Sarnia $350,000 

• Construction work was completed on March 13, 2018. 
• Construction crew faced a number of weather related challenges, but were 

extremely dedicated to complete the project. 
• 30 working days was provided for completion of the project under the contract 

Head street and 
Coldstream dams 

W. Darcy 
McKeough 
Dam 

Equipment 
Painting 

Paint equipment and 
Waterproofing the 
gatehouse building 

$150,000 $75,000 

ARDA Dyke Hazard Tree 
Removal 

Remove trees and shrubs 
along the dyke that pose 
stability issues to the dyke 

$24,000 $12,000 

All 
Structures 

Engineering 
Inspection 

Engineering inspection 
and reporting to review 
structural integrity and 
required maintenance of 
all authority owned dams 

$60,000 $30,000 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     17 
 

• Restoration work planned for May, 2018. 
• Due to half load restrictions, a pile of armour stone is left on site and will be 

placed in May, 2018 when the crew returns in May, 2018. 
• This is the first phase of construction for Helen avenue to Kenwick park shoreline 

restoration 
 
BD-18-44 
Scholten-Rupke 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated April 6, 2018 on 
Water and Erosion Control Infrastructure Projects and approves the projects 
submitted for funding in 2018-2019 and further will assist staff in obtaining 
matching funds, where required, to support these projects upon confirmation of 
funding approval.”  
    CARRIED 
Factsheets 
New factsheets are now available on our website. The factsheets include information on 
how to make early season cover crop planting work and variable rate nutrient 
application. Both factsheets include case studies on projects we have completed with 
landowners in our watershed.  
 
Educational Signs at Demonstration Farms 
Two educational roadside signs are set to be installed in the coming weeks. The signs 
explain and showcase Agricultural Best Management Practices at demonstration sites 
across our watershed. A variable rate nutrient application sign will be installed near 
Dresden and an interseeding cover crops sign will be installed near Oil Springs.  
Healthy Lake Huron Spring Newsletter  
Our Healthy Lake Huron Spring 2018 Newsletter will be mailed to over 300 rural 
properties in Lambton Shores. The newsletter features articles which promote the use 
of cover crops to improve soil health, reduce erosion and improve water quality. Our 
upcoming Biostrips Workshop and cover crop grant program are also higlighted.  
 
Soil Health Conference  
Our Soil Health Conference in Chatham was extremely successful! Over 185 producers, 
attended the event, majority of professions broke down into: 75% cash crop producers, 
33% vegetable producers, 26% ag business, 22% livestock producers, 19% Certified 
Crop Advisors (CCA), as well as organic producers, government staff and conservation 
organizations. 
 
Speakers included Frank Gibbs (formerly of USDA), Dale Cowan (International CCA of 
the Year), Dr. Wendy Taheri, Dr. David Lobb, Dr. Ivan O’Halloran and Anne Verhallen, 
all of whom spoke about phosphorus, soil health, economics of soil loss, soil 
microorganisms and 4R Nutrient Management. Additionally, 15 local farmers spoke on 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     18 
 

informal discussion panels to share their experiences with improving soil health and 
reducing soil erosion.  
 
An important message from the conference was to remember that there is no single 
answer to improving soil health and nutrient management – it takes a combination of 
BMPs and that the combination will change from farm-to-farm and even year-to-year.  
 
Feedback comments included the following: 
 
“Thank you for organizing such a great meeting. Good caliber of guest speakers with 
great take home messages. It was educational with lots to think about. Hope you can do 
this again” 

 
“Just wanted to say - great job. Thank you for the opportunity to participate. I really 
enjoyed the mix of speakers and loved hearing the farmers, especially the Soil Network 
participants present.” 

 
“The conference was excellent, speakers, location, logistics and all. The discussions 
and information exchanged was very timely. Your team from SCRCA all deserve a pat 
on the back.” 

 
Survey results included the following: 

- 97% of attendees found that the conference demonstrated the value of 
implementing agricultural BMPs 

- 100% of attendees found that the information provided was useful, new and 
increased their knowledge  

- Most attendees indicated cost limits the adoption of BMPs followed by limited 
experience, risk (perceived or actual) and access to information  

- 75% of respondents have at least 3 crops in their rotation  
- 74% of respondents use cover crops 
- 63% of respondents practice regular soil testing 
- 58% of respondents practice reduced tillage 
- 37% of respondents practice 4R Nutrient Stewardship  
- Suggested for future discussion topics: cover crops, agricultural soil biology, 

biostrips/planting green and reducing compaction  
 
BD-18-45 
Kelch-Scholten 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated April 6, 2018 on the 
Healthy Watersheds Program.” 
    CARRIED 
 
 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     19 
 

Conservation Authorities (CAs) regulate activities that change, divert, or interfere in any 
way with the existing channel of a river, creek, stream or watercourse, or that interfere 
with wetlands. Municipal drains are generally watercourses as defined under the CA Act 
and are therefore regulated by CAs.    
 
Staff help member municipalities meet regulatory requirements by issuing Standard 
Compliance Requirements (SCRs) as per the Drainage Act and Conservation 
Authorities Act (DART) Protocol and Letters of Review (LoR) for projects where DART 
does not apply (Drainage Act, S. 4: Petition Drains and S. 78: Improvements). Staff also 
meet with Drainage Superintendents on proposed projects and conduct site visits where 
necessary. If drain repair and maintenance activities are carried out (with or without 
permission) and result in impact on regulated areas with respect to the Conservation 
Authority’s responsibilities under the Conservation Authorities Act, the Conservation 
Authority could be held liable for not under taking or enforcing its regulatory authority.  
 
SCRs and LoRs outline project specific sediment and erosion control measures for all 
projects.  Upstream and downstream flooding are considered where appropriate (e.g., 
culverts and enclosures) and advice is incorporated into review letters and SCRs. 
Interference with wetlands is discouraged by negotiating project specific mitigations. St. 
Clair Conservation staff work with municipalities to try to find solutions that meet the 
requirements of both the Drainage Act and the Conservation Authorities Act.  
 
On-site Meetings 
In 2017 SCRCA staff started to attend all on-site meetings held by the Municipalities for 
drainage projects. By doing this staff are able to bring forth any concerns regarding the 
proposed project early which can help to prevent hold ups later in the process. This also 
allows SCRCA to develop and maintain greater relationships with our Drainage 
Superintendents.  Approximately 30 on-site meeting were attended by staff in 
2017.Some concerns that are brought up include locations of wetlands and significant 
features. The SCRCA has policy in place with regards to wetlands which provides 
mitigations and advice for work within and around wetlands.  
 
(Zsoldos Drain) 
A new municipal drain is proposed in geographic Zone Township, Chatham Kent. The 
location of the proposed drainage works is within/adjacent portions of the Skunks 
Misery Provincially Significant Wetland Complex.  The new drainage works follow a 
clearcut of portions of this woodland and wetland.    Note: a Woodland Conservation or 
Tree cutting bylaw does not exist in Chatham Kent.  SCRCA biology staff notified (in 
writing) CK drainage staff and consultant Spriet Associates early in the proposed 
drainage process of the PSW presence.  The PSW is regulated by the SCRCA Ontario 
Regulation 171/06 “Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to 
Shorelines and Watercourses”.  CK has proceeded with drainage nevertheless and the 
report has received 3rd reading. 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     20 
 

To complicate matters, the woodland and wetland is situated in both the SCRCA 
watershed and LTVCA watershed, with proposed drainage wholly outletting to SCRCA 
upper watershed tributaries. 
 
SCRCA is working with LTVCA to address the violation and interference with the 
wetland caused by the clearcut. A separate but related issue is the proposed drainage 
works (Drainage Act) that as proposed could negatively impact the wetland.   
 
Authority staff are proud of the success in working with municipalities in protecting the 
remaining wetlands in the watershed. Through this cooperation, SCRCA has generally 
not required written permission for new drainage works via Ontario Regulation 171/06 
and has simply screened and provided general advice if appropriate to ensure wetlands 
are protected. However, with the concerns with the proposed works adjacent the PSW 
and the absence of any mention of the PSW in the drainage report, the  SCRCA will 
require that C-K obtain formal written permission under SCRCA Regulation 171/06 to 
pursue the Zsoldos municipal drainage works.  Adherence to the SCRCA Wetland 
Policies under Section 28 will be required. 
 
A year in review – 2017 
2017 saw a total of 109 files submitted to SCRCA for review. 63 were reviewed under 
the DART protocol and received SCR permissions. 45 were reviewed by staff and 
received LoRs as the works were outside of those specified under the DART protocol. 

 
 
BD-18-46 
Bruinink-Miller 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges and concurs with the report dated 
March 27, 2018 summarizing 2017 Municipal Drain Review activities including 
action on the proposed new Zsoldos municipal drain.” 
    CARRIED 
 

Categories of Drain Review January 
- 

April 2016 

May 
- 

August 2016 

September 
- 

December 2016 
Totals 

DART Protocol – SCR issued 17 24 22 109 
Letter of Review Issued 16 18 11 
Other Types of Files (e.g., 
Environmental Assessment, 
sign-off, Assessment 
changes) 

0 0 1 

Total Files  33 42 34 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     21 
 

Every five years conservation authorities release watershed report cards to help 
watershed residents, agency staff and conservation authority directors understand 
environmental health on a watershed basis. Report cards provide a ‘check-up’ on the 
health of many of Ontario’s Watersheds.  A comparison of SCRCA’s watershed 
conditions with neighbouring watersheds can be found at http://watershedcheckup.ca/ 

St. Clair Region Conservation Authority cards assess and grade surface water quality 
and forest conditions in 14 sub-watersheds. The Report Cards are compiled every 5 
years therefore the 2018 Report Card is based off data collected from 2011-2015.  Both 
the 2013 and 2018 Report Cards use the guidelines and updated grading system 
recommended by Conservation Ontario in 2011.  

Surface water quality indicators include Total Phosphorus, benthic invertebrates, and 
bacteria (E. coli). Forest condition indicators include the percent forest cover, percent 
forest interior, and the percent of the riparian zone that is forested. Each of these 
indicators are graded with specific parameters and these grades have been defined 
from A to F (Excellent to Very Poor). The Report Card analysis is based on water quality 
data collected by St. Clair Conservation staff, and GIS mapping. The water quality 
information is collected at individual sites that are selected to reflect the subject 
watershed. The forest evaluation has been completed at a landscape level from 
analysis of aerial photographs.  

Results for this year’s Report Card resulted in surface water quality grades for the St. 
Clair Region ranging from C to D. Overall, the Middle East Sydenham, Lower East 
Sydenham, Lower North Sydenham and Lambton Shores Tributaries scored C grades 
while the remaining sub-watersheds scored D grades. Forest condition grades ranged 
from C to F; with a C grade in Lambton Shores Tributaries, most watersheds receiving a 
D grade, and an F grade in Cow and Perch Creeks, and Lake St. Clair Tributaries.  

The latest round of report cards reinforces the need for an aggressive strategy to 
change the watershed. With change and stressors, such as intense agricultural 
practices, population growth, commercial and industrial development and climate 
change continually affecting the watershed, recognition of local actions that improve the 
watershed health is very important. There have been collective efforts over the years 
including dozens of projects that have been completed through the Healthy Watershed 
Program and Healthy Lake Huron Clean Water Clean Beaches Program. Examples of 
these positive contributions are included and summarized in each watershed Report 
Card.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://watershedcheckup.ca/


Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     22 
 

BD-18-47 
Kelch-Wright 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated April 4, 2018 on 
Watershed Report Cards and reporting on the health of St. Clair Conservation 
watersheds.” 
    CARRIED 
 
The Biology Department has had great success with grant proposals carrying into this 
year, with active grants currently totaling over $1,000,000 and a potential additional 
$1,185,000 from new applications in 2018/19.  
 
Financial Impact: 
Multi-year grants for 2018/19 include:  

• A three year $160,300 grant from the Friends of the St. Clair River/Ontario 
Trillium Foundation to conduct aquatic inventories, restore aquatic habitat and for 
education and outreach.     

• A three year $270,000 grant from Environment and Climate Change Canada for 
the “Sydenham River Healthy Watersheds Program – An Ecosystem Approach 
for Species at Risk.”  

• A two year $217,560 grant from Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food, and Rural 
Affairs for the “to restore, protect and conserve Great Lakes water quality and 
ecosystem health through Agriculture Outreach & Education” 

• A two year $40,000 grant from Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food, and Rural 
Affairs for the “Healthy Lake Huron – Lambton Shores Clean Water, Clean 
Beaches Program” 

• A three year $57,400 grant from Environment Canada and Climate Change for 
the “Healthy Watersheds Program – North Sydenham River Recovery.”  

• A three year $21,500 from Ontario Soil & Crop Improvement Association (Great 
Lakes Agriculture Stewardship Initiative) for Soil Health, Water Quality, and 
Pollinator Habitat Outreach and Education.  

• A two year $18,074 grant from Environment and Climate Change Canada for the 
“North Sydenham Watershed Mussel Inventory” 

 
As well, there were a number of one-year projects funded for 2018/19 

• $30,000 from the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry for the protection, 
evaluation and restoration of riparian wetlands.   

• $23,378 from the Ministry of Environment and Climate Change (OCEF) for the 
“Sydenham Tree Planting and Baseline Health Assessment” 

• $25,000 from the Ministry of Environment and Climate Change (Great Lakes 
Guardian Community Fund) for the “Sydenham River Recovery Program” 

• $60,000 from Ministry of Environment and Climate Change for the “Healthy Lake 
Huron – Lambton Shores Clean Water, Clean Beaches Program” 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     23 
 

• $10,000 from Environment and Climate Change Canada for the “Healthy Lake 
Huron – Lambton Shores Clean Water, Clean Beaches Program” 

• $70,400 from Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry Species at Risk 
Stewardship Fund for the “Sydenham River Habitat Stewardship Program” 

• $20,000 from Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry’s Land Stewardship 
and Habitat Restoration Program for Habitat Enhancement of the Hardy Creek 
Floodplain.  

 
The following additional applications have been submitted to date for 2018/19 funding: 

• $600,000 has been requested from Environment and Climate Change Canada 
(Great Lakes Protection Initiative – Preventing Toxic and Nuisance Algae 
Stream) for the “Reducing phosphorus loss through agricultural outreach & 
stewardship in Southwestern Ontario” (4 year proposal) 

• $143,685 has been requested from the Ministry of Natural Resources and 
Forestry (Species at Risk Stewardship Fund) for the “Reptiles at Risk” Program 
(3 year proposal) 

• $120,900 has been requested from Environment and Climate Change Canada 
(Great Lakes Protection Initiative – Citizen Science Stream) for the “St. Clair 
Region Farmers For Great Lakes Water Quality Science” (4 year proposal) 

• $99,991 has been requested from Environment and Climate Change Canada 
(EcoAction) for the “St. Clair Region’s Freshwater Reach-ahead Program Pilot” 
(2 year proposal) 

• $80,000 has been requested from the Canadian Agricultural Partnership for 
“reducing phosphorus loss through agricultural outreach and education” (18 
month proposal) 

• $60,000 has been requested from Ministry of Environment and Climate Change 
for the “Healthy Lake Huron – Lambton Shores Clean Water, Clean Beaches 
Program” (1 year proposal) 

• $28,888 has been requested from Environment and Climate Change Canada 
(Habitat Stewardship Program – SAR Stream) for the “Barrier Removal on Bear 
Creek at Moore Habitat Management Area” (1 year proposal) 

• $8,900 is requested annually from Fisheries and Oceans Canada for a contract 
to collect fisheries data (1 year proposal) 

• $5,464 has been requested from TD Friends of the Environment Foundation for 
the “A.W. Campbell CA Pollinator Meadow” (1 year proposal) 

• $7,050 has been requested from TD Friends of the Environment Foundation – 
TD Tree Days for Strathroy and Sarnia (1 year proposal) 

• $30,858 has been requested from Canada Summer Jobs to fund three summer 
positions:  A Biological Monitoring Assistant, and two Watershed 
Conservationists 

 
 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     24 
 

BD-18-48 
Kelch-Scholten 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges this report dated April 4, 2018 on the 
biology department’s grant/ funding update for 2018/ 19.” 
    CARRIED 
 
Freshwater mussels play an extremely important role in the health of freshwater rivers 
and lakes. Buried beneath layers of sand they filter and clean water, are a source of 
food for many different species and most importantly, act as a “bioindicator” as their 
health has direct links to the overall health of the aquatic ecosystem. However, due to 
increased pollution, siltation, habitat loss and invasive species competition, many are 
listed as “at risk” in Ontario. With at least 80 species of fish and 34 species of 
freshwater mussels historically found in the Sydenham River, it is one of the most 
species-rich watersheds in all of Canada – no other river in Canada has greater 
freshwater mussel diversity. With this knowledge, research and monitoring within this 
diverse system is an important action in protecting these degrading populations.  
 
SCRCA Projects - 2017:  
The Sydenham River is made up of two main branches, the East Branch and the North 
Branch. The East Branch has long been recognized as a hotspot for mussel diversity 
whereas the North Branch has often been overlooked and understudied. In order to 
work on closing these knowledge gaps, the SCRCA’s biology staff conducted 28 mussel 
surveys covering 14km of the North Branch in 2017 and plan to study another 14km in 
2018. This year alone, staff captured and processed 5,282 live mussels in addition to 
3,040 old shells, thereby adding over 8,000 new data points to the North Branch of the 
Sydenham. Twenty species were observed including five Species at Risk. This 
important research project is being funded by the Ontario Trillium Foundation (OTF) and 
the Habitat Stewardship Program (HSP) for Species at Risk.  

In addition, the mussel relocation survival assessment phase of the 2016 Bear Creek 
barrier removal was conducted. The survey took place on July 31-August 1 and 296 live 
mussels were observed. Only one Species at Risk mussel (Mapleleaf mussel) was 
observed, however it was the most abundant species of those surveyed. A second 
survival survey will take place in 2018 to fulfill the permit requirements of the project.  
 
2017 Canadian Freshwater Mollusc Research Meeting: November 8-9, 2017 
The second biennial Canadian Freshwater Mollusc Research Meeting was held in 
November at the Canada Centre for Inland Waters in Burlington, Ontario. The meeting 
was jointly hosted by Fisheries and Oceans Canada and the Ontario Ministry of Natural 
Resources and Forestry. This meeting was organized to bring together Canadian 
malacologists to share past, current, and ongoing research on freshwater molluscs. 
Topics of discussion included status and distribution, life history, conservation genetics, 
species at risk, threats, propagation activities, and outreach actions. With representation 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     25 
 

from the Pacific to the Atlantic, attendees came from federal departments, 
provincial/state agencies, academic institutions, environmental nongovernmental 
organizations, naturalist groups, zoos, museums, and interested citizens. SCRCA 
biologists attended the meeting and found it as a great environment for building 
relationships to promote future collaborations and research opportunities, as well as 
learn about other Freshwater Mussel research and initiatives taking place within other 
geographic regions.  
 
The Sydenham River – An Important Piece to Mussel Research  
There are a number of organizations and researchers that travel to the Sydenham River 
to conduct research as it remains the most diverse mussel habitat in Ontario. Presented 
at the Canadian Freshwater Mollusc Research Meeting, three research projects listed 
below used the Sydenham River as a home base. Fisheries and Oceans and MNRF 
often invite SCRCA biologists to participate in mussel research projects when in 
SCRCA’s watershed.  
 
• Exploring Ontario Nature’s first riverine reserve: The Sydenham River Nature 

Reserve  
A group of biologists from the Department of Fisheries and Oceans has launched 
an inventory survey along a 2.5km stretch within the Sydenham River Nature 
Reserve. This specific reach has never been inventoried. After a three-day survey, 
a total of 1691 animals, representing 24 species, were observed, including seven 
Species at Risk (SAR). This survey provides a better understanding of reach 
variability as well as the freshwater mussel community throughout the river.  

• Selective feeding of freshwater mussels: implications for resource partitioning 
Researchers from the University of Guelph have been examining the feeding of 
three freshwater mussel species in the Sydenham River at Florence, ON in 
different flow conditions. The study showed that higher feeding was observed 
under flowing conditions across all the mussel species and that different mussel 
species were capable of selectively feeding on particular algal species.   

• Can Adaptive Cluster Sampling Improve Ontario Mussel Species at Risk 
Monitoring?  
Collaborations between MNRF and University of Trent studied simulation-based 
methods to evaluate whether adaptive clustering sampling could improve single-
species monitoring. Data for eight mussel species (including three species at risk) 
collected from two sites (Rawdon Creek and Sydenham River) were used. It was 
determined in all cases that adaptive sampling was less accurate and efficient than 
simple random sampling or systematic sampling with random starts.  

 
For more detailed explanations or to read about additional mussel research, please 
visit: http://waves-vagues.dfo-mpo.gc.ca/Library/40663693.pdf 
 

http://waves-vagues.dfo-mpo.gc.ca/Library/40663693.pdf


Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     26 
 

Conclusion: 
Mussel monitoring work conducted by SCRCA biology staff throughout the Sydenham 
watershed plays an important role in the overall research and knowledge of Ontario 
Freshwater Mussel populations. With the Sydenham River being the most diverse 
location in Ontario, current knowledge gaps should be filled in order to promote the best 
possible planning and management practices. SCRCA collects valuable baseline data 
that is contributing to closing these gaps and providing a greater understanding about 
species presence and distribution, especially Species at Risk.  This data is valuable to a 
wide range of organizations including the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry 
and the Department of Fisheries and Oceans and will be used for various projects for 
years to come.  
 
BD-18-49 
Faas-Giffen 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges this report dated April 4, 2018 on 
mussel research and monitoring taking place throughout the Sydenham River 
watershed by SCRCA biology staff and other organizations.” 
    CARRIED 
 
Stewardship Projects 

• There were 12 projects funded by the Species at Risk Stewardship Fund 
(SARSF) for 2017- 2018. A total of $31,500 from this program went toward 
funding riparian buffers, stream bank stabilization, wetland creation, upland 
habitat improvements, agricultural windbreaks and afforestation projects valued 
at more than $168,000 

• Construction for some projects began in February and March mainly for wetland 
creation. Most of the projects are expected to begin May 1st and be completed 
over the course of four to five weeks 

• A new application for SARSF 2018 - 2019 was submitted to MNRF last fall. We 
received notification on April 5th that our proposal was not selected for funding for 
the 2018/19. SCRCA has received funding from this program since 2008, however 
the SARSF has changed some of their priority categories and competition for 
funding has increased. The review committee decided that the SCRCA proposal 
for stewardship projects was not strong enough to meet SAR recovery needs for 
priority species. 

 
Tree Planting Program 

• Tree seedlings and shipping dates from supplying tree nurseries are operating 
approximately one to two weeks behind normal spring schedules this year. 

• Nurseries don’t expect to start lifting seedlings until the week of April 16th – 20th 
due to cold and wet conditions so far this spring. 

• Trees are expected to arrive sometime around the 25th of April or later. 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     27 
 

• SCRCA crews will be planting approximately 55,000 trees on 28 properties this 
spring. 

• Another 5,500 trees will be distributed to an additional 40 landowners for 
planting.  

• Two tractors will be rented and used to operate the two SCRCA owned 
mechanical tree planters. One hand planting crew will be required for planting 
difficult sites. Planting is expect to take place starting around the first week of 
May this year. 

• Approximately 10 acres will be planted on Enbridge land at the Wilkesport site in 
St. Clair Township this spring. This will be the final year of an 8 year-long project 
to “help reforest” Lambton County under a Naturalization Project they committed 
to in 2010 in partnership with SCRCA. Union Gas Limited with be subsidizing the 
cost of 4 of the 10 acres of this Enbridge project for compensation from a tree 
removal project in St. Clair Township in 2017 

• Approximately 275,000 trees require spray maintenance this spring (under the 3 
year vegetation control program) plus another 55,000 trees scheduled for 
planting this year. Two machine sprayers will start herbicide applications in April 
as soon as weather and site conditions permit. 

• The 3 year tending work is paid in advance and carried forward each year to 
cover the cost of the labour and material. 
 

Large Stock Trees 
• Approximately 850 large stock trees have been ordered for the spring 
• Three municipalities are ordering trees this spring and two other municipalities 

are interested in a large stock tree program next year. The Municipality of 
Brooke-Alvinston is providing a financial incentive to its municipal property 
owners who purchase and plant trees on their property through this program. 

• Trees range in size from a half metre tall for evergreen trees to 2.0 metres tall for 
the hardwood trees. Most of the trees are potted or in a dirt ball with burlap. 
Some species and oversized trees come in bare root form. The bare root trees 
are less expensive, however, they require much more protection when 
transporting and storing. 

 
Managed Forest Tax Incentive Program (MFTIP) 

• Many forest property owners have recently been contacting SCRCA for 
assistance preparing a new plan or approving a renewed plan for the managed 
forest tax incentive program for the 2019 tax year. 

• New plans must be approved by a plan approver and are due June 30th, 2018  
• Plan renewals must also be approved by a plan approver and are due July 31st, 2018 
• Minimum requirement for the program is 4 hectares of woodland exclusive of 

residence or non-forestry use structures 
• Approved plans are sent to the MNRF and information is then sent to MPAC 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     28 
 

• The MFTIP offers a reduction in property taxes to landowners of forested land who 
prepare a plan and agree to be good stewards of their property  

 
BD-18-50 
Gordon-Marriott 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated April 5, 2018 
regarding Conservation Services projects and programs.” 
    CARRIED 
 

• The County of Lambton operates a West Nile virus (WNv) program including a 
larvicide application program to control mosquito larva in catch basins. The 
Conservation Authority has been treating catch basins in all rural and urban 
areas in Lambton County, including the City of Sarnia since 2006 under direction 
from Lambton Public Health. SCRCA obtains permits each year from the Ministry 
of the Environment and trains, certifies and registers summer staff as pesticide 
technicians to treat catch basins with a mosquito larvicide product. 

• Catch basins are treated with methoprene (mosquito larvicide) between July 1st 
and August 30th with 3 separate applications at 21-day intervals for mosquito 
control during the most vulnerable time of the year for transmitting the disease. 
Methoprene is a growth regulator that prevents the mosquito pupa from emerging 
as a biting adult mosquito. Approximately 65% of the Lambton County catch 
basins are located in the City of Sarnia. 

• The three year contract for larvicide application between SCRCA and the County 
of Lambton ended in 2017 under the maximum extended contract term. SCRCA 
submitted a new price and treatment option plan to the County last month for a 
new three year contract term. 

• A tender for a three year contract for larvicide application by the SCRCA was 
offered to the Municipality of Chatham-Kent this year and is currently being 
reviewed for consideration by County staff  

• SCRCA staff also conduct efficacy tests in part with the treatment program by 
collecting mosquito pupa samples throughout the summer. Pupa are monitored 
for percent adult emergence. Past efficacy tests show an 80% average 
effectiveness at controlling mosquito emergence. 

 
BD-18-51 
Nemcek-McMillan 
“The Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated April 6, 2018 on the 
application of Larvacide to catch basins in Lambton County for the control of 
West Nile Virus in 2018.” 
    CARRIED 
 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     29 
 

• Recently, an open ditch drain cleanout took place along the length of the drain where 
a landowner had planted trees and unfortunately, a large percentage of the trees 
were damaged in the process 

• The landowner gave the cleanout contractor permission to work from his property as 
long as the contractor agreed to be careful not to damage the trees in the process 

• The landowner later contacted SCRCA as well as the municipality to determine if the 
trees could be replaced 

• The trees were planted as seedlings in 2009 as part of a Rural Lambton Stewardship 
Network (RLSN) habitat improvement project and fully funded by RLSN 

• SCRCA was contracted by RLSN to plant the trees on the landowner’s side of drain, 
which is where excavation equipment is normally used during a drain cleanout and 
where the spoil from the drain is normally placed 

• An SCRCA tree planting agreement was still used even though it was a RLSN project 
• The landowner was aware of the necessary permission requirements for planting trees 

along the property line but neglected to contact the municipality regarding the 
proposed tree planting along the drain 

• Fortunately, this is a rare occurrence however; we need to avoid similar occurrences 
in the future. 

• How can SCRCA effectively and efficiently work with landowners and their adjacent 
landowners to attain all tree planting objectives and ensure with funders that the 
projects are not only implemented but also successful in the long term? 

• With these projects being carried out on private property, the landowner not only has 
the rights but also the responsibility for the works occurring on their property therefore, 
how can we ensure that the landowner obtains all necessary permissions and takes 
full responsibility for their project? 

• The existing planting agreement requires landowners who wish to plant trees less than 
one metre from a neighbouring property must obtain the signature of the adjacent 
landowner under a statement permitting such encroachment within the property 
boundary. Should we also require a landowner to obtain permission from the 
municipality, including a signature as well as the selection of material deposition or 
landowner paid disposal that would ensure that the property owner has discharged 
their responsibilities as a landowner in the preparation for a project to be carried out 
on their property? 

• Therefore, staff propose to: 
o Revise the existing Private Landowner’s Tree Planting Agreement (below are 

excerpts from the agreement) to incorporate a clearer statement for planting 
along municipal drains 

o Add a statement outlining that when a landowner wishes to plant a row or more 
of trees along a municipal drain, the landowner agrees to have the spoil material 
from any future drain maintenance placed in another location and removed at the 
expense of the landowner   



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     30 
 

o Incorporate a mandatory signature line where the municipality and/or municipal 
drainage superintendent and the landowner agree to the above method of future 
drain maintenance works should future maintenance risk damaging existing trees 

o A similar statement and signature line will be added for projects that are close to 
adjacent properties  

 
BD-18-52 
Kelch-MacKinnon 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated April 6, 2018 
regarding Private Lands tree planting projects and Municipal Drain Maintenance 
Projects and further that the Tree Planting Agreement between the landowners 
and the Authority include awareness of conditions in planting along or adjacent 
municipal drains and that the planting project has been reported to the drain 
engineer and municipal drainage superintendent.” 
    CARRIED 
 
A summary of staff activity related to the Conservation Authority’s Development, 
Interference of Wetlands, and Alterations to Shorelines and Watercourses Regulation 
(Ontario Regulation 171/06 under Ontario Regulation 97/04), was reviewed. 
 
BD-18-53 
Marriott-Miller 
 “That the Board of Directors acknowledges and concurs with the Regulations 
Activity Summary Report dated April 4, 2018 on "Development, Interference with 
Wetlands & Alterations to Shorelines & Watercourses” Regulations (Ontario 
Regulation 171/06) from February to March 31, 2018.” 
    CARRIED 
 
A summary of staff activity related to Municipal Plan Input and Review covering January 
1, 2018 – March 31, 2018 was reviewed 
 
BD-18-54 
Scholten-Kelch 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the St. Clair Region Conservation 
Authority’s monthly Planning Activity Summary Report for January 1, 2018 – 
March 31, 2018.” 
    CARRIED 
 
A summary of the Municipal drain activity report associated with the Drainage Act and 
Conservation Authorities Act Protocol (DART) covering October 2017 to March 2018, 
was reviewed. 
 
 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     31 
 

BD-18-55 
Wright-McMillan 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges and concurs with the October, 2017 – 
March, 2018 municipal drain activity report associated with the Drainage Act and 
Conservation Authorities Act Protocol (DART).” 
    CARRIED 
 
The Lake Huron Shoreline Management Plan was approved by the Board of Directors in 
2015. 
 
In 2016/17, SCRCA retained W.F. Baird and Associates, Coastal Engineering to 
undertake the above noted dynamic beach studies. Numerous updates on the studies 
were forwarded to the Board of Directors in 2016 and 2017. In 2016 public open houses 
were held and in 2017 further consultation on the West Ipperwash study was necessary 
due to the complex issues in this Reach.   
 
These studies are included as additional references in the Directors Board Package and 
on the Director Access website. 
 
Revisions to the SMP are summarized in the Preface Section to the SMP. 
A track changes document citing full revisions of the full SMP is available on the 
Directors Access page on the Authority website. A complete hard copy of the SMP (142 
pages) was provided in December 2015. 
 
Strategic Objectives(s): 
Meets Goal 1 and Strategic Action 1 of SCRCA Strategic Plan 
 
Study Findings: 
As the dynamic nature of the beach was unknown at the time of historic development, a 
well defined building line was established on a beach deposit. The 2010 provincial 
dynamic beach default limit extended beyond the development line. The nature of the 
beach in the vicinity of the development had also been impacted. 
Based on the results of the assessments, Baird and Associates recommended that the 
dynamic beach hazard limit could be reduced. This was based on sound coastal 
engineering modelling and principles and is outlined extensively in the individual 
reports. No objections were received on the recommendation of a reduced hazard limit 
as presented. The consultation process was a beneficial exercise as best management 
practices were discussed thoroughly with expertise from a well respected coastal 
engineering firm. Residents and the KSPFN community were appreciative of the 
expertise and opportunity to discuss issues with the consultant and SCRCA Planning 
and Regulations staff. 
  
 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     32 
 

Financial Impact: 
The individual technical studies financial arrangements were previously approved with 
grants and special benefitting municipalities sharing costs. No financial impact to 
SCRCA for changes to documents. Changes done in house and is a Regulatory 
requirement. Positive financial impact for individual residents as options for 
redevelopment on parcels were extremely limiting; particularly West Ipperwash.   
 
BD-18-56 
Rupke-Kelch 
“That the Board of Directors approves the update on Lake Huron Shoreline 
Management Plan Reaches 5 and 36/37 Dynamic Beach studies, which reduces 
the default dynamic beach limit based on sound coastal engineering modelling 
and principles and that updates be made to the Lake Huron Shoreline 
Management Plan as circulated as well as any other guidance documents for 
consistency purposes.”  
    CARRIED 
 
The review of the Ontario Municipal Board (OMB) began in Spring 2016 and has 
concluded with the creation of the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal (LPAT) to replace the 
OMB. Staff attended an in-person session to discuss the OMB on October 27, 2016. 
In addition to the changes to the Conservation Authorities Act, Bill 139 – Building Better 
Communities and Conserving Watersheds Act, 2017, which received Royal Assent 
December 12, 2017, also made changes to the planning process. Staff attended an 
information session about the changes to the planning process on March 9, 2018. The 
majority of changes discussed below take effect on April 3, 2018. This report focuses 
only on changes related to the Conservation Authority and does not specifically address 
all changes related to municipalities. 
The Authority is involved in the planning process through our delegated responsibility 
from the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry to provide comments on natural 
hazards and our agreements with member municipalities to provide comments on 
natural heritage. 
The Bill 139 changes related to the planning process included:  

• repealing the OMB and replacing it with the LPAT, 
• establishing the Local Planning Appeal Support Center, and; 
• making changes to the Planning Act. 

The LPAT will be an independent, province-wide appeal body for land use planning 
matters. The hearing process will be modernized and made less adversarial by 
promoting active adjudication, limiting oral evidence and cross examination, requiring 
mediation before hearings and improving timelines. 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     33 
 

The Local Planning Appeal Support Center will be a separate agency, intended to help 
level the playing field for citizens and provide information on land use planning, appeal 
procedures and advice. A new user friendly website will be created, with publically 
accessible decisions on appeals. 
Of the changes made to the Planning Act, a summary of those changes which relate to 
the Authority’s responsibilities are outlined below. The direct relation to the Authority is 
highlighted in italics. 
Longer Decision Timelines 
The intended outcome of increasing the decision timelines is to provide more time to 
assess planning matters, hear input from the public and negotiate solutions to possible 
issues to avoid potential appeals before making a decision. 

• Official Plan Amendments – 210 days extended from 180 days 
• Zoning By-law Amendments – 150 days extended from 120 days 

The Conservation Authority will have more time to provide comments to the municipality 
and work with applicants to achieve a resolution. 

Consistency/Conformity Standard 
Changes to the Planning Act will restrict the grounds for an appeal of official plan 
amendments and zoning by-law amendments to only matters of consistency and/or 
conformity with provincial and/or municipal policies and plans. This change will limit the 
ability of the LPAT to overturn decisions made by locally-elected councils, whereas 
previously the OMB could make any planning decision that council could have made. 
The LPAT must dismiss an appeal of a local decision unless it is inconsistent with the 
Provincial Policy Statement (PPS), does not conform/conflicts with provincial plans, or 
does not conform with applicable official plans (e.g. upper-tier official plan). If a local 
decision is determined to be inconsistent or conflicting with policies, the matter must 
return to the municipality for a new decision. This change does not apply to appeals 
exclusively site-specific in nature (e.g. subdivision, consents, minor variances). 
Conservation Authority concerns related to Natural Hazards and Natural Heritage will 
continue to be a grounds for an appeal as they stem from the PPS. 

Requirement to Send New Information Back to the Municipality 
The LPAT is required to send new information at subdivision hearings back to the 
municipality for re-evaluation of the original decision, if requested by the municipality. 
Previously, the OMB had the authority to determine whether to send new information 
back to the municipality. If material is sent back to the municipality, they have 60 days to 
reconsider the decision and make a written recommendation back to the LPAT. 
The Conservation Authority, working with the Municipality, can also review new 
information and provide input to recommendations. 

No Appeal of Major Provincial Decisions 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     34 
 

With this change, no appeals of provincial decisions on official plans and major official 
plan updates will be permitted. The intended outcome is to reduce the number of 
appeals and increase the implementation of provincial policies, in order to protect 
important provincial interests such as public heath and safety. 
Improved implementation of provincial policies related to Natural Hazard and Natural 
Heritage will assist the Conservation Authority when reviewing applications. 

Climate Change 
All municipal official plans are required to include climate change policies to identify 
goals, objectives and actions to mitigate greenhouse gas emissions and adapt to a 
changing climate, including through increased resiliency.  
This requirement further supports the Conservation Authority’s strategic plan objectives. 
 
BD-18-57 
Marriott-Rupke 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report, dated March 12, 2018, 
regarding the Bill 139 changes related to the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal.”  
    CARRIED 
 
The revenue and expenditure report to February 28, 2018, as it relates to the budget, 
was reviewed. 
 
BD-18-58 
Scholten-Miller 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the revenue and expenditure report to 
February 28, 2018, as it relates to the budget.” 
    CARRIED 
 
The January, February and March 2018 disbursements were reviewed. 
 
 
BD-18-59 
Kelch-Gordon 
“That the Board of Directors approves the January, February and March 2018 
disbursements as presented in the amount of $959,377.55.” 
    CARRIED 
 
The report on the 2018 general levy receipts to date were reviewed. 
 
 
 
 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     35 
 

BD-18-60 
Nemcek-Broad 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the status report on the 2018 general 
levy receipts to date.” 
    CARRIED 
 
The January, February and March 2018 Investment Reports were reviewed. 
 
BD-18-61 
Brunink-Bruziewicz 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the January, February and March 
2018 Investment report.” 
    CARRIED 
 
The November 29, 2017 Joint Health & Safety Committee meeting minutes were 
reviewed. 
 
BD-18-62 
Gordon-Scholten 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the November 29, 2017 Joint Health & 
Safety Committee meeting minutes.” 
    CARRIED 
 
Upon request of the Walpole Island Heritage Committee April White of Environment and 
Climate Change Canada along with Kelly Johnson, St. Clair River Remedial Action Plan 
Coordinator attended the Walpole Island First Nation Chief and Council meeting on 
February 27, 2018.  April White made a presentation to Chief and Council regarding re-
designation of the Beneficial Use Impairments (BUIs) – “Bird or Animal Deformities or 
Reproductive Problems”, “Restrictions on Dredging” and “Beach Closings”.  Chief and 
Council voted to acknowledge the recommendation. Aamjiwnaang First Nation 
previously passed a similar motion in regard to re-designation of the BUIs.  Support to 
re-designate the BUIs from “Impaired” to “Not Impaired” has also been received from 
the Canadian RAP Implementation Committee (CRIC) and the Bi-National Public 
Advisory Council (BPAC). The three BUIs will now continue on through the re-
designation process. 
 
BD-18-63 
Rupke-Kelch 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated March 22, 2018 on 
the St. Clair River Area of Concern.”   
    CARRIED 
 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     36 
 

Staff is proposing a Conservation Authority Project Tour on Thursday, June 28, 2018 
from 8:30a.m. to 12:00p.m. The bus will leave and return to the Mooretown Sports 
Complex. We will have lunch followed by the Board meeting. This year, we will be 
focusing on projects in the western portion of our watershed. 
 
Proposed Tour Highlights 
 

• Courtright Waterfront Park Shoreline Improvement Project 
• Aamjiwnaang Shoreline Naturalization Project 
• Guthrie Park; Area of Concern update 
• Bear Creek Barrier Removal 
• Stewardship Projects 
• Moore Wildlife Habitat Management Area 

 
BD-18-64 
Scholten-McMillan 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated April 3, 2018 on the 
proposed project tour scheduled for June 28, 2018.” 
    CARRIED 
 
2018 Special Events 
 
Soil Health Conference 
Date: Thursday, February 15, 2018 
Time: 8am to 5pm 
Location: John Bradley Convention Centre, Chatham 

A.W. Campbell Maple Syrup Festival 
Date: Saturday, March 17 to Sunday, March 18, 2018 
Time: 10am to 3pm  
Location: A.W. Campbell Conservation Area 

Sydenham River Canoe and Kayak Race 
Date: Sunday, April 22, 2018 
Registration: 10am to 11am 
Start Location: Mosside Line at the Sydenham River 
End Location: Shetland Conservation Area 

Denning’s Strathroy Memorial Forest Dedication 
Date: Sunday, May 27, 2018 
Time: 2pm 
Location: 32 Metcalfe Street West, Strathroy 

Member’s Project Tour 
Date: Thursday, June 28, 2018 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     37 
 

Time: 8:30am to 12:00pm 

Great Canadian Shoreline Cleanup – Ipperwash Beach 
Date: Saturday, September 8, 2018 
Time: 9am to 11am 
Location: Centre Ipperwash Beach boat launch 

Denning’s Chatham-Kent and West Elgin Memorial Forest Dedication 
Date: Sunday, September 16, 2018 
Time: 2pm 
Location: Keith McLean Conservation Lands 

A Geocaching Adventure 
Date: Sunday, September 16, 2018 
Time: 9am 
Location: Lorne C. Henderson Conservation Area 

Foundation Memorial Forest Dedication 
Date: Sunday, September 23, 2018 
Time: 2pm 
Location: Lorne C. Henderson Conservation Area 
 
For details on events, visit scrca.on.ca/events 
 
BD-18-65 
Nemcek-Gordon 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the updated schedule of Special 
Events outlined in the attached flyer.” 
    CARRIED 
 
Winter Programing 
Thanks to the Sarnia Lambton Environmental Association, Groundwater and River 
Bottom Critters programs were the focus of our winter season for students in 
Kindergarten to Grade 12. Several primary classes also visited Henderson 
Conservation Area, experiencing an enjoyable and educational winter program with 
snow on the ground! Union Gas Funding for the Spring Water Awareness Program has 
ended after 7 years. Staff is currently looking for a new funding source to continue this 
informative and educational safety program.  
 
Healthy Kids Community Challenge 
Power off and Play, Funded by Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. The SCRCA 
received $8,000 in grant money to promote being active. Staff designed a school yard 
winter program to encourage kids to get outside and play. 6 classes at 5 different 
schools each participated in 40 minutes of outside nature activities. Post cards 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     38 
 

promoting hiking trails at our C.A.’s were also distributed to encourage families to visit 
C.A.’s. 
 
Education Fees 
Education Fees have not increased in over 15 years. They are currently under review 
for the 2018/2019 school year. 
 
Special Events 
Maple Syrup Festival: The Alvinston Maple Syrup Festival was a popular place to spend 
the last weekend of March Break.  Bright sunny days and cold frosty nights made for 
great weather conditions and helped to keep the ground a little less muddy. Over 1,300 
visitors walked the trails and viewed the historic displays of making maple syrup. 
 
Canoe Race: April 22 is set aside for this year’s paddle down the Sydenham.  Find a 
partner and enjoy the beauty of the river on Earth Day!  Registration begins at 10:00 
a.m. 
 
Specialist High Skills Major (SHSM) 
Staff is currently developing two new Certification Workshops to add to our SHSM 
program offerings; Animal and Plant Management, and Habitat Restoration. Both 
Certifications will focus on Species at Risk within the Sydenham watershed. Students 
will be introduced to the ways SCRCA manages Conservation Areas to protect and 
improve habitat for local Species at Risk. 
 
ICE Training 
ICE (Innovation, Creativity and Entrepreneurship) training partnerships continue to 
grow. SCRCA education staff have two training sessions planned for spring 2018.  One 
partnership with St. François Xavier French Catholic School, Sarnia, will focus on 
improving the trails at LC Henderson C.A. The other training with Holy Cross Catholic 
School in Strathroy will focus on coping with mental health issues amid today’s stresses 
by spending time in nature. 
 
Fun Fest  
SCRCA staff will be participating in Kids Fun Fest 2018 on Saturday June 9th in Sarnia.  
The booth will promote camping and SCRCA programs. SCRCA staff will provide 
children with a hands-on nature themed activity. Past years have included themes such 
as nest building, mud painting, temporary nature art, and nature-themed games. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Directors Annual Meeting – April 19, 2018                                     39 
 

BD-18-66 
Kelch-Marriott 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the Conservation Education Report, 
dated April 4, 2018 including the winter programing, program development and 
expansion, Community Partnerships, and Special Events.” 
    CARRIED 
 
The letter from the Municipality of Chatham-Kent regarding the Proposed Projects for 
Crothers Conservation Area was reviewed. 
 
BD-18-67 
Wesley-Faas 
“That the Board of Directors acknowledges the letter from the Municipality of 
Chatham-Kent regarding the Proposed Projects for Crothers Conservation Area 
and supports the current trail name change, trail extension and installation of 
Story Book trail posts”  
    CARRIED 
 
BD-18-68 
Scholten-Giffen  
“That the meeting be adjourned.” 
    CARRIED 
 
 
 
    

                                                                                     
_____________________________                                                               
Steve Arnold     Brian McDougall 
Chair       General Manager 



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 4.1 
Report Date: June 15, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
Recommendation: 
That this report be accepted as 
an update.  
 
Background: 
Healthy Lake Huron 

• Since 2011, the partners list at right 
have worked on projects in their 
jurisdictions and in the southeast 
watersheds of Lake Huron as a whole 
in a concerted effort to address 
shoreline water quality concerns such 
as nuisance algae and bacterial issues 
and to promote safe and clean 
beaches from Sarnia to Tobermory 

• Progress has been made – in 5 targets 
watershed, including the watershed in 
southern Lambton Shores, landowners 
have been and continue to implement 
best management practices on farms, 
repair or replace faulty or failed septic 
systems and monitoring of water 
quality of the waterways has provided 
vital information to assist in decision 
making 

• However, additional works need to be 
completed to turn the tide against 
water quality concerns 

• This year, a new five year plan is being 
drafted to provide a new impetus and 
updated targets using monitoring 
reports and watershed report cards, 
the plan to be drafted this summer is to 
be reviewed this fall and should be available in late 2018 

Participants/ Supporters 
Government of Canada 

• Environment and Climate Change Canada 
• Parks Canada 
• Fisheries and Oceans Canada 

Government of Ontario 
• Ministry of Environment and Climate Change 
• Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs 
• Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
• Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry 

Regional Government 
• Bruce County 
• Huron County 
• Lambton County 

Conservation Authorities 
• Ausable Bayfield Conservation 
• Grey Sauble Conservation Authority 
• Maitland Valley Conservation Authority 
• Saugeen Valley Conservation Authority 
• St. Clair Region Conservation Authority 

Public Health 
• Grey-Bruce Health Unit 
• Huron County Health Unit 
• Lambton Public Health 

Local Organizations 
• Bruce Peninsula Biosphere Association 
• Bruce Power 
• Environmental Defence 
• Lake Huron Centre for Coastal Conservation 
• Pine River Watershed Initiative Network 
• Western University 

International Stakeholders 
• Lake Huron Binational Partnership 

Brian McDougall 

General Manager’s Report 



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 4.2 
Report Date: June 15, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That this report and attachments be accepted as an update. 
 
Background: 
 

• Amendments to the Conservation Authorities Act passed in December 2017 
contains a new section 

• Section 19.1 outlines a number of specific requirements for Conservation 
Authority By-laws 

• Additionally, all Conservation Authorities are required to have their bylaws 
updated and approved prior to the end of 2018 and that those bylaws will be in 
compliance with Section 19.1 

• To assist Authorities in completing this task Conservation Ontario worked with 
staff from the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry and several 
Conservation Authorities to create a template for these updated bylaws as well 
as best management practices to guide the updating process 

• Attached is the templates Table of Contents which will provide the backbone of 
the update 

• In order for the Board to have appropriate opportunity to revision the updated 
Bylaw, the following schedule of review is proposed: 

o September 2018 – draft bylaw presented to Board of Directors for review 
and comment 

o November 2018 – revised bylaw based on comments, etc presented to the 
Board of Directors for review and comment 

o December 2018 – final draft of bylaw presented to Board of Directors for 
approval 

Brian McDougall 

Updating Authority Bylaws 



��������	
�����	��
	������������������������������������������������������� !"�#��$��%��$�������&'� ()*+,-./01�22222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�3�4'�5670167089�8.�8:7�;<=>?@ABCD<=�EFCG<@DCD?>�EHC�222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�3�I'�J/-K.97�.L�(798�M)0),76708�J-)*8N*79�O(MJP�)01�516N0N98-)8NQ7�(RST)U�M.17T�222222222222222�V�W'�()9N9�.L�(798�M)0),76708�J-)*8N*79�O(MJP�)01�516N0N98-)8NQ7�(RST)U�M.17T�22222222222222222222�V�X'�Y7,)T�Z7QN7U�)01�[7\8�]87K9�222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�̂�__2� àbcdcefghfcij�klmnho�pqajr�22222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�s�_dfgqatufcqd�222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�s�2̀�vjwcdcfcqde�22222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�xy�k2�zqijgdhduj�222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�xx�x2�pjb{jge�2222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�xx�|2�}wwcujge�2222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�x3�32� {̀ejduj�qw�~�hcg�hda��cujm~�hcg�e��222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�x���2�ph�cbtb��jgb�wqg�~�hcg�hda��cujm~�hcg�e��2222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�x��V2��j�gjejdfhfcije�fq�~qdejgihfcqd�}dfhgcq�~qtducr�2222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�x��2̂��rjufcqd�qw�~�hcg�hda��cujm~�hcge�222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�x���2� �̀�qcdfbjdf�qw�̀tacfqg�22222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�x��s2� �̀�qcdfbjdf�qw��cdhduchr�_defcftfcqd�222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�x���2� �̀�qcdfbjdf�qw��qrcucfqg�2222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�x��xy2��cdhduchr��fhfjbjdfe�hda��j�qgf�qw�f�j�̀tacfqg�222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�xV�xx2�kqggqocd���jeqrtfcqd�22222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�xV�x|2�njil��qfcuj�2222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�xV�x32��c�dcd��}wwcujge�222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�xV�x�2���jutfcij�~qbbcffjj�222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�xV�xV2�̀ aiceqgl�kqhgae�hda�}f�jg�~qbbcffjje�222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�xV�x̂2��jbtdjghfcqd�qw�pjb{jge222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�x̂�x�2��juqgae��jfjdfcqd�22222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�x̂�xs2��juqgae�̀ihcrh{rj�fq��t{rcu�222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�x̂�������������������������������������� ¡����¢£¤�¥¦¢§  ���̈��©����§§

bmcdougall
Text Box
Item 4.2



��������	
�����
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	
��	��	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	
��	� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������!� �������	��������"������#�$��������	� ���%�������������������������������������������������������������������������&��"�����'������ ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(������������������ ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(����)���������"�����'��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(�*��"�����'��$%����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(�+���'�� 	�����"�����'�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,-�./01/2�3333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333�45����$� ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������6��	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(��"	�������������� ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"������7������ 	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�����%	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������6���'	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	��"�����'���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������*��"�����'��
��8�&���� �9!��&	���	:�;�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������+��<����'���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������*��=��)���������"���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������*�����"���������������� ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������+�����6����������8��"�����'�&8	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������+��(��&�� �������"���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������+�����"����������"�����'�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������=�6���%%��	���������	
�	� �����	��������������������	
>�?������������������������������������������������������������������������%%�� ���������8��� �������	��������	
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������%%�� �@�����&� �����&�� ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������%%�� �@�����&�����������!������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������*���%%�� �@�*�������� ��������������������$������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������*��!!!�� �����"	�	'��������	�������>�"��?���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������*+�!<�� &8��A������������%��	����
��8�;���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������*=��BCDEFGHIJKCD�LDJIGKC�BCMDNKO�PFFJKDQ�RSGKO�TUV�WXTY RQFDZI�[IQF�Y\



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 4.3 
Report Date: June 15, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges this report and approves the procedures for 
providing comments regarding issues posted on Ontario’s Environmental Registry. 
 
Background: 
 
The Environmental Registry (“Registry”) is a website that provides public access to a 
database holding information about environmental proposals and decisions made by the 
Ontario government. Proposals vary from individual permit to take water applications, 
official plans, environmental compliance and licensing, legislation and regulations, etc. 
 
The Registry is an important part of ensuring that the public can participate in decisions 
being made on environmental issues. The Environmental Registry is the only one of its 
kind in Canada and was created under Ontario's Environmental Bill of Rights, 1993 
(EBR). 
 
Through providing internet access to environmentally-relevant information, the 
Environmental Registry allows the Authority and the public to exercise its right to be 
given public notice of a range of government proposals and decisions related to 
environmental matters, and be able to provide comments on those issues. 
 
The Environmental Commissioner of Ontario is responsible for monitoring that the 
government fulfils its obligations under the Environmental Bill of Rights, including the 
Registry. Additional information is available on the Environmental Commissioner's 
website (www.eco.on.ca). 
 
Postings to the Registry ranged from 1416 to 2290 from 2008 – 2014. Postings have 
been significantly higher since - 2675 postings in 2015, 3261 postings in 2016 and 2680 
postings in 2017. With 1271 posting to date in 2018, it appears that the Registry will 
surpass last year’s postings. 
 

Brian McDougall 
 
Environmental Registry – Commenting Procedure 

http://www.eco.on.ca/


Staff Report 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

The comment period for postings varies greatly. Some postings have comment period 
of less than 20 days and some as long as 120 days. 
 
Conservation Ontario has been helpful in drawing together comments from all 
Authorities and providing one submission on our behalf on many issues. However, 
some issues that are of great importance or may have a regional or local focus require 
local comments. The Authority has contributed to many of Conservation Ontario’s 
submissions and has also provided comments from the Authority directly – such as the 
Authority’s comments regarding the Conservation Authorities Act review approved by 
the Authority Board in June of 2016. 
 
Concern has been brought forward that a procedure for Board approval of comments 
should be established in order for any comments provided under the St. Clair Region 
Conservation Authority banner has Board support. Several other Authority Boards have 
had similar concerns and comparable procedures for providing comments have been 
implemented. 
 
Therefore, the following procedure has been drafted to ensure that any postings 
relevant to St. Clair Region Conservation Authority will be responded to with any 
necessary comments. 
 
Proposed Commenting Procedure: 
 

1. Authority staff have established a list of words and phrases that have been 
provided to the Registry (the list is shown in the table below). Any postings 
containing any of these words and phrases are then automatically emailed to the 
Planning Ecologist and the General Manager. A copy of this list is found at right. 

2. These postings are then reviewed to confirm relevance to St. Clair Region 
Conservation Authority. If the posting is relevant, the posting is discussed with 
appropriate staff to determine the necessity for comments. 

3. Subject to this review, staff will recommend that comments may be forwarded to 
Conservation Ontario for inclusion in a broad comments correspondence in 
response to the posting or that the comments should be provided directly from 
SCRCA due to the local importance, legislative significance or if Conservation 
Ontario is not providing a joint comment. 

4. If comments are to be forwarded to Conservation Ontario for joint comments, 
staff will draft the comments for review by the General Manager. Approved 
comments will be forwarded to Conservation Ontario. 



Staff Report 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

5. If comments are recommended to 
be directly from SCRCA, staff will 
review the schedules for Board 
meetings and Registry posting 
comments and if required, will 
request an extension to the Registry 
posting deadline in order to have the 
opportunity to present the proposed 
comments to the Board of Directors 
for review and approval. Comments 
will subsequently drafted for Board 
review and will be included in the 
Board package. Subsequent to any 
edits and approval of the Board of 
Directors the comments will be 
submitted in the Authority’s name to 
the Registry. 
 
In the future it is hoped that through 
improved digital communication (e-
mailed links to postings, attached 
draft comments and emailed 
responses of support) we may be 
able to obtain support for proposed 
comments in a timely fashion.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Environmental 
Registry Alerts   

 
 
 
 
 

Your Keyword Alerts  

Phrase 
Approximate 
E-mails Per 

Week 
Biodiversity 0.7 Emails 
Chatham-Kent 0.7 Emails 
Conservation 5.2 Emails 
Conservation Authorities 0.3 Emails 
Conservation Authority 2.4 Emails 
Drinking water 1.8 Emails 
Endangered species 1.8 Emails 
Environmental assessment 4.8 Emails 
Erosion 1.2 Emails 
Flood 0.3 Emails 
Herbicide 0.1 Emails 
Integrated pest management 0 Emails 
Lambton County 0.1 Emails 
Larvacide 0 Emails 
Larvicide 0 Emails 
Middlesex County 0.1 Emails 
Natural Hazard 0.1 Emails 
Natural Heritage 1.1 Emails 
Planning act 3.3 Emails 
Provincial policy statement 0.8 Emails 
Source protection 0.3 Emails 
Source water 0.2 Emails 
St. Clair river 0.1 Emails 
Stewardship 0.5 Emails 
Sydenham river 0 Emails 
Wetland 1.4 Emails 
Woodland 0.4 Emails 
Woodlot 0 Emails 

Expect to receive around 27.7 emails per 
week with your current keywords. 



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 4.4 
Report Date: June 15, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges this report. 
 
Background:  
 
As requested at the April 
meeting of the Board of 
Directors, please find attached 
the Discussion Paper on 
Voluntary Carbon Offsets 
(MOECC) posted to the 
Environmental Registry as well 
as comments from 
Conservation Ontario submitted 
in response to the Registry 
posting. 
 
The St. Clair Region 
Conservation Foundation has a 
“Green Meetings” program, 
designed for environmentally 
conscious groups (companies, 
events, family gatherings, etc.) 
to be able to better understand 
their carbon footprints and to 
assist in sequestering an equal 
amount of carbon via a 
donation to the Foundation to 
support tree planting. Similar 
programs are available through 
other Foundations across the 
Province. The program 
brochure can be found at right. 

Brian McDougall 
 
Carbon Capture 



������� ��� ����������� ��	
��������������������������������������� 
����������� �!"#$�%��� &���%'�&��������(���%������������)���*��"����'����#����++����&��)����������������,-.�/���0	��10234��567789:��;<=�>?@A9B?7=?C8D�EADD�BF�GAH<CI�JBICA?H�KLMNOMPNQ�IC8C=I�C<8C�C<=�J69JBI=�BF�C<=�@BD6?C89:�R89SB?�BFFI=CI�J9BH987�AI�CB�T=@=DBJ�8�I=J898C=U�V68DAC:U�S98?T=TU�RD8II�BF�BFFI=CI�C<8C�C<=�W?C89AB�HB@=9?7=?CU�C<=�J9A@8C=�I=RCB9�8?T�BC<=9I�R8?�6I=�CB�9=T6R=�SBC<�C<=A9�R89SB?�8?T�=RBDBHAR8D�FBBCJ9A?CX�;<=�YAIR6IIAB?�Z8J=9�JBIC=T�FB9�9=@A=[�[8I�A?C=?T=T�CB�IC89C�8�RB?@=9I8CAB?�[AC<�W?C89A8?I�8SB6C�C<=�T=@=DBJ7=?C�BF�C<=�J9BJBI=T�@BD6?C89:�R89SB?�BFFI=CI�J9BH987X�\B?I=9@8CAB?�W?C89AB�IC8FF�RBB9TA?8C=T�8�RB77=?C�D=CC=9�FB9�=?TB9I=7=?CX��G=RB77=?T8CAB?��]̂_]�̀abcdefghiab�jbhgeia�̀akblim�dbnaecdc�hod�̀j�mdhhde�ab�pamilq�pearacgm�sahildt�udfdmaribv�g�wamkbhgeq�̀gexab�jyycdh�peavegz�yae�jbhgeia�{|}~���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������E8R�H9B6?T�������������'��+�����-���������������������������)��,��-��3����������&���%'�&��������(���%����������������������������������������������� �����¡�������������¢£¤¥¦¤§¥̈©���������-��������������)����'�+����"#��%������ª�����%�������,���������#���ª34�&����������������%��#������«��."�����������������������&�������������������+���������"���%�����'���������&������������%�4��������-.������������������"�������+��������"����'�%��#����++��������)������������������������������¬"����'��#��������%������+��++����������������������)�������������������������%���������������%���"���������"%��#����������%��#��������%���)�%���+��������4��������%"������&������������+��������ª�ª�����������������������%������������ª���������������#�"�������������������+�����������������"����'�%��#����++��������)���4�������������������"����'�%��#����++��������)��������������������������%��+�����������������%�������%���++��������)��������%���������������ª��������#���#������"������"����'�%��#����++����%���������������������%�������%���#��)�������"���������%����������������)���4�������)"�����'���%��������)�����)��������������++��������������)"�������"���������������������)������)�����������ª	%��#���-%����'�
%���

®̄ °±²³́µ¶·̄°�̧°¶µ³·̄�®̄ ¹°º·»�¼²½̄³¶��
*¾!¾�(����1�¿����������������������������ª����#������������������)�)��)��������������
"����������������������+�%����������������������������)��++�%���������%'�������������������������
"�����������

ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆÇÈÉÁÂ�ÊÂÈÇÅÉÁ�ÀÁËÂÌÉÍ�ÎÄÄÈÉÂÏ�ÐÑÅÉÍ�ÒÓÔ�ÕÖÒ× ÐÏÄÂØÇ�ÙÇÏÄ�ÕÒÚ

Item 4.4.1



���������	
����������������������������������
�������������	�
	
����
������������
��
  �����	�
!���"�
  ����	�
#����������������
�����������
������������
��
  ������������
����������������������
�������������$%$�&����� �����
��	�
�
�
���		�
������'�����
(��)*++,-.�/.0.*1�2
��������
��'�����
����  ��

��������������������������
��������������� �
��3
�
��
�4�!�
�"�5�������6�����"�$����4����"�7�������89�� ����27�"�2
��������
��%���
�����2�����6������2
��������
�� 
����������
	�����
 �������������������(���:
�����!���!����
 ��
����������������		
����!;��� <�3����
��
��
 ������
������8 
������
��������
  ����	�
!����������
���	�
��������
���� �������������������� 
�������
��������
�"��������
����
��
 ���������������������!�����������������������&�����������
�(�27������������������
�������	�
������!������������!�!�����	��������������������������������
���������������������=	�����������
�����������������������
���=�"������������		
�������>�
�����?�����5�������?���  
�����
�����
	����
������������
��
  �����	�
!�����������!�������!��������
������	����� �
��	���������	�����������
��
�!���@���
��(���<�9����������
�����������������������!���������������
���=�����!��
��������	�
!��������	����
���������������
����
��	�
!����"��������
���
�������!�
�����������
�������8�����
  ����	�
!�����<�3���������
������������
��
  ����	�
!��������������8�������������		�
�����
����������
�
!���������������������!����(�<�A������
��
 ���&��������
���������������������������������!���������������(�2
��������
��'�����
����	���������������$
��������?��BC������2
��������
��:�����!�D���������������
���
��
��������	���������
��
���
����������������
����&��������
������������(�<�2
��������
��
 ��
�������
������������
��
  ����	�
!�����������!�������		
������������������������������
 �
�!���@���
������������
��������
������
�������������������������
����������
��
�!�������������!������
 �
  ����	�
#����(�<�2
��������
��
 ��
�������
������������
��
  ����	�
!�����������!������������������ �������
��������
��������=�����������	�
!������E�������
�������2'�����������
�����������	�
!������
�����		
��"��������		�
	�����"�������	���������
��
 ��=�����!���
������8���������F
�����������	��������������!��������
	�����������	������������
��������
������
����������������	
���
��
��������F	��
������(�E
���=��	��"��=�����!���������������� 
�����������!���������������������!��	������
���	����	�������		
�������������
������	����� �
�������
��������
  ����������(���G����
���������
8���� ����
 ��
��������
  ������!��
������	��
����@�������!�
�"������
����������(�A���
������������"�����������
���!���������������������������
8���� �����(�(�H����:���
��������������H����G����������(��7��
������
���������������������
�����"� �

����������!���
���������������
�������	
�����������
��������(��'������
8���� �����
������������������������������8����!"�!������� �����������"�������
������� ������	
	�����
���
������
��������
��	��������"����������������!���������������
�������
����=	�����������
����� 
������
8���� ���(��7��������
 ��=��	����
 ��=�����!�27�	�
!����������		
���
 ��
��������
  ������!������	�
��������=��	����
 �����27����������
�	����������������>�
�����(��IJKLMNOPQRJK�SKQPNRJ�IJTKURV�WMMQRKX�YZNRV�[\]�̂_[̀ YXMKaP�bPXM�̂[c



��������	���
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������!�������"�
��#��������������� ������������$�%��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� &����'��������������#������������������������������������� $��(��������������������������������������#����������������������#��$��)**	+	��,��-.���/�.��01�/�	�1�/2,+	������34���+�/.5�	/.*�1�/�6/	�+	�78�9:;<;=>?@AB�C�D>=EAFCGH�ICGJ>A�KLLM;FM�NG>BGCO�L>G�KAFCG@>9�PQRS�TUVWXVYWZ[��:@M\EMM@>A�NC?;G�?]L�S;BE=CF@>A�:;\@M@>Â�KAFCG@>�KLLM;F�IG;]@FM�G;BE=CF@>A�EA];G�F_;�I=@OCF;�I_CAB;�̀@F@BCF@>A�CA]�a>bX\CGJ>A�Q\>A>OH�c\Fd�eUVY�PQRST�UVWXVZYU[������

fghijklmnogh�phnmkog�fgqhros�tjjnohu�vwkos�xyz�{|x} vujh~m��muj�{x�



��������	
������������
����
������	������������
��������� ��!�"�#��$�%�������� ��!�"����&��	���	�'�()��*
���	������	�+)�� ,�---./012345678010176480./6��

�
�9:;<:=>�?@A�BC?D���EF�GHIJK���LMN>:�O;NP=QR;��S=RTPUV�W:;:XP=��WM;MQV=>�RY�Z;[M=R;\P;V�:;N�]̂M\:VP�]_:;XP��Z;[M=R;\P;V:̂�S=RX=:\Q�̀M[MQMR;��S=RX=:\�Ŝ:;;M;X�:;N�a\b̂P\P;V:VMR;�c=:;U_��?d@�eV�]̂:M=�O[P�fPQV��gR=R;VR�hi��WjL�?S@���kGl�mnKJoF�mpnqnrIK�sntJoGl�uGvGKnqJwx�I�ynKzwtIpF�{Ip|nw�}~~rGt�mpnxpIH��np�}wtIpJn���Ek����������������̀P:=�WQ��O;NP=QR;����g_:;��>R<�YR=�V_P�RbbR=V<;MV>�VR�UR\\P;V�R;�V_P�WM;MQV=>�RY�Z;[M=R;\P;V�:;N�]̂M\:VP�����������������������������  �����¡�����¢��£¤�¥���¤���¦�¦��§���]R����̈��¤��������¤��©��ª���¦������������¤����«¬�������̈��¤��������¤�¤���©��ª®�̄�¤¥������R̂U:̂�°:VP=Q_PN�\:;:XP\P;V�:XP;UMPQ�V_:V�NP̂M[P=�QP=[MUPQ�:;N�b=RX=:\Q�VR�b=RVPUV�:;N�\:;:XP�°:VP=�:;N�RV_P=�;:V<=:̂�=PQR<=UPQ�M;�b:=V;P=Q_Mb�°MV_�XR[P=;\P;VA�̂:;NR°;P=QA�:;N�RV_P=�R=X:;M±:VMR;Q��]h�:;N�]OQ�b=R\RVP�:;�M;VPX=:VPN�°:VP=Q_PN�\:;:XP\P;V�:bb=R:U_�²:̂:;UM;X�_<\:;A�P;[M=R;\P;V:̂�:;N�PUR;R\MU�;PPNQ�:;N�:U�;R°̂PNXP�V_P�M\bR=V:;UP�RY�=PN<UM;X�³́³�P\MQQMR;Q�VR�UR\²:V�ÛM\:VP�U_:;XPA�YR=�Q<QV:M;:²̂P�X=R°V_�:;N�VR�b=RVPUVA�\:M;V:M;�:;N�=PQVR=P�V_P�_P:̂V_�RY�R<=�°:VP=Q_PNQ����]R;QP=[:VMR;�O<V_R=MVMPQ�:U=RQQ�h;V:=MR�_:[P�:�;<\²P=�RY�=PQbR;QM²M̂MVMPQ�=P̂:VPN�VR�;:V<=:̂�_P=MV:XP�b=RVPUVMR;�\:;:XP\P;V�:;N�=PQVR=:VMR;��]OQ�b=RVPUV�:;N�\:;:XP�:bb=RµM\:VP̂>��j¶DACCC�_PUV:=PQ�RY�UR;QP=[:VMR;�̂:;N�:;N�:QQMQV�V_PM=�\<;MUMb:̂MVMPQ�M;�Y<̂YM̂̂M;X�V_PM=�=PQbR;QM²M̂MVMPQ�:QQRUM:VPN�°MV_�;:V<=:̂�_P=MV:XPA�°:VP=�=PQR<=UPQ�:;N�;:V<=:̂�_:±:=N�\:;:XP\P;V�<;NP=�V_P��Ŝ:;;M;X�OUV�:;N�Z;[M=R;\P;V:̂�OQQPQQ\P;V�OUV·�b=RUPQQPQ��]R;QP=[:VMR;�h;V:=MR�:;N�]O�\P\²P=Q�_:[P�:;�M;VP=PQV�M;�V_P�NP[P̂Rb\P;V�RY�V_P�[R̂<;V:=>�¹̧º»¼½¾¿ÀÁ¹º�ÂºÀ¿½Á¹�̧¹ÃºÄÁÅ�Æ¼¼ÀÁºÇ�ÈÉ½ÁÅ�ÊËÌ�ÍÎÊÏ ÈÇ¼ºÐ¿�Ñ¿Ç¼�ÍÊË



��������	
������������
����
������	������������
��������� ��!�"�#��$�%�������� ��!�"����&��	���	�'�()��*
���	������	�+)�� ,�---./012345678010176480./6�

9:;<=>�=??@AB�C;=D;:E�DFGA>�=H;�9=IIA9BFGA�;=IA�:@�:�E:J=;�I:>K�=L>A;�F>�BMA�N;=GF>9AO�:>K�:@�@A;GF9A�C;=GFKA;@�:>K�;A@=H;9A�E:>:DAEA>B�:DA>9FA@�@HCC=;BF>D�FECIAEA>B:BF=>�=?�EH>F9FC:I�H;<:>�:>K�;H;:I�?=;A@B�:>K�>:BH;:I�MA;FB:DA�CI:>@�:>K�@B;:BADFA@�:>K�:@�KAIFGA;P�:DA>B@�?=;�EH>F9FC:I�;H;:I�L:BA;�QH:IFBP�C;=D;:E@R��N=;BF=>@�=?�ST�I:>K@�:;A�:I@=�H@AK�?=;�:D;F9HIBH;:I�C;=KH9BF=>O�:>K�E:>P�ST@�KAIFGA;�B;AA�CI:>BF>D�U9I=@A�B=�VRW�EFIIF=>�B;AA@�F>�VXYZ[O�:>K�BMA�;H;:I�L:BA;�QH:IFBP�C;=D;:E@�F>9IHKA�A@B:<IF@MEA>B�:>K�E:>:DAEA>B�=?�L==KI:>K@O�LABI:>K@O�D;:@@I:>K@�:>K�;FC:;F:>�:;A:@�LFBM�:D;F9HIBH;:I�C;=KH9A;@R�T@�@H9M�LA�:;A�:I@=�@HCC=;BFGA�=?�=CC=;BH>FBFA@�?=;�:D;F9HIBH;:I�@A9B=;�F>G=IGAEA>B�F>�BMA�?HBH;A�G=IH>B:;P�9:;<=>�=??@AB�E:;\ABO�C;=GFKAK�BM:B�=??@AB�C;=JA9B@�EAAB�MFDM�QH:IFBP�@B:>K:;K@R��S=>@A;G:BF=>�]>B:;F=�@B:??�:CC;A9F:BA�BMA�F>GFB:BF=>�:>K�C:;BF9FC:BAK�F>�BMA�̂=GAE<A;�_BMO�VXỲ�LA<F>:;�F>B;=KH9F>D�BMA�C;=C=@AK�G=IH>B:;P�9:;<=>�=??@AB�C;=D;:EO�:>K�M:GA�;AGFALAK�BMA�KF@9H@@F=>�C:CA;�C=@BAK�=>�BMA�a>GF;=>EA>B:I�bADF@B;P�Uacb�d�XYWeYZWfgR�hMA�?=II=LF>D�9=EEA>B@�:;A�@H<EFBBAK�?=;�P=H;�9=>@FKA;:BF=>�<:@AK�HC=>�:�;AGFAL�<P�ST@R�hMAP�:;A�=;D:>FiAK�:@�DA>A;:I�9=EEA>B@O�:>K�:@�;A@C=>@A@�B=�BMA�QHA@BF=>@�C=@AK�F>�BMA�jF@9H@@F=>�C:CA;R�hMA@A�9=EEA>B@�:;A�>=B�F>BA>KAK�B=�IFEFB�9=>@FKA;:BF=>�=?�9=EEA>B@�@M:;AK�F>KFGFKH:IIP�<P�ST@R���klmlnop�qrsslmtu�vwxyz{|}~�wx��x~}{�w�y���w{~y�~�z��{w|�x��}���w|z{x�zx~�y��w���~�zx~�~w��z�wxy~{}~z�9IFE:BA�IA:KA;@MFC�<P�9=EEFBBF>D�B=�E=GA�B=L:;K@�9:;<=>�>AHB;:IFBPO�LMF9M�L:@�:;BF9HI:BAK�F>�BMA��SIFE:BA�SM:>DA�T9BF=>�NI:>��UVXYZgR�bAKH9F>D�D;AA>M=H@A�D:@�AEF@@F=>@�F@�=>A�=?�BMA�E=@B�9;FBF9:IIP�FEC=;B:>B�;A@C=>@A@�B=�9IFE:BA�9M:>DAR��ABBF>D�:�<=IK�:@CF;:BF=>�B=�:9MFAGA�9:;<=>�>AHB;:IFBP�?=;�]>B:;F=��=GA;>EA>B�=CA;:BF=>@�@AB@�BMA�<:;�?=;�=BMA;�CH<IF9�:>K�C;FG:BA�@A9B=;�=;D:>Fi:BF=>@�B=�?=II=LR��S:;<=>�=??@ABBF>D�F@�:�9;FBF9:I�AIAEA>B�=?�:>P�=;D:>Fi:BF=>:I�A??=;B�B=�:9MFAGA�9:;<=>�>AHB;:IFBPO�}x��~����}�����y�y�~�}~z��}y��}{~�w��}���}{�wx�{z���~�wx���z{}{������x�~z{�y�w���{�w{�~��}�~�wxy�U@AA�?FDH;A�Y�<AI=LgR��;=E�:�9=@BeA??A9BFGA�9:;<=>�E:>:DAEA>B�CA;@CA9BFGAO�BMA�@B:;BF>D�C=F>B�?=;�A??=;B@�B=�<A�9:;<=>�>AHB;:I�F@�A??F9FA>9P�:>K�9=>@A;G:BF=>O�?=II=LAK�<P�@MF?BF>D�B=�I=L�9:;<=>�@=H;9A@�=?�A>A;DP�F>�<HFIKF>D@�:>K�GAMF9IA�?IAAB@R���F>:IIPO�:>�=??@ABBF>D�C;=D;:E�9:>�<A�A??A9BFGA�:B�EFBFD:BF>D�:>P�;AE:F>F>D�AEF@@F=>@R��B�L=HIK�<A�MAIC?HI�B=�@AA�:�9IA:;A;�:;BF9HI:BF=>�=?�BMA�<;=:KA;�I=>DeBA;E�@B;:BADP�?=;�:9MFAGF>D�9:;<=>�>AHB;:IFBP�BM:B�BMA�D=GA;>EA>B�9=EEFBBAK�B=�F>�BMA�VXYZ��SIFE:BA�SM:>DA�T9BF=>�NI:>�O�:>K�BMA�;=IA�BMA�C;=C=@AK�G=IH>B:;P�9:;<=>�=??@AB�C;=D;:E�LFII�CI:P�;AI:BFGA�B=�=BMA;�EA:@H;A@R��
������������������������� �¡�¢�����£�¤¥��¡�¦§̈�©ª¦« ¤£��¬���£��©¦®



��������	
������������
����
������	������������
��������� ��!�"�#��$�%�������� ��!�"����&��	���	�'�()��*
���	������	�+)�� ,�---./012345678010176480./6�

9:;<=>�?�@A=BCD�=>E<FG:CD�H:>=A=FHIJ�KC<=F>L�MEANG>E�O=CP�Q=>AG>=�RCDECD�M<GHC=:GI�STUVWXYZ[\TU�]U[ZX\T�V̂__TX[V�[̀W�UT[\TU�Ta�ZU�WbTVcV[WdeaTb̂VWf�YTĝU[ZXc�TaaVW[�_XThXZd�[̀Z[�iT̂gf�_XTY\fW�Zff\[\TUZg�a\UZUb\Zg�\UbWU[\YWV�aTX�[̀W�bTUVWXYZ[\TUj�ZUf�XWV[TXZ[\TU�Ta�UZ[̂XZg�VcV[WdV�ZUf�ZhX\b̂g[̂XZg�gZUfV�[̀Z[�VWk̂WV[WX�bZXlTUm�SnV�ZXW�Zb[\YWgc�\UYTgYWf�\U�_XT[Wb[\Uh�ZUf�WÙZUb\Uh�hXWWUV_ZbW�\U�[̀W\X�iZ[WXV̀WfV�ZUf�̀ZYW�bTUV\fWXZlgW�[Wb̀U\bZg�Wo_WX[\VW�\U�lT[̀�[̀W�X̂XZg�ZUf�̂XlZU�bTU[Wo[j�[̀Z[�bZU�V̂__TX[�[̀W�pqrstuvwxy�zu{�|\U\V[Xcxy�WaaTX[V�[T�fWYWgT_�Z�YTĝU[ZXc�bZXlTU�TaaVW[V�_XThXZd�[̀Z[�d\h̀[�lX\Uh�\U�Zff\[\TUZg�bZ_\[Zg�aXTd�_̂lg\b�ZUf�_X\YZ[W�VWb[TX�TXhZU\}Z[\TUVm��~[�V̀T̂gf�lW�UT[Wf�[̀Z[�VT̂[̀WXU�]U[ZX\Tj�\Ubĝf\Uh�[̀W�̂XlZU�bTU[Wo[�_XWVWU[V�_ZX[\b̂gZX�b̀ZggWUhWV�aXTd�Z�bZXlTU�VWk̂WV[XZ[\TU�_WXV_Wb[\YWj�V̂b̀�ZV�aXZhdWU[Wf�UZ[̂XZg�gZUfVbZ_WV�ZUf�gTiWX�[XWW�V̂XY\YZg�XZ[WVm���TiWYWXj�bTelWUWa\[V�bZU�lW�V\hU\a\bZU[j�ZUf�ZV�Z�XWV̂g[�iW�y���rq����w��tuty�q�xy�tuv��ytru�r��vrelWUWa\[V�ZV�_ZX[�Ta�[̀W�_XT_TVWf�_XThXZdm��STUVWXYZ[\TU�]U[ZX\T�\V�\U[WXWV[Wf�\U�iTX�\Uh�i\[̀�[̀W�|\U\V[Xc�[T�fWYWgT_�Z__XTZb̀WV�[T�TYWXbTdW�b̀ZggWUhWV�g\�W�[̀W�fWYWgT_dWU[�Ta�Z�_XT�Wb[�ZhhXWhZ[\TU�dWb̀ZU\Vd�[̀Z[�iT̂gf�_̂[�[ThW[̀WX�hWThXZ_̀\bZggc�ZUf�TX�[Wd_TXZggc�f\V_WXVWf�Zb[\Y\[\WV�[̀Z[�XWf̂bW�Wd\VV\TUV�\U�Z�V\d\gZX�dZUUWX�[T�V[XWZdg\UW�[̀W�_XTbWVV�Ta�k̂Zg\ac\Uh�ZUf�k̂ZU[\ac\Uh�Wd\VV\TUV�TaaVW[Vm�S]�ZUf�SnVj�iTX�\Uh�i\[̀�d̂ U\b\_Zg�ZUf�T[̀WX�_ZX[UWXV�bT̂gf�bTggWb[\YWgc�ZUf�Zb[\YWgc�iTX��[TiZXfV�\U�ZhhXWhZ[\Uh�_XT�Wb[V�ZbXTVV�[̀W��XTY\UbW�ZUf��̂X\Vf\b[\TUVm���̀\V�iT̂gf�XWV̂g[�\U�fWYWgT_dWU[�ZUf�\d_gWdWU[Z[\TU�Ta�Y\ZlgW�_XT�Wb[V�[̀Z[�iT̂gf�T[̀WXi\VW�lW�[TT�VdZgg�[T�lW�bTV[�WaaWb[\YW�_ZX[\b\_ZU[V�\U�[̀W�YTĝU[ZXc�dZX�W[j�ZUf�V̂__TX[\Uh�bTggZlTXZ[\YW�_XTY\Ub\Zg�TX�XWh\TUZg�Z__XTZb̀WV�[T�gZUfelZVWf�bZXlTU�VWk̂WV[XZ[\TU�ZbXTVV�]U[ZX\Tm�~U��Wl������STUVWXYZ[\TU�]U[ZX\Tj��TXWV[V�]U[ZX\T�ZUf��̂b�V��Ug\d\[Wf�SZUZfZ�TXhZU\}Wf�Z�iTX�V̀T_�aTX�YZX\T̂V�_XTY\Ub\Zg�V[Z�ẀTgfWXV�\Ubĝf\Uh�ZhX\b̂g[̂XW�ZUf�WUY\XTUdWU[Zg���]V�ZUf�SnV�[T�l̂\gf�ZU�̂UfWXV[ZUf\Uh�Ta�[̀W�bZXlTU�TaaVW[�dZX�W[�ZUf�[T�dZUZhW�Wo_Wb[Z[\TUVm��n[�[̀Z[�[\dW�T̂X�TXhZU\}Z[\TUV�_XT_TVWf�âX[̀WX�f\Vb̂VV\TUV�i\[̀�[̀W�|\U\V[WX�Ta��UY\XTUdWU[�ZUf�

�W�gWZU��̂VW�gWVV�WUWXhc���W�bgWZU��V̂__gc�WUWXhcWaa\b\WU[gc��W�hXWWU��̂VWXWUWiZlgW�WUWXhc�]aaVW[�

������� ¡¢���£�¡ �¢����¤�¥¢¦�§��¡¢�̈�©ª�¢¦�«¬�®̄«° ©̈��± �² ̈��®«°



��������	
������������
����
������	������������
��������� ��!�"�#��$�%�������� ��!�"����&��	���	�'�()��*
���	������	�+)�� ,�---./012345678010176480./6�

9:;<=>?�9@=AB?�>C�DC::=ECF=>?�;A�>@?�G?H?:CI<?A>�=AG�;<I:?<?A>=>;CA�CJ�F?BK:=>CFL�=AG�HC:KA>=FL�9=FECA�MJJN?>�IFCBF=<NO�P@;N�BFCKI�CJ�N>=Q?@C:G?FN�DCK:G�=NN?<E:?�=B=;A�>CR=FGN�G?H?:CI<?A>�CJ�>@;N�IFCICN?G�IFCBF=<O�STUVWXUTU�YW�ZWXU[\Y]ŶWX�_[TUŶWXU�àbcd�efdcd�ghhieijkgl�mcijcieidn�cdlgedh�ej�efd�hdodljmpdke�jq�efd�mcjmjndh�ojlrkegcstgcujk�jqqnden�mcjvcgp�efge�fgod�kje�uddk�tjknihdcdh�ik�efin�hjtrpdkewx=;AN>F?=<;AB�CJ�D=FECA�A?K>F=:;>L�N>F=>?B;?N�=DFCNN�>@?�EFC=G?F�IKE:;D�N?D>CFy�=AG�IF;H=>?�N?D>CFy�;N�=�IF;CF;>LO�z>�RCK:G�E?�G?N;F=E:?�JCF�>@?�{CH?FA<?A>�CJ�MA>=F;C�>C�D:?=F:L�:=L�CK>�;>N�EFC=G?F�:CAB|>?F<�N>F=>?BL�JCF�=D@;?H;AB�D=FECA�A?K>F=:;>L�E?LCAG�>@;N�CJJN?>�IFCBF=<y�;A�CFG?F�>C�IFCH;G?�=�E:K?IF;A>�JCF�C>@?FN�;A�>@?�IKE:;D�=AG�IF;H=>?�N?D>CF�>C�JC::CRO�};>@�=�:CAB|>?F<�N>F=>?BL�;A�I:=D?y�>@?�G?H?:CI<?A>�CJ�=�HC:KA>=FL�CJJN?>�IFCBF=<�=N�=�>=D>;D=:�>CC:�>C�=D@;?H?�N>=>?G�CE~?D>;H?N�JC::CRN�:CB;D=::LO���AC>@?F�IF;CF;>L�;N�>@?�G?H?:CI<?A>�CJ�=�:=AG�KN?�D=FECA�;AH?A>CFLy�R@;D@�>@?�BCH?FA<?A>�DC<<;>>?G�>C�;A�>@?������9:;<=>?�9@=AB?��D>;CA��:=AO�9F;>;D=:�>C�>@;N�RCFQ�;N�=�:CD=::L�F?:?H=A>�ND;?A>;J;D�KAG?FN>=AG;AB�CJ�D=FECA�N?�K?N>F=>;CA�F=>?N�;A�MA>=F;C�?DCNLN>?<Ny�;AD:KG;AB�EC>@�KFE=A�=AG�FKF=:�N?>>?<?A>N�R@?F?�>F??�BFCR>@�=AG�NKFH;H=:�F=>?N�=F?�QACRA�>C�G;JJ?FO���C<?�DCAN?FH=>;CA�=K>@CF;>;?N��?BO��=Q?��;<DC?��?B;CA�9CAN?FH=>;CA��K>@CF;>L��@=H?�;A;>;=>?G�IFC~?D>N�>C�KAG?F>=Q?�:=AG�KN?�D=FECA�;AH?A>CF;?N�CJ�JCF?N>?G�:=AGN�;A�>@?;F�R=>?FN@?GNO��9CAN?FH=>;CA�MA>=F;C�RCK:G�E?�;A>?F?N>?G�;A�I=F>A?F;AB�R;>@�>@?��FCH;AD?�>C�J=D;:;>=>?�QACR:?GB?�=AG�>?D@A;D=:�>F=ANJ?F�;A�=GG;>;CA�>C�F?NCKFD?N�JCF�9�N�=AG�C>@?FN�>C����������������������������������������������������D=FECA�;AH?A>CFLO��P@;N�;N�=�DF;>;D=:�IF?F?�K;N;>?�>C�>@?�:=KAD@�CJ�=�HC:KA>=FL�D=FECA�CJJN?>�IFCBF=<y�=N�;>�R;::�@?:I�?ANKF?�DF?G;E:?�CJJN?>�IFC~?D>N�=AG�NKIICF>�>@?�H=:;G;>L�CJ�D:=;<N�<=G?�EL�EKL?FN�;A�>@?�HC:KA>=FL�<=FQ?>O��}?�=:NC�NKIICF>�;A�IF;AD;I:?�>@?�IF;CF;>L�I:=D?G�CA�?DCNLN>?<�E=N?G�D=FECA�CJJN?>NO�9:?=A�>?D@y�=AG�C>@?F�?A?FBL�F?:=>?G�CJJN?>�IFC~?D>�>LI?N��?OBO�?JJ;D;?ADL�=AG�F?A?R=E:?N��=F?�=:F?=GL�;AD?A>;H;�?G�>@FCKB@�D=I|=AG|>F=G?�;>N?:Jy�=AG�NC�N@CK:G�AC>�E?�>@?�JCDKN�CA�>@;N�HC:KA>=FL�CJJN?>N�IFCBF=<O��:NC�DF;>;D=:�>C�>@?�?N>=E:;N@<?A>�CJ�=�NKDD?NNJK:�HC:KA>=FL�D=FECA�CJJN?>�IFCBF=<�9CAN?FH=>;CA�MA>=F;C�F?DC<<?AGN�>@?��FCH;AD?�DCAN;G?F�>@?�JC::CR;AB��  9CAN;G?F�>@?�;A>?F?N>�=AG�E=FF;?FN�CF�;AD?A>;H?N�>C�I=F>;D;I=>;CA�EL�G;JJ?F?A>�=KG;?AD?N�;A>@;N�IFCBF=<O�9CAN?FH=>;CA�MA>=F;C�=BF??N�>@?��FCH;AD?�N@CK:G�E?�DCAN;G?F;AB�E=FF;?FN>C�I=F>;D;I=>;CA��;A�>@?�D=FECA�<=FQ?>�=AG�>@?�HC:KA>=FL�D=FECA�CJJN?>�IFCBF=<��N??F?NICAN?�>C�¡K?N>;CA�¢�O��MA?�CJ�>@?�J;FN>�N>?IN�;A�G?H?:CI;AB�>@?�IFCBF=<�RCK:G�E?�>CG?>?F<;A?�R@=>�>@?�E=FF;?FN�=F?�>C�>@?�I=F>;D;I=>;CA�CJ�ACA|BCH?FA<?A>�EKN;A?NN?N�=AG;AG;H;GK=:NO���D:?=F�KAG?FN>=AG;AB�CJ�>@?�>=FB?>�=KG;?AD?N�=AG�>@?�=H=;:=E;:;>L�CJ�:=AG�;NA?D?NN=FL�JCF�>@?�IFCBF=<�>C�NKDD??GO£¤¥¦§̈©ª«¬¤¥�¥«ª̈¬¤�£¤®¥̄¬°�±§§«¬¥²�³́ ¬̈°�µ¶·�̧¹µº ³²§¥»ª�¼ª²§�̧µ½



��������	
������������
����
������	������������
��������� ��!�"�#��$�%�������� ��!�"����&��	���	�'�()��*
���	������	�+)�� ,�---./012345678010176480./6�

9 :;�<�=>;?@AB�AC>�D>E>@FGH>IA�FJ�<�KFHH?ILAM�N<;>D�;FKL<@�H<=O>ALIP�;A=<A>PM�JF=F?A=><KC�<ID�G=FHFALFI�AF�N?;LI>;;>;B�KLALQ>I;�<ID�LI�>IP<PLIP�LIDLP>IF?;�KFHH?ILAL>;RL@@�N>�=>S?L=>DT�UI�<DDLALFI�AF�D>E>@FGLIP�<�K?==>IA�?ID>=;A<IDLIP�FJ�AC>�FGGF=A?ILAL>;<ID�N<==L>=;�VW?>;ALFI�XYB�AC>�G=FELIK>�K<I�D=<R�FI�G=>ELF?;�;A?DL>;�FJ�AC>�GFA>IAL<@�JF=K<=NFI�;>S?>;A=<ALFI�FI�G=LE<A>�@<ID;T�ZF=�>[<HG@>\�]C>�̂<=NFI�_>S?>;A=<ALFI�̀FA>IAL<@J=FH�:JJF=>;A<ALFI�LI�aIA<=LF�<ID�̂=>DLA�b<@@>M�̂FI;>=E<ALFIV̂b̂Y�<ID�_F?AC�c<ALFIF̂I;>=E<ALFI�V_ĉY�G<=ALKLG<A>D�LI�<�;A?DM�AC<A�KFIA=LN?A>D�AF�<�dLIL;A=M�FJ�c<A?=<@e>;F?=K>;�<ID�ZF=>;A=M�=>GF=A�>IALA@>D��̂<=NFI�FJJ;>A;�J=FH�<JJF=>;A<ALFI�<ID�AC>GFA>IAL<@�JF=�f<IDFRI>=�̀<=ALKLG<ALFI�LI�aIA<=LFT9 g;A<N@L;C�N<;>@LI>;�AC<A�<@LPI�RLAC�<ID�N?L@D�FI�>[L;ALIP�EF@?IA<=M�G=FP=<H;�<IDG=>ELF?;�C<NLA<A�=>;AF=<ALFI�G=FP=<H;B�LI�<DDLALFI�AF�N?L@DLIP�FI�K?==>IA�KFHH?ILAMhN<;>D�FJJ;>A�G=FP=<H;�V;>>�N>@FRY9 gI;?=>�AC<A�AC>=>�L;�K@<=LAM�<=F?ID�<DDLALFI<@LAM�<ID�<KKF?IALIP�JF=�G=Fi>KA;�AC<A�H<MC<E>�H?@ALG@>�N>I>JLA;B�@LO>�R<A>=�S?<@LAM�<ID�S?<IALAMB�;G>KL>;�<A�=L;O�<ID�NLFDLE>=;LAM�AF<EFLD�DF?N@>�KF?IALIPT9 gI;?=>�AC<A�AC>�EF@?IA<=M�K<=NFI�FJJ;>A�G=FP=<H�L;�;KL>IK>hN<;>D�LI�LA;�<GG=F<KC�AF>I;?=>�>KF@FPLK<@�DLE>=;LAM�<ID�LIA>P=LAMT9 gI;?=>�AC<A�;>S?>;A=<ALFI�NM�R>A@<ID;�L;�LIK@?D>D�LI�AC>�>@LPLN@>�<KALELAL>;T�̂FI;>=E<ALFIaIA<=LF�L;�jklmnlo�pqmp�pql�rstluvwlvpxn�yz>A@<ID�̂FI;>=E<ALFI�_A=<A>PM{�LIK@?D>D�<I<KALFI�AF�RF=O�RLAC�G<=AI>=;�AF�HFILAF=�<ID�<;;>;;�K<=NFI�;>S?>;A=<ALFI�LI�R>A@<ID;T9 :�;G>KLJLK�;?PP>;ALFI�RF?@D�N>�AF�DL;ALIP?L;C�N>AR>>I�>KF;M;A>H�J?IKALFI;�V>TPTB>IC<IK>D�NLFDLE>=;LAMY�<ID�;>=ELK>;|N>I>JLA;�AF�G>FG@>�V>TPTB�>IC<IK>�=>K=><ALFI<@FGGF=A?ILAL>;�F=�G=FA>KALFI�FJ�AC>L=�@LJ>�<ID�G=FG>=AM�J=FH�J@FFD;YT�:�N>I>JLKL<=M�<I<@M;L;RL@@�N>�=>S?L=>D�AF�>I;?=>�R>�<=>�IFA�@?HGLIP�AFP>AC>=�LIKFHG<ALN@>�N>I>JLA;B�LT>T�ACF;>C<GG>ILIP�<A�DLJJ>=>IA�;K<@>�V;LA>h;G>KLJLK�E;T�P@FN<@YT9 F̂I;LD>=�CFR�AC>�EF@?IA<=M�K<=NFI�FJJ;>A�G=FP=<H�H<M�<@LPI�<ID�;?GGF=A�@<ID;>K?=>H>IA�LILAL<ALE>;�FJ�F=P<ILQ<ALFI;�;?KC�<;�KFI;>=E<ALFI�<?ACF=LAL>;�<ID�@<ID�A=?;A;<ID�KFIA=LN?A>�AF�@FIP>ELAM�<ID�H<I<P>H>IA�FJ�FJJ;>A�G=Fi>KA;T9 F̂I;LD>=�CFR�AC>�EF@?IA<=M�K<=NFI�FJJ;>A�G=FP=<H�H<M�<@LPI�RLAC�K?==>IA�<ID�J?A?=>KFI;>=E<ALFI�@<ID�A<[�LIK>IALE>�G=FP=<H;TUA�L;�<�CLPC�G=LF=LAM�AC<A�G=Fi>KA;�D>E>@FG>D�?ID>=�AC>�aIA<=LF�EF@?IA<=M�FJJ;>A�G=FP=<H�H>>A�AC>�;<H>�N<;LK�;>A�FJ�K=LA>=L<�AC<A�<=>�LIA>=I<ALFI<@@M�=>KFPILQ>D�<;�K=LALK<@�>@>H>IA;�FJ�CLPC�S?<@LAM�K<=NFI�FJJ;>A�G=Fi>KA;B�I<H>@M\�=><@B�<DDLALFI<@B�G>=H<I>IAB�E>=LJL<N@>B�<ID�>IJF=K><N@>T�}>�=>KFPILQ>�AC<A�G=FAFKF@;�RL@@�N>�D>E>@FG>D�AF�G=FELD>�AC>�K=LA>=L<�<ID�~��������������������~����������������������������� ���������������



��������	
������������
����
������	������������
��������� ��!�"�#��$�%�������� ��!�"����&��	���	�'�()��*
���	������	�+)�� ,�---./012345678010176480./6�

9:;<=>?:@�9?:�A=B=C?DEFG�D;:HEIJC;:�D:?K=IH�HLD=MN�OH�EM�;�D:E?:EHL�9?:�HP=M=�Q;MEI�I:EH=:E;�H?�Q=�EFICJA=A�EF�;CC�D:?H?I?CM�JFA=:�HP=�B?CJFH;:L�D:?G:;<�H?�=FMJ:=�H:JMH�;FA�I:=AEQECEHL�EF�HP=�<;:@=HN�RSTU�VWWXYXZU�YZ�Y[\�]X̂\�_̀ZàVb�Zcd\eYX̂\f�gXfY\W�XU�Y[Xf�WXfehffXZU�_V_\̀�if\j�kljmmnopqrjsjtuv�wsj�mrjsj�xmrjs�xyzj{mn|j}�mrwm�~x��mrno��mrj��non}ms~�}rx����{xo}n�js��PEM�D:?G:;<�MP?JCA�MJDD?:H��>P=:=�;DD:?D:E;H=��HP=�E<DC=<=FH;HE?F�?9�=�EMHEFG=I?MLMH=<�:=C;H=A�;FA�?:�>;H=:MP=A�DC;FM�;FA�MH:;H=GE=M�A=B=C?D=A�QL�<JFEIED;CEHE=M�;FAI?FM=:B;HE?F�;JHP?:EHE=M�>PEIP�:=MD?FA�H?�C?I;C�F==AM�D:E?:EHE=MN��?:�=�;<DC=��=�EMHEFGJ:Q;F�;FA�:J:;C�9?:=MH�MH:;H=GE=M�;FA�F;HJ:;C�P=:EH;G=�DC;FM�I?JCA�D=:P;DM�Q=�MJDD?:H=A>EHP�;AAEHE?F;C�I;DEH;C�9:?<�HP=�B?CJFH;:L�?99M=H�<;:@=HN��P=�@=L�>?JCA�Q=�H?�A=B=C?D<=IP;FEM<M�H?�=FMJ:=�;AAEHE?F;CEHL�EF�?99M=H�<;:@=H�EFB=MH<=FH�Q=L?FA�HP=�9EF;FIE;C:=M?J:I=M�HP;H�P;B=�;C:=;AL�Q==F�I?<<EHH=A�H?�HP=�E<DC=<=FH;HE?F�?9�MJIP�DC;FMN�CHP?JGP�;A;DH;HE?F��B=:MJM�<EHEG;HE?F��EM�E<DCE=A�EF�:=C;HE?F�H?�HP=��?�Q=F=9EH�;FA��=MECE=FH��?<<JFEHL�?QK=IHEB=M��;A;DH;HE?F�;FA�:=AJIEFG�HP=�BJCF=:;QECEHL�?9�?J:�I?<<JFEHE=M�;FA�F;HJ:;C�MLMH=<M�H?�;FHEIED;H=A�ICE<;H=�IP;FG=��E<D;IHM�;FA�MH:=MM?:M�I?JCA�Q=�<?:=�MH:?FGCL�MH;H=AN��PEM�I?JCA�?IIJ:�=EHP=:�<?:=�=�DCEIEHCL�EF�HP=�D:?G:;<�?QK=IHEB=M�?:�EF�HP=�EA=FHE9EI;HE?F�?9��?������������������������������������� �¡��������¢��¡����£���¤� ���������EFI?:D?:;H=A�EF�HPEM�D:?G:;<�H?�D:?9EC=�HP=�I?�Q=F=9EHMN�N�¥S¦̀\�Y[\̀\�f_\eX]Xe�cV̀ X̀\̀f�YZ�_V̀YXeX_VYXZU�XU�Y[\�eV̀cZU�bV̀§\Y�Y[VY�Y[\�̈XUXfỲ©�f[ZhgWeZUfXW\̀�ª[\U�W\̂\gZ_XUa�Y[\�_̀Z_Zf\W�«UYV̀XZ�̂ZghUYV̀©�eV̀cZU�Z]]f\Yf�_̀ZàVb¬¤®�¢�®����̄����®°������±���®��£��®��¡��������²¤�������³������́�����µ�®�������� �����®��¶�MJ::?JFAEFG�I;:Q?F�?99M=HM�;FA�I;:Q?F�<;:@=HM�<;L�PEFA=:�JDH;@=�?9�;�B?CJFH;:L�I;:Q?F�?99M=H�D:?G:;<�;<?FGMH�D?H=FHE;C�D;:HEIED;HEFG�?:G;FE·;HE?FM��;M�>=CC�;M�D:?MD=IHEB=�D:?K=IH�A=B=C?D=:M��C;FA?>F=:M��;FA�D:EB;H=�M=IH?:N��:;FMD;:=FIL�;:?JFA�?99M=H�D:?H?I?CM��;FA��I?<<JFEI;HE?FM��?JH:=;IP�;FA�=FG;G=<=FH�;:?JFA�HP=�̧FH;:E?�G?B=:F<=��£���°�®����MH:;H=GL�9?:�;IPE=BEFG�I;:Q?F�F=JH:;CEHL��EM�F=I=MM;:L�H?�QJECA�HP=�<;:@=H�?9�Q?HP�QJL=:M�;FA�M=CC=:MN���F?HP=:�@=L�Q;::E=:�9?:�HP=M=�H;:G=H�;JAE=FI=M�<;L�Q=�ME<DCL�C;I@�?9�EFI=FHEB=�9?:�HP=<�H?�D;:HEIED;H=�EF�HP=�D:?G:;<�E9�HP=:=�EM�F?�9EF;FIE;C�G;EF�H?�Q=�P;AN����M=FM=�?9�I?:D?:;H=�?:�D=:M?F;C�:=MD?FMEQECEHL�EF�:=C;HE?F�H?�ICE<;H=�IP;FG=�>ECC�Q=�;F�E<D?:H;FH�D:=IJ:M?:�H?�D;:HEIED;HE?F�9?:�HP=M=�G:?JDMN��=C;H=A�H?�HP=�;Q?B=��;�C;I@�?9�H:JMH�;FA�I:=AEQECEHL�EF�I;:Q?F�F=JH:;CEHL�MH;H=<=FHM��;FA�I;:Q?F�?99M=HM�EF�D;:HEIJC;:�EM�;�Q;::E=:�H?�JDH;@=N�¹==�9?:�=�;<DC=�HP=�;F;CLMEM�I?FAJIH=A�QL�HP=�º���JAEH?:�»=F=:;C�EF�¼½¾¿���>PEIP�EFAEI;H=A�HP;H�D:?K=IHM�A=B=C?D=A�H?�MJDD?:H�HP=�º����°�®�����£����®������¤�®����¶������������ � �������À¤����®������������  �����������>P;H�>?JCA�P;B=�P;DD=F=A�EF�HP=�;QM=FI=�?9�HP=�<;:@=HN��Á;:@=H�A=MEGF�;FA�JM=�?9�MH:EFG=FH�?99M=H�D:?H?I?CM�EF�HP=�B?CJFH;:L�<;:@=H�>?JCA�P=CD�;CC=BE;H=�MJIP�I?FI=:FM��;M�ÂÃÄÅÆÇÈÉÊËÃÄ�ÌÄÊÉÇËÃ�ÂÃÍÄÎËÏ�ÐÆÆÊËÄÑ�ÒÓÇËÏ�ÔÕÖ�×ØÔÙ ÒÑÆÄÚÉ�ÛÉÑÆ�××Ô



��������	
������������
����
������	������������
��������� ��!�"�#��$�%�������� ��!�"����&��	���	�'�()��*
���	������	�+)�� ,�---./012345678010176480./6�

9:;<=�>?�>@ABCD�@:EE;?B@>AB:?F�@>EG>BH?�A:�I>BFD�G;J<B@�>9>ID?DFF�:K�ALD�H:CDI?ED?AMF�NOOPQNRS�TQ�NRSUVWUXY�RNPZQX�XV[TPN\UT]̂��_SV�NWVPNYV�OPURV�OVP�TQXXV�Q̀�RNPZQX�UX�TSV�aNXNbUNX�WQ\[XTNP]�Q̀̀cVT�dNPeVT�cONRV�fgĥhiTQXXV�UX�jklmn�Uc�\UeV\]�TQQ�\Qo�TQ�c[OOQPT�TSV�bVWV\QOdVXT�Q̀�[PZNX�̀QPVcT�QP�QTSVP�cdN\\VP�cRN\V�VRQc]cTVd�ZNcVb�OPQpVRT�T]OVĉ�qXV�oN]�TQ�NbbPVcc�TSUc�ZNPPUVP�Uc�TQ�RQXcUbVP�N�OPURV�̀\QQP�̀QP�TSV�WQ\[XTNP]�dNPeVT�TSNT�UXRVXTUWUrVc�OPQpVRTc�oUTS�SUYSVP�RNOUTN\�NXb�QOVPNTUXY�RQcTcs�Z[T�oSURS�N\cQ�OPQWUbV�SUYSVP�RQtZVXV̀UTc�fV̂Ŷ�VRQc]cTVd�RQXXVRTUWUT]s�\̀QQb�PUce�NTTVX[NTUQXs�VTR̂n̂��uV\NTVb�TQ�TSV�NZQWV�ONPNYPNOScs�TSV�RQcTc�NccQRUNTVb�oUTS�v[NXTÙURNTUQXs�WVPÙURNTUQXs�NXb�QXYQUXY�dQXUTQPUXY�Q̀�RNPZQX�Q̀̀cVT�OPQpVRTc�RNX�ZV�N�ZNPPUVP�TQ�ONPTURUONTUQX�UX�TSV�dNPeVTs�ONPTUR[\NP\]�̀PQd�cdN\\VP�cRN\V�OPQpVRTc�oSVPV�c[RS�TPNXcNRTUQX�RQcTc�RNX�dNeV�OPQpVRTc�ÙXNXRUN\\]�[XWUNZ\V̂�_SV�wPQWUXRVixUXUcTP]�cSQ[\b�RQXcUbVP�NOOPQNRSVc�oSURS�RQ[\b�dUTUYNTV�TSUc�PUces�c[RS�Nc�N\\QoUXY�̀QP�NYYPVYNTUQX�Q̀�cdN\\VP�cRN\V�Q̀̀cVT�OPQpVRTc�Q̀�N�cUdU\NP�XNT[PV�UXTQ�N�\NPYVP�OPQpVRT�oSURS�oQ[\b�OPQWUbV�VRQXQdUVc�Q̀�cRN\V�NXb�PVb[RV�OVP�[XUT�RQcTc�NccQRUNTVb�oUTS�v[NXTÙURNTUQXs�WVPÙURNTUQX�NXb�dQXUTQPUXŶ��aq�NXb�ay�VzOVPUVXRV�UX�TSV�bVcUYX�NXb�bV\UWVP]�Q̀�WQ\[XTNP]�ZVcT�dNXNYVdVXT�OPQYPNdc�Q̀P�NYPUR[\T[PN\�OPQb[RVPc�SNc�QZcVPWVb�NXb�bVdQXcTPNTVb�TSNT�TSV�Y[UbV\UXVc�NXb�VzOVRTNTUQXc�d[cT�ZV�R\VNP�NXb�TSNT�QX�TSV�YPQ[Xb�c[OOQPT�Uc�eV]�TQ�VXc[PUXY�TSNT�TSV�OPQpVRTc�UdO\VdVXTVb�oU\\�NRSUVWV�TSV�YQN\ĉ�aqs�ayc�NXb�TSVUP�\QRN\�d[XURUON\�ONPTXVPc�NPV�N\PVNb]�oV\\�OQcUTUQXVb�NXb�RQ[\b�ZV�UdOQPTN{|�ONPTXVP}�UX�̀NRU\UTNTUXY�OPQpVRT�NYYPVYNTUQX�QX�N�oNTVPcSVb�ZNcUc�NXb�NT�PVYUQXN\�cRN\Vĉ�y�\QRN\UrVb�NRRPVbUTVb�TVNd�RQ[\b�PVOPVcVXT�cVWVPN\�RQXcVPWNTUQX�N[TSQPUTUVcs��ONPTXVPc�NXb�d[XURUON\UTUVc�TQ�c[OOQPT�TSV�OPQYPNd�O\NXXUXYs�Q[TPVNRS�TQ�\NXbQoXVPc�̀QP�dNPeVTUXY�NXb�OPQOVPT]�NYYPVYNTUQXs�TPNReUXY�NXb�PVOQPTUXŶ���~VWVPTSV\Vccs�NYYPVYNTUQX�oUTS�N�X[dZVP�Q̀�bÙ̀VPVXT�OPUWNTV�\NXbQoXVPc�oU\\�ZV�RSN\\VXYUXŶ���QXY�TVPd�cVR[PUT]�fÛV̂�OVPdNXVXR]ns�oSU\V�RPUTURN\s�oU\\�ZV�OPQZ\VdNTUR�Ù�\NXbQoXVPc�NPV�PVv[UPVb�TQ�RQddUT�TQ�lkk�]VNPĉ��\VzUZU\UT]�UX�ZQTS�RNcVc�Uc�VXRQ[PNYVb�UX�QPbVP�TQ�NbbPVcc�TSVcV�OQTVXTUN\���OPUWNTV�\NXbQoXVP�ZNPPUVPc�TQ�ONPTURUONTUQX̂��SQ[\b�TSV�wPQWUXRV�VzO\QPV�OPQWUcUQX�Q̀�cSQPTVP�TVPd�WQ\[XTNP]�Q̀̀cVT�OPQpVRTcs�Ù�TSV�OPQpVRT�Uc�[̀XRTUQXUXY�NXb�cTU\\�UX�O\NRV�NT�TSV�VXb�Q̀�TSV�TVPds�TSV�Q̀̀cVT�RQ[\b�ZV�PVXVoVb�QP�TSV�OPQpVRT�RQ[\b�ZV�Q̀̀VPVb�UX�TSV�dNPeVT�Ù�TSV�QPUYUXN\�O[PRSNcVP�XQ�\QXYVP�PVv[UPVb�TSV�Q̀̀cVT̂���xQcT�aycs�PV\]�QX�dVdZVP�d[XURUON\UTUVc�TQ�̀[Xb�TSVUP�OPQYPNdĉ��ay��UXWQ\WVdVXT�UX�TSV��Q\[XTNP]�aNPZQX�q̀ c̀VT�wPQYPNd�oU\\�PVv[UPV�d[XURUON\�bUcR[ccUQX�NXb�NOOPQWN\�NXb�oQ[\b�\UeV\]�PVv[UPV�cQdV�NccUcTNXRV�̀PQd�TSV�wPQWUXRV̂��SU\V�N�WQ\[XTNP]�RNPZQX�Q̀̀cVT�OPQYPNd�oU\\�YVXVPNTV�̀[Xbc�̀PQd�TSV�cN\V�Q̀�RNPZQX�Q̀̀cVTcs�UT�Uc�NXTURUONTVb�TSNT�cTNPTt[O�̀[Xbc�oU\\�ZV�PVv[UPVb�UX�NbbUTUQX�TQ�cQdV�dVNc[PV�Q̀�QXYQUXY�̀UXNXRUN\�c[OOQPT̂���T�SNc�ZVVX�c[YYVcTVb�TSV�̀[Xbc�YVXVPNTVb�oU\\�\UeV\]�XQT�RQWVP�TSV�RQcT�Q̀�OPQYPNd�NbdUXUcTPNTUQX�[X\Vcc�TSV�v[NXTÙURNTUQX�NXb�WVPÙURNTUQX�OPQRVcc�Uc�cUdO\V̂���������������������������������������������������� ���������������



��������	
������������
����
������	������������
��������� ��!�"�#��$�%�������� ��!�"����&��	���	�'�()��*
���	������	�+)�� ,�---./012345678010176480./6�

9::;<;=>?@;<A�BCDEF�GHIJFKLMNDHI�OINMKDH�PIQFKJNMIQJ�NCF�DINFIN�HR�NCF�SKHTKMU�NH�VHINDIPHPJEW�MQQ�NH�NCF�VMKXHI�JFYPFJNKMNDHI�MVNDLDNDFJZ�NCF�EMIQ�XFEHITDIT�NH�VHIJFKLMNDHI�MPNCHKDNDFJ�DJ�MEKFMQW�SKHNFVNFQ�EMIQ�[CFKF�NCFJF�MVNDLDNDFJ�[HPEQ�XF�SKHUHNFQ\�]FYPDKFUFINJ�MJJHVDMNFQ�[DNC�NCF�VPKKFIN�PJF�HR�NCF�EMIQ�VHPEQ�XF�UHKF�REF̂DXEF�JH�MJ�NH�SKHUHNF�NCF�DILHELFUFIN�HR�NCF�G_\�̀CF�aKHLDIVF�DJ�FIVHPKMTFQ�NH�VHIJDQFK�MEEH[DIT�VPKKFINEW�PIQFLFEHSFQ�SKHNFVNFQ�EMIQ�NH�YPMEDRW�RHK�MI�FICMIVFQ�YPMEDNW�HR�VMKXHI�JFYPFJNKMNDHI�[CFKF�MSSKHSKDMNF�bF\T\�VHILFKNDIT�TKMJJEMIQJ�NH�RHKFJNc\�̀CF�LMEPF�HR�NCF�MVNDLDNW�VHPEQ�SHNFINDMEEW�XF�[FDTCNFQ\��C̀F�aKHLDIVF�DJ�MEJH�FIVHPKMTFQ�NH�VHIJDQFK�NCF�SHNFINDME�RHK�M�CDTCFK�JMEF�SKDVF�SFK�NHIIF�NH�SKHUHNF�JFYPFJNKdefgh�ijjgkel�fh�dkidl�mfen�d�onidpfikq�rdksgh�jggetkfhe�ueg�gjjlie�nfvn�SKDVFQ�QFLFEHSMXEF�EMIQJc\��̀CF�DIVEPJDHI�HR�VHwXFIFRDNJ�DJ�UFMIN�NH�MQQKFJJ�NCDJ�NH�JHUF�F̂NFIN\�̀CMN�DJ�FVHJWJNFU�JFKLDVFJ�MKF�UHKF�LMEPMXEF�[CFKF�NCFW�MKF�DI�CDTC�QFUMIQ�bFT\�DI�CDTCEW�SHSPEMNFQ�PKXMIDxFQ�MKFMJc\��_EJH�EMIQ�MIQ�HRRJFN�SKHyFVN�UMIMTFUFIN�MIQ�NDUFwEMT�bDI�VMKXHI�VMSNPKFc�MKF�THDIT�NH�XF�JDTIDRDVMIN�RMVNHKJ�NH�NCF�VHJN�HR�VKFQDNJ�MIQ�NCF�MLMDEMXDEDNW�HR�HRRJFNJ�RHK�SPKVCMJF\�zDIMEEWZ�EMIQ�[DEE�XF�NCF�EDUDNDIT�RMVNHK�DI�JPSSHKNDIT�LHEPINMKW�HRRJFNJ�DI�KFTDHIJ�ED{F�NCF�|KFMNFK�̀HKHINH�_KFM\�}MIQ�VHJNJ�MIQ�QFUMIQ�MKF�LFKW�CDTC\�~PIDVDSME�MIQ�G_�JNMRR�CMLF�DIQDVMNFQ�NCMN�F̂DJNDIT�UPIDVDSME�SMK{J�MIQ�VHIJFKLMNDHI�MKFMJ�MKF�MEUHJN�MN�VMSMVDNW�RHK�IMNPKMEDxMNDHI\��MNPKMEDxMNDHI�VHUSFNFJ�[DNC�HNCFK�SMK{�MVNDLDNDFJ�MIQ�JNM{FCHEQFKJ\��FVPKFUFIN�HR�MQQDNDHIME�EMIQJ�DJ�THDIT�NH�XF�IFVFJJMKW�NH�JPSSHKN�LHEPINMKW�HRRJFNNDIT\��C̀FKFRHKF�NCF�LHEPINMKW�VMKXHI�HRRJFN�SKHTKMU�JCHPEQ�VHIJDQFK�DIVEPQDIT�RDIMIVDME�JPSSHKN�RHK�EMIQ�JFVPKFUFIN�MIQ�HK�MEDTI�[DNC�VHUSEFUFIN�F̂DJNDIT�EMIQ�JFVPKFUFIN�SKHTKMUJ\����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������GHIJFKLMNDHI�OINMKDH�KFVHUUFIQJ�NCMN�NCF�~DIDJNKW�JNKFITNCFI�SMKNIFKJCDSJ�[DNC�EHVME�HKTMIDxMNDHIJ�[CH�MEKFMQW�CMLF�F̂SFKDFIVF�[DNC�NCF�SKHyFVNJ�NCMN�MKF�XFDIT�FIVHPKMTFQ�NCKHPTC�NCF�SKHSHJFQ�LHEPINMKW�VMKXHI�HRRJFN�SKHTKMU\�GHIJFKLMNDHI�MPNCHKDNDFJ�MKF�VHUUPIDNWwXMJFQ�HKTMIDxMNDHIJ�[DNC�M�LFKW�JPVVFJJRPE�NKMV{�KFVHKQ�DI�CMXDNMN�KFJNHKMNDHI�SKHyFVNJ�MIQ�FILDKHIUFINMEZ��EMIQ�PJF�MIQ�[MNFKJCFQ�SEMIIDIT\��G_J�CMLF�F̂DJNDIT�JNKHIT�KFEMNDHIJCDSJ�[DNC�KFTDHIME�MIQ�EHVME�UPIDVDSMEDNDFJZ�EMIQH[IFKJZ��HIw|HLFKIUFIN�OKTMIDxMNDHIJ�b�|OJcZ�JVCHHE�XHMKQJZ�XPJDIFJJFJ�MIQ�VHIJPENMINJZ�MIQ�[F�VHIQPVN�KFJNHKMNDHI�SKHyFVNJ�HI�XHNC�SPXEDV�MIQ�SKDLMNF�EMIQJZ�DIVEPQDIT�MTKDVPENPKME�EMIQJ\�GHIJFKLMNDHI�OINMKDH�VHUUFIQJ�NCF�aKHLDIVF�RHK�SKHSHJDIT�NCF�FJNMXEDJCUFIN�HR�JVDFIVF�MIQ�NFVCIDVME�[HK{DIT�TKHPSJ�MIQ�FIVHPKMTFJ�NCF�FJNMXEDJCUFIN�HR�M�SKHTKMU�QFLFEHSUFIN�[HK{DIT�TKHPS\��GHIJFKLMNDHI�OINMKDH�DJ�DINFKFJNFQ�DI�SMKNDVDSMNDIT�NH�SKHLDQF�DISPN�DI�QFLFEHSDIT�SKHVFQPKFJZ�UHIDNHKDIT�SKHNHVHEJ\��BF�MKF�MEJH�DINFKFJNFQ�DI�SKHLDQDIT�DISPN�NCMN�CFESJ�VHIJDQFK�NKMIJSMKFIVW�MIQ�MEDTIUFIN�[DNC�F̂DJNDIT�MIQ�RPNPKF�DIDNDMNDLFJ�NCMN�SKHLDQF�NCF�VHwXFIFRDNJ�XFDIT�SKHUHNFQ�NCKHPTC�NCF�LHEPINMKW�VMKXHI�HRRJFN�SKHTKMU\��|PDQFEDIFJ�JCHPEQ�XF�FMJW�NH�DINFKSKFN�MIQ�PJFZ�MIQ�KFJHPKVFJ�RHK�NCF�IFVFJJMKW�NFVCIDVME�JPSSHKN�RHK�SKHTKMU�DUSEFUFINMNDHI�JCHPEQ�XF�SKHLDQFQ�NH�RHJNFK�SMKNDVDSMNDHI\����� ¡¢£¤¥¦���§�¥¤¢¦����̈�©¦ª�«¡¡¥¦�¬�®¢¦ª�̄°±�²³̄´ ¬¡�µ¤�¶¤¬¡�²²·



��������	
������������
����
������	������������
��������� ��!�"�#��$�%�������� ��!�"����&��	���	�'�()��*
���	������	�+)�� ,�---./012345678010176480./6�

9:�;<==�>?�<@ABC:DE:�:B�?EFGC?�:HD:�F:DEIDCIF�DEI�ACB:BJB=F�D=<KE�;<:H�ADC:<J<ADE:LF�>GF<E?FF�MNOPQRPST�OUV�RUQSNSTQTW�XYN�SZO[M\S]�R̂�[_URPRMO\RQRST�ONS�\R̀S\a�MONQRPRMOUQT�bcYQd�OT�PNSOQYNT�YN�M_NPdOTSNTe]�O\RfU[SUQ�Ŷ�QdS�Ŷ̂TSQ�MNYfNO[�gRQd�P\R[OQS�PdOUfS�TQNOQSfRST]�OTTSQ�[OUOfS[SUQ�OMMNYOPdST]�OUV�SUhRNYU[SUQO\�OUV�\OUV�_TS�M\OUURUf]�gR\\�dS\M�QY�RVSUQR̂a�YMMYNQ_URQRST�̂YN�MONQRPRMOQRYUW��iT�MNShRY_T\a�UYQSV�gOQSNTdSV�OUV�T_cgOQSNTdSV�TQ_VRST�OUV�M\OUT]�ŶQSU�RVSUQR̂a�MYQSUQRO\�MNRYNRQRST�̂YN�dOcRQOQ�NSTQYNOQRYU]�QNSS�M\OUQRUf]�NRMONROU�c_̂̂SN]�OUV�TQYN[�gOQSN�YN�fNSSU�RÛNOTQN_PQ_NS�MNYjSPQT�OUV�YQdSNT�QdOQ�PY_\V�cSPY[S�Ŷ̂TSQ�MNYjSPQT�OUV�MNYV_PS�QdS�VSTRNSV�PYkcSUŜRQTW��ldS�mNYhRUPS�PY_\V�O\TY�TSQ�O�[OZR[_[�O[Y_UQ�QdOQ�RQ�gR\\�M_NPdOTS�̂NY[�O�fRhSU�MNYjSPQ]�gdRPd�gY_\V�OhYRV�O�TRQ_OQRYU�gdSNS�\ONfSkTPO\S]�\YgkPYTQ�MNYjSPQT�PYUQNRc_QS�VRTMNYMYNQRYUOQS\a�QY�QdS�Ŷ̂TSQ�[OǸSQ�MYY\W�ldRT�TRQ_OQRYU�YPP_NNSV�RU�no]�gdSNS�QgY�MNYjSPQT�gSNS�NSTMYUTRc\S�̂YN�[YNS�QdOU�pqr�Ŷ�QdS�Ŷ̂TSQT�M_NPdOTSV�ca�QdS�no�fYhSNU[SUQ�QY�[SSQ�RQT�PONcYU�US_QNO\RQa�PY[[RQ[SUQW��iUYQdSN�OMMNYOPd�QY�̂OPR\RQOQRUf�PY[[_URQa�MONQRPRMOQRYU�gY_\V�cS�QY�R[M\S[SUQ�OU�OVVSV�MNRPS�̂YN�MNYjSPQT�QdOQ�POU�VS[YUTQNOQS�PY[[_URQakcOTSV�YgUSNTdRM�OUVsYN�[OUOfS[SUQW�t_Pd�OU�OMMNYOPd�gOT�_TSV�T_JJ?FFuG==v�<E�:H?�w<E<F:Cv�Bu�xE?CKvLF�y??IkRUklONR̂̂�MNYfNO[�QY�MNYP_NS�NSUSgOc\S�SUSNfa�̂NY[�OcYNRfRUO\�OUV�PY[[_URQa�YgUSV�MNYjSPQTW��z{|}~|�����}���~������{���{����{��|�{~��~��}~���}�}~|����}��}}~��~�|��|}����U�XSc��q�p�oYUTSNhOQRYU��UQONRY]�XYNSTQT��UQONRY�OUV��_P̀T��U\R[RQSV�oOUOVO�YNfOUR�SV�O�gYǸTdYM�̂YN�hONRY_T�MNYhRUPRO\�TQÒSdY\VSNT�RUP\_VRUf�OfNRP_\Q_NS�OUV�SUhRNYU[SUQO\�UYUkfYhSNU[SUQ�YNfOUR�OQRYUT�b���Te�OUV�oiT�QY�c_R\V�OU�_UVSNTQOUVRUf�Ŷ�QdS�PONcYU�Ŷ̂TSQ�[OǸSQ�OUV�QY�[OUOfS�SZMSPQOQRYUTW��XY\\YgRUf�QdS�TSTTRYU]�QdS�MONQRPRMOUQT�TSUQ�O�\SQQSN�QY��RURTQSN�Ŷ��UhRNYU[SUQ�OUV�o\R[OQS�odOUfS]��\SU��_NNOa�\OTQ�gRUQSN�NS�_STQRUf�SUfOfS[SUQ�gRQd�QdS��RURTQSNs�RURTQNa�QY�VRTP_TT�dYg�gS�PY_\V�PY\\SPQRhS\a�SUfOfS�RU�QdS�NSf_\OQYNa�OUV�hY\_UQONa�PONcYU�[OǸSQTW��ldS�mNYhRUPS�PY_\V�MNY[YQS�QdS�TMSPR̂RP�RUhY\hS[SUQ�Ŷ�o��OUV�oiT�ca�̂OPR\RQOQRUf�O�̂Y\\Yg�_M�TSTTRYU�gRQd�oiT�OUV�YQdSNT�QY�OTTRTQ�RU�VSTRfU�OUV�R[M\S[SUQOQRYU�Ŷ�QdS�hY\_UQONa�OUV�OUa�NSf_\OQYNa�MNYfNO[�̂YP_TSV�YU�UOQ_NO\�dSNRQOfSsTaTQS[TW��oYUTSNhOQRYU��UQONRY�gY_\V�cS�RUQSNSTQRUf�RU�dS\MRUf�QY�̂OPR\RQOQS�QdRTW�ldS�gScRUONT�QdS�mNYhRUPS�dS\V�OcY_Q�QdRT�MNYMYTSV�MNYfNO[�RU��SPS[cSN��q�p�TMSPR̂RSV�Ŷ\\Yg�_M�TSTTRYUT�̂YN�O�NOUfS�RU�TQÒSdY\VSNT�OUV�OU�RUhRQOQRYU�QY�MONQRPRMOQS�RU�QSPdURPO\�gYǸRUf�fNY_MTW��ldRT�RT�gS\PY[SVW��ldS�USPSTTONa�QR[S�OUV�NSTY_NPS�PY[[RQ[SUQT�QY�MONQRPRMOQS�RU�OU�Ŝ̂SPQRhS�[OUUSN�TdY_\V�cS�PYUTRVSNSV]�̀SSMRUf�RU�[RUV�QdS�NOUfS�OUV�N̂S�_SUPa�Ŷ�̂SSVcOP̀�NS�_STQT�YU�P_NNSUQ�mNYhRUPRO\�P\R[OQS�PdOUfS�RURQROQRhST]�RUP\_VRUf�P_NNSUQ�fNOUQ�OMM\RPOQRYU�MNYPSTTSTW���ShSNQdS\STT]�O�U_[cSN�Ŷ�oiT�ONS�P_NNSUQ\a�SUfOfRUf�RU�TY[S�PONcYU�Ŷ̂TSQQRUf�OPQRhRQRST�OUV�PY_\V�MYQSUQRO\\a�c_R\V�YU�OUV�\ShSNOfS�QdSRN�gYǸ�QY�MONQRPRMOQS�RU�O�mNYhRUPRO\�hY\_UQONa�PONcYU�Ŷ̂TSQQRUf�MNYfNO[W��lY�NSRQSNOQS]���LF�K?E?CD==v�HD�?�BEkQdSkfNY_UV������ ¡¢£¤���¥�£¢ ¤����¦�§¤̈�©��£¤�ª�«¬ ¤̈�®̄�°±² «ª��³¢�́¢ª��°°µ



��������	
������������
����
������	������������
��������� ��!�"�#��$�%�������� ��!�"����&��	���	�'�()��*
���	������	�+)�� ,-�.../0123456789121287591/07�

:;<:=>:?@:A�>?@BCD>?E�F:>?E�GH:�<=>IJ=K�D:B>L:=K�JE:?G�>?�J�?CIF:=�MN�<=ML>?@>JB�J?D�BM@JB�<=ME=JIO�>?@BCD>?E�GH:�PQ�R>BB>M?�S=::�T=ME=JI�B:JD�FK�UM=:OGO�V?GJ=>MW��XYO�@J?�<=MIMG:�BJ?DMZ?:=�J@G>M?�J?D�D:L:BM<�<=M[:@GO�>?�JDD>G>M?�GM�J�?CIF:=�MN�XYO�HJL>?E�GH:�:;<:=G>O:�GM�<MG:?G>JBBK�J@G�>?�OMI:�@J<J@>GK�JO�<=M[:@G�L:=>N>:=OW�\]^_̀a�bcdefgchbcài�jgklbcbmean�obp�miggq�h̀ c̀pbhbcar�n_gsiq�lb�tfegfeaeubq�ec�a_btfgtgnbq�vcàfeg�dgiscàfw�j̀flgc�gmmnban�xfgpf̀hyXM?O:=LJG>M?�V?GJ=>M�=:@MII:?DO�GHJG�LMBC?GJ=K�@J=FM?�MNNO:GO�<=ME=JI�OC<<M=G�<=M[:@GO�GHJG�=:NB:@G�BM@JBBK�J?D�OG=JG:E>@JBBK�D:G:=I>?:D�<=>M=>G>:OA�OC@H�JO�GHMO:�>D:?G>N>:D�>?�XY�ZJG:=OH:D�<BJ?O�M=�IC?>@><JB�NM=:OG�M=�?JGC=JB�H:=>GJE:�<BJ?OW��z?L>=M?I:?GJB�@M{F:?:N>GO�@MCBD�F:�<=>M=>G>|:D�FK�=:E>M?A�J=:J�M=�ZJG:=OH:DW�}?�OMI:�ZJG:=OH:DOA�?CG=>:?G�BMJD>?E�>O�J?�>?@=:D>FBK�LJBCJFB:�@M{F:?:N>G�~>W:W��J�:��>I@M:�ZJG:=OH:D�J?D��J�:�z=>:�FJO>?�W��YBOM�>?��GHMO:�ZJG:=OH:DO�J?D�IJ?K�MGH:=OA�NBMMD�=>O��I>G>EJG>M?�IJK�HJL:�JDD>G>M?JB�J?D�<MG:?G>JBBK�IM=:�LJBC:W���UC=GH:=�O<:@>N>@�:;JI<B:O�MN�@M{F:?:N>GO�>?@BCD:��� UBMMD�=:O>B>:?@K���z@MBME>@JB�EMMDO�J?D�O:=L>@:O�J?JBKO:O�@MI<B:G:D�FK�X�X�D:IM?OG=JG:�GH:LJBC:�MN�Z:GBJ?DOA�NM=:OGO�J?D�E=JOOBJ?DO�~RC?>@><JB��JGC=JB�YOO:G�}?>G>JG>L:��T>BMG�NM=�GH:�:E>M?�MN�T::B��Q����>?�GH:�<=ML>O>M?�MN�NBMMD�=:O>B>:?@K�O:=L>@:OW�UBMMD>?E�>O�J�IJ[M=�@B>IJG:@HJ?E:�>I<J@G�:;<:=>:?@:D�>?�V?GJ=>MW�SH>O�OHMCBD�F:�H>EH�M?�GH:�<=>M=>GK�B>OG�ZH:?=:L>:Z>?E�@M{F:?:N>GO�J?D�>?@BCD:�I>G>EJG>M?�MN�:;@:OO>L:�:=MO>M?�JO�J�@MI<M?:?GWUC=GH:=IM=:A�GH:�NM@CO�M?�FC>BD>?E�?JGC=JB�@J<>GJB�B:?DO�>GO:BN�GM�<=>M=>G>|JG>M?�MN�<=M[:@G�GK<:O�GHJG�JDD=:OO�GH:�>?N=JOG=C@GC=:�D:N>@>GA�J��:K�@HJBB:?E:�NJ@>?E�V?GJ=>MW�XM{F:?:N>GO�=:B:LJ?G�GM�ZJG:={=:BJG:D�>?N=JOG=C@GC=:�>?@BCD:�IJ>?GJ>?>?E�M=�:?HJ?@>?E�ZJG:=�FJBJ?@:�~>I<=ML>?E�OGM=I�ZJG:=�IJ?JE:I:?G�A�NBMMD�I>G>EJG>M?A�=:DC@G>M?�MN�<MBBCGJ?G�BMJD>?EO�~B>?�:D�GM�JOO>I>BJG>L:�@J<J@>GK�J?D�ZJOG:ZJG:=�>?N=JOG=C@GC=:�A�<=MG:@G>M?�MN�D=>?�>?E�ZJG:=�OMC=@:O�~�CJB>GK�J?D��CJ?G>GK�A�J?D�:=MO>M?�@M?G=MBW�SH:O:�<=M[:@G�GK<:O�JBOM�<=ML>D:�J�F=MJD�=J?E:�MN�OM@>JB�J?D�@MIIC?>GK�F:?:N>GOA�ZH>@H�J=:�I:?G>M?:D�>?�GH:�D>O@COO>M?�<J<:=�FCG�?MG�:BJFM=JG:D�C<M?�~:WEWA�ZJG:=�O:@C=>GK�W�� YDD>G>M?JBBKA�GH:�@M{F:?:N>GO�MN�E=::?�>?N=JOG=C@GC=:�@J?�F:�>?@=:JO:D�FK�J�H>EH:=�D>L:=O>GK�MNGH:�GK<:O�MN�E=::?�>?N=JOG=C@GC=:�<=M[:@GO�~:WEW�<J=�OA�OG=::G�G=::�<=M[:@GOA�:G@��JO�Z:BB�JOH>EH:=�F>MD>L:=O>GK�CO:D�Z>GH>?�<=M[:@GOW�YBBMZ>?E�NM=�JDJ<G>L:�D:O>E?�J?D�IJ?JE:I:?G�MND>L:=O:�E=::?�>?N=JOG=C@GC=:�<=M[:@GO�J?D�>??MLJG>L:�<=J@G>@:O�JG�OIJBB{O@JB:O�@MCBD�>?@=:JO:GH:�ML:=JBB�@M{F:?:N>GO�JOOM@>JG:D�Z>GH�GH>O�<=ME=JIW� }?�GH:�H>EHBK�N=JEI:?G:D�BJ?DO@J<:�MN�OMCGH:=?�V?GJ=>MA�?JGC=JB�H:=>GJE:�OKOG:I�=:OGM=JG>M?HJO�O>E?>N>@J?G�<MG:?G>JBA�<=ML>D>?E�J�=J?E:�MN�@M{F:?:N>GOW�z?HJ?@>?E�@M??:@G>L>GK�J?D=:OGM=JG>M?�MN�?JGC=JB�N:JGC=:O�J?D�:@MOKOG:I�NC?@G>M?O�~>W:W�<BJ?G>?E�MN�<BJ?GJG>M?IM?M@CBGC=:O�>O�?MG�J?�J<<=M<=>JG:�LMBC?GJ=K�MNNO:G�GMMB��>O�M?:�MN�GH:�IMOG�>I<M=GJ?G�������������������������������������������� ¡�¢£�¤ ����¥��¦����¢¢§



��������	
������������
����
������	������������
��������� ��!�"�#��$�%�������� ��!�"����&��	���	�'�()��*
���	������	�+)�� ,,�---./012345678010176480./6��

9:;<==:>?@AB<>C�A<�@DD<E�CF@;:�G<9�>@AH9@D�:;<CICA:=C�A<�@?@FA�B>�AJ:�G@;:�<G�;DB=@A:�;J@>K:L��M�N:DDOP:B>K�@>?�@CC<;B@A:?�B=F9<Q:?�J:@DAJ�BC�@><AJ:9�B=F<9A@>A�;<OP:>:GBA�G<9�;<>CB?:9@AB<>��M�NJBD:�;<>CB?:9B>K�;<OP:>:GBACR�F9<F:9�@AA:>AB<>�CJ<HD?�P:�F@B?�A<�AJ:�?BGG:9:>;:�B>�C;@D:C�@>?�;<>A:SAC�EBAJ�9:CF:;A�A<�Q@9B<HC�:;<CICA:=�C:9QB;:C�@>?�P:>:GBACL�T<9�B>CA@>;:R�9:?H;AB<>�B>�J:@AO9:D@A:?�CA9:CC�BC�=<9:�D<;@D�B>�>@AH9:R�EJBD:�;@9P<>�C:UH:CA9@AB<>�P:>:GBAC�@9:�KD<P@DL�V>�@??BAB<>R�@�?BCAB>;AB<>�CJ<HD?�P:�=@?:�P:AE::>�GB>@D�P:>:GBAC�@>?�WXYZ[\Z]ŴYZ�_̀abccd[YWXefg�aZ[hWiZa�Yd�̂hdW]�]bcjWîYWdX�̂X]�]dbkjZ�idbXYWXel��M�m:J@QB<9@D�CJBGA�B>�AJ:�F<FHD@AB<>�A<E@9?C�;<>C:9Q@AB<>�F9@;AB;:CL�� nWX̂jjop�qijW\̂ YZ�ir̂XeZ�[ZaWjWZXiZs�ardbj]�kZ�\d[Z�ZtcjWiWYjo�̂iidbXYZ]�ud[�̂a�̂�idOP:>:GBAL�vJBC�;<HD?�B>;DH?:�K:>:9@D�P:>:GBAC��CH;J�@C�B>;9:@CB>K�J@PBA@A�@>?�PB<?BQ:9CBAI�@C�E:DD�@C�=<9:�CF:;BGB;@DDI�?:GB>:?�P:>:GBAC�CH;J�@C�;J<<CB>Kw;<>CB?:9B>K�>@ABQ:�CF:;B:C�EBAJ�JBKJ�9:CBCA@>;:w9:CBDB:>;:�A<�AJ:�@>AB;BF@A:?�CA9:CC<9C�<G�;DB=@A:�;J@>K:�xE:@AJ:9�:SA9:=:CR�?9<HKJAwGD<<?R�B>C:;AC�y�C::�z{�T<9:CA�{:9QB;:�|<?BGB;@AB<>�T@;A<9C�x|}~T��{��@?@FA@PBDBAI�aid[WXes�ud[�Y[ZZ�acZiWZa�̂a�̂X�Zt̂\cjZgl�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������;<CICA:=�<9�E@A:9CJ:?OP@C:?�9:CA<9@AB<>�<9�:>J@>;:=:>A�F9<�:;AC�AJ@A�J@Q:�P::>�B?:>ABGB:?�@C�D<;@D�F9B<9BAB:C�PI�=H>B;BF@DBAB:CR�;<>C:9Q@AB<>�@HAJ<9BAB:C�<9�<AJ:9�D<;@D�;<>C:9Q@AB<>�P@C:?�@K:>;B:C�CJ<HD?�P:�B>;DH?:?�B>�AJ:�Q<DH>A@9I�;@9P<>�<GGC:AC�F9<K9@=�A<�CHFF<9A�AJ:B9�B=FD:=:>A@AB<>L��T<9�:S@=FD:R�|@BAD@>?��@DD:I�;<>C:9Q@AB<>�@HAJ<9BAI�x|�����BC�E<9�B>K�A<�9:CA<9:�AJ:�J:@?E@A:9C�<G�AJ:�|B??D:�|@BAD@>?� BQ:9�HFCA9:@=�<G�¡BCA<E:DL�vJBC�B>;DH?:C�¢R£££�@;9:C�<G�GD<<?�FD@B>¤9BQ:9�Q@DD:I�D@>?C�@>?�=@>I�;<OP:>:GBAC�xGD<<?�=@>@K:=:>AR�PB<?BQ:9CBAIR��E@A:9�UH@DBAIR�:A;L�L���GG<9:CA@AB<>�CJ<HD?�P:�@�F9B<9BAI�@>?�;<OP:>:GBAC�<G�@>I�F9<�:;A�@9:�9:@DB¥:?�EJ:>�AJ:�9:CA<9@AB<>�F9<�:;AC�@9:�CA9@A:KB;@DDI�F9B<9BAB¥:?�B>�D<;@AB<>CL��T<9�:S@=FD:�CA9@A:KB;@DDI�:CA@PDBCJ:?�9BF@9B@>�PHGG:9C�EBDD�;<>A9BPHA:�E@A:9�UH@DBAI�P:>:GBACR��K9<H>?E@A:9�9:;J@9K:R�9:?H;B>K�C:?B=:>A�D<@?B>K�<>�:9<CB<>�F9<>:�@K9B;HDAH9@D�D@>?�@>?�F9<QB?:�GBCJ�@>?�EBD?DBG:�J@PBA@A�@>?�K:>:9@DDI�CHFF<9A��PB<?BQ:9CBAIL��|@>I���C�J@Q:�AJ:�:SF:9ABC:R�@;;<H>AB>K��@>?�=<>BA<9B>K�CICA:=C�9:@?I�A<�D:Q:9@K:L��V>�9H9@D�@>?�:CF:;B@DDI�H9P@>�@9:@C�<AJ:9�F9<�:;AC�CJ<HD?�B>;DH?:�B>A:9;<>>:;A:?�CICA:=C�<G�K9::>�B>G9@CA9H;AH9:�AJ@A�B>;<9F<9@A:C��PB<CE@D:CR�@>?�Q:K:A@ABQ:�A:;J><D<KB:C�B>�D<E�B=F@;A�?:Q:D<F=:>AR�9H9@D�CA<9=E@A:9�=@>@K:=:>A�F9@;AB;:C�@>?�9:;D@B=:?�K9::>CF@;:CL��N:AD@>?�;9:@AB<>�ardbj]�̂jad�kZ�ZjWeWkjZp�abccd[YWXe�YrZ�¦WXWaY[o�du�§̂Yb[̂j�̈Zadb[iZas�©̀ZYĵX]�ªdXaZ[ĥYWdX�«Y[̂YZeo�ud[�¬XŶ[Wdf�̂a�Zjj�̂a�c[dhW]WXe�̂�Xb\kZ[�du�idOP:>:GBAC�CH;J�@C�PB<?BQ:9CBAIR�GD<<?�@AA:>H@AB<>�@>?�B=F9<Q:?�E@A:9�UH@DBAIL�®̄°±²³́µ¶·̄°�̧°¶µ³·̄�®̄ ¹°º·»�¼²²¶·°½�¾¿³·»�ÀÁÂ�ÃÄÀÅ ¾½²°Æµ�Çµ½²�ÃÃÁ



��������	
������������
����
������	������������
��������� ��!�"�#��$�%�������� ��!�"����&��	���	�'�()��*
���	������	�+)�� ,-�.../0123456789121287591/07��

�:�;<=>?@A�BC�@D?�E=>B=>@>F<@>BG�<GH�H?I>J>BGKL<M>GN�@BBOJ�I<G�P?�QJ?H�@B�D?OE�R>@D�J?O?I@>GN�E=BS?I@�@AE?J�@B�E=B;>H?�L<T>LQL�P?G?C>@J�CB=�I<=PBG�J?UQ?J@=<@>BG�<GH�P?ABGHV�WB=�?T<LEO?�>G�XYZ[\�]=?H>@�̂<OO?A�]BGJ?=;<@>BG�H?;?OBE?H�<G�?G;>=BGL?G@<O�P?G?C>@J�>GH?T�_̀abc�@BBO�@D<@�IBGJ>H?=J�<�=<GN?�BC�?G;>=BGL?G@<O�<GH�JBI>BK?IBGBL>I�P?G?C>@J�@B�=<GM�R?@O<GH�=?J@B=<@>BG�E=BS?I@J�>G�@D?�R<@?=JD?HV��de�fghi�hjiklmn�jhm�igo�pkmkniqr�ihso�il�ntuulqi�vkhwxo�omy�zhqsoin�{lq�|mihqkl�vlxtmihqr�jhqwlm�l{{noi�jqoykin}�]BGJ?=;<@>BG�~G@<=>B�?GIBQ=<N?J�@D?��=B;>GI?�@B�?J@<PO>JD�L?ID<G>JLJ�@D<@�?GJQ=?J�@D?�OBGN�@?=L�;><P>O>@A�<GH�>LEO?L?G@<@>BG�BC�@D?�;BOQG@<=A�I<=PBG�BCCJ?@J�E=BN=<LV��D?�BCCJ?@�E=B@BIBOJ\�P?>GN�<H<E@?H�CB=�~G@<=>B�R>OO�P?�>LEB=@<G@�<GH�D?OECQO�>G�JQEEB=@�BC�<�J@<GH<=H>F?H�L?@DBHBOBNA�CB=�I<OIQO<@>GN�@D?�;<OQ<@>BG�BC�BCCJ?@J�QGH?=�<�;BOQG@<=A�E=BN=<LV��:HL>G>J@=<@>BG�G??HJ�@B�P?�J@=<>ND@CB=R<=H�R>@D�BG�@D?�N=BQGH�JQEEB=@�CB=�E=BLB@>BG\�BQ@=?<ID�<GH�<JJ>J@<GI?�R>@D�H?;?OBEL?G@\�;?=>C>I<@>BG�<GH�LBG>@B=>GN�BC�E=BS?I@J�<GH�@D?>=�IBKP?G?C>@JV���@<=@KQE�CQGH>GN�RBQOH�P?�D?OECQO�@BR<=HJ�>G>@><@>GN�NBBH�UQ<O>@A�E=BS?I@J�<GH�@<T�=?HQI@>BGJ�?G?=NA�I=?H>@J�L>ND@�P?�>GI?G@>;?J�CB=�BCCJ?@�I=?H>@�EQ=ID<J?=JV��a<J?H�BG�]BGJ?=;<@>BG�<Q@DB=>@A�?TE?=>?GI?�>G�H?O>;?=A�BC�OBI<O�E=BN=<LJ\�>@�>J�JQNN?J@?H�@D<@�J>NG>C>I<G@�BQ@=?<ID�<GH�?HQI<@>BG�=?JBQ=I?J�<=?�=?UQ>=?H�@B�?GIBQ=<N?�PQJ>G?JJ?J\�<N=>IQO@Q=<O�E=BHQI?=J\�O<GHBRG?=J�<GH�B@D?=�J@<M?DBOH?=J�@B�H?;?OBE�?L>JJ>BG�=?HQI@>BG�BPS?I@>;?J�<GH�@D?G�H?I>H?�@B�IBG@=>PQ@?�B=�>LEO?L?G@�@D?�E=BN=<LV��<=@>I>E<G@J�IBQOH�P?�E=B;>H?H�IBG;?G>?G@�BE@>BGJ�<GH�@BBOJ�_?NV�R?PJ>@?J\��I<OIQO<@B=Jc�@B�JQEEB=@�H?I>J>BGJ�<GH�<I@>BGJ�@B�P?IBL?�I<=PBGKG?Q@=<OV���O?<J?�J??�JBL?�IQ==?G@�IBGJ?=;<@>BG�<Q@DB=>@A�E=BN=<L�?T<LEO?J�>G�=?JEBGJ?�@B��Q?J@>BG��V��]BGJ?=;<@>BG�~G@<=>B�<OJB�JQNN?J@J�@D<@�@D?��B;?=GL?G@�E=>B=>@>F?�@D?�EQPO>I�=?O?<J?�BC�>@J�OBGNK@?=L�J@=<@?NA�CB=�I<=PBG�G?Q@=<O>@AV��D>J�J@=<@?NA�IBQOH�J?=;?�<J�<�=<OOA>GN�EB>G@�CB=�B@D?=�EQPO>I�<GH�E=>;<@?�J?I@B=�B=N<G>F<@>BGJ�@B�CBOOBR�<GH�<O>NG�@D?LJ?O;?J�R>@D�@D?�~G@<=>B��QPO>I��?=;>I?V�aQ>OH>GN�BG�@D>J�EB>G@\�IBGJ>H?=�C<I>O>@<@>GN�@D?�H?;?OBEL?G@�BC�<�EQPO>I�=?IBNG>@>BG�E=BN=<L�@D<@�=?R<=HJ�EQPO>I�<GH�E=>;<@?�J?I@B=�B=N<G>F<@>BGJ�CB=�<HBE@>GN�<GH�<ID>?;>GN�I<=PBG�G?Q@=<O>@A�IBLL>@L?G@JV���WQ=@D?=LB=?\�@D?��=B;>GI?��>G>J@=A�I<G�@<M?�J@?EJ�@B�?GIBQ=<N?�@D?�H?;?OBEL?G@�BC�<�R>H?�N?BN=<ED>I<O�H>J@=>PQ@>BG�BC�E=BS?I@J�R>@D>G�@D?�;BOQG@<=A�BCCJ?@�L<=M?@\�@BR<=HJ�E<=@>I>E<@>BG�PA�OBI<O�B=N<G>F<@>BGJ�<I=BJJ�@D?�E=B;>GI?�PA�?G<PO>GN�@D?L�@B�JQEEB=@�E=BS?I@J�R>@D>G�@D?>=�IBLLQG>@AV��??�CB=�?T<LEO?�@D?�>G>@><@>;?�BC�<�N=BQE�BC�OBI<O�NB;?=GL?G@J�>G�a=>@>JD�]BOQLP><�RDB�<=?�E>BG??=>GN�@D?�H?;?OBEL?G@�BC�<�OBI<O�I<=PBG�BCCJ?@�E=BN=<LV���e�����qo�igoqo�o�knikm��nihmyhqyn�lq�zoiglylxl�kon�ighi�rlt�{oox�igo�pkmkniqr�ngltxy�jlmnkyoq��gom�yovoxlukm��qo�tkqozomin�{lq�igo�jqohiklm�l{�jhqwlm�l{{noin�uql�ojin}�������������������������������������������� ¡¢�£¤ ¥ ����¦��§����££̈



��������	
������������
����
������	������������
��������� ��!�"�#��$�%�������� ��!�"����&��	���	�'�()��*
���	������	�+)�� ,-�.../0123456789121287591/07��

�:;<�=>?@A<BC�A<BCD>BE�AFBG�>H�C;<�<IDECDBJ�ECFB=FK=E�FB=�LK>C>?>MEN�O;DM<�DC�AFP<E�E<BE<�C>�@E<�C;<E<�Q<MMR=<S<M>L<=�FB=�F??<LC<=�<IDECDBJ�LK>C>?>MET�DC�QDMM�U<�DAL>KCFBC�C>�MDADC�C;<�UFKKD<KE�Q;D?;�;FS<�B>C�FMM>Q<=�EAFMM<K�LK>V<?CE�FB=�>KJFBDWFCD>BE�C>�LFKCD?DLFC<�DB�C;<�?>AL@ME>KG�?FKU>B�AFKP<CEN�� :;<�O>KM=�ODM=MDH<�X@B=�YZ<KAFBG[�K<L>KC�<BCDCM<=��\]FPDBJ�̂<BE<�>H�C;<�_>M@BCFKG�̀FKU>B�]FKP<Ca�K<?>AA<B=E�C;FC�_>M@BCFKG�]FKP<CE�B<<=�C>�H>MM>Q�̀M<FB�b<S<M>LA<BC�]<?;FBDEA�Ỳb][�LK>?<EE<E�E>�FE�B>C�C>�@B=<K?@C�C;<�?>ALMDFB?<�AFKP<C�>HHE<CCDBJ�LK>?<EE�FB=�AFDBCFDB�C;<�LK>=@?CD>B�>H�S<KDHDFUM<�>HHE<CEN�:;FC�U<DBJ�EFD=T�Q;DM<�F�;DJ;�M<S<M�>H�KDJ>K�DE�B<?<EEFKGT�E>A<�HM<IDUDMDCG�DE�<B?>@KFJ<=�DH�C;<�S>M@BCFKG�LK>JKFA�DE�C>�FCCKF?C�LKDSFC<�MFB=>QB<KEN�_<KDHD?FCD>B�FB=�cJJK<JFCD>B�FLLK>F?;<E�E;>@M=�?>BED=<K�C;<�@CDMDWFCD>B�Q;<K<�L>EEDUM<T�>H�E@KK>JFC<�DB=D?FC>KE�>H�E@??<EE�KFC;<K�C;FB�=DK<?C�A>BDC>KDBJ�C>�<FE<�>S<K;<F=�U@K=<B�H>K�C;<�Ldefghijkl�S>M@BCFKG�?FKU>B�>HHE<CE�LK>JKFAN�� mnopqrstuvno�wxuynrvuz�{n|xoutrz�mtr}no�~��pqu��ovuvtuvsqp���>̀BE<KSFCD>B�F@C;>KDCD<E�DB��BCFKD>�FK<�<ILM>KDBJ�SFKD>@E�ECFB=FK=E�FB=�A<C;>=>M>JD<E�FB=�E>A<�>H�C;<A�;FS<�<ECFUMDE;<=�S>M@BCFKG�?FKU>B�>HHE<C�LK>JKFAEN��X>K�<IFALM<T�C;<�]FDCMFB=�_FMM<G�Y]_̀c[�FB=�c@EFUM<R�FGHD<M=�Yc�̀c[�?>BE<KSFCD>B�F@C;>KDCD<ET�QDC;�HDBFB?DFM�E@LL>KC�>H�F�LDM>C�LK>V<?C�H@B=<=�UG�C;<�̀>@BCG�>H��@K>BT�?K<FC<=�F�S>M@BCFKG�?FKU>B�?>AL<BEFCD>B�?>@BC<KR����hij��e��lj����de�d���i���j��\��d�eh�X>>CLKDBCE�C>�X>K<ECEa�������j�\��d�eh��ee��dgh�l��e��edjl�la����de�i���e�����j����jhj�gig������de�i���e�l���ed�gh��?FKU>B�B<@CKFMDCG��?>RU<B<HDCE��FB=�K<EDMD<BC�?>AA@BDCD<E�FB=�DC�DE�?>AA@BDCGRUFE<=��QDC;�=DS<KE<�?>AA@BDCG�LFKCD?DLFCD>BN�:;<�LK>JKFA�Q<UEDC<�DE��X>>CLKDBCE�C>�X>K<ECE��FB=�;>ECE�FB�DBC<KF?CDS<�?FKU>B�?FM?@MFC>KN�:;K>@J;�C;DE�LK>JKFAT�?>BE@A<KE�?FB�HDB=�>@C�C;<�EDW<�>H�C;<DK�?FKU>B�H>>CLKDBC�YHK>A�;>A<�<B<KJG�@E<�FB=�CKFS<M[�FB=�;>Q�AFBG�CK<<E�Q>@M=�B<<=�C>�U<�LMFBC<=�YL<KAFB<BCMG[�C>�?FLC@K<�C;<�JK<<B;>@E<�JFE<E�YZ�ZE[�K<M<FE<=N�:;<�?FM?@MFC>K�DB?M@=<E�C;<�?>EC�C>�;FS<�C;<�M>?FM�?>BE<KSFCD>B�F@C;>KDCG�LMFBC�C;>E<�CK<<E�FB=�AFDBCFDB�C;<A�C>�AFC@KDCG�H>K�?FKU>B�?FLC@K<N��̂<<=�H@B=DBJ�?FB�;<ML�C>�?K<FC<�F�LK>JKFAT�U@C�C>�JK>Q�C;<�LK>JKFA�C;<K<�B<<=E�C>�U<�F==DCD>BFM�=<=D?FC<=�H@B=DBJ�C>�E@LL>KC�<IL<KCDE<�DB�?>AA@BDCGRUFE<=�E>?DFM�AFKP<CDBJ�N��X>K�F==DCD>BFM�UF?PJK>@B=�C>�C;<�\��d�eh�X>>CLKDBCE�C>�X>K<ECEa�LK>JKFA�FB=�C>�M<FKB�FU>@C�C;<�c@EFUM<��FGHD<M=�̀>BE<KSFCD>B�c@C;>KDCG�Yc�̀c[�FLLK>F?;�C>�?FKU>B�E<�@<ECKFCD>B�FB=�S>M@BCFKG�?FKU>B�>HHE<C�DBDCDFCDS<E�LM<FE<�F??<EE��c�̀c��FB=�̂C<QFK=E;DL��BDCDFCDS<E��cB�cEE<EEA<BC�>H�̀FKU>B�̂<�@<ECKFCD>B�FB=�X@C@K<�X@B=DBJ��LL>KC@BDCD<E�LK<LFK<=�UG��@W@PF��C=N�>B��FB@FKG�� T� ¡� N�cE�>@CMDB<=�DB�C;DE�=>?@A<BCT�C;DE�FLLK>F?;��e�����j����de�dg��j��l���\¢���g�£¤��d�h�j�¤�fe��h��d£�i�d�eh�e��lj��i��ll��ed��lj��£�J>S<KBA<BCT�LKDSFC<�E<?C>K�FB=�>C;<KET�FE�FB�F==DCD>BFM�QFG�C>�<BFUM<�LFKCD?DLFBCE�C>�K<=@?j�j�gllgehl¤��h���e�l���ed����j��efjdh�jh�kl�i�d�ehRhj��d���ie��g��jh��a��¥D=<F@�_FMM<G�̀>BE<KSFCD>B�c@C;>KDCG�Y¥_̀c[��FME>�<ECFUMDE;<=�FB=�;FE�U<<B�DALM<A<BCDBJ�F�¦§̈©ª«¬®̄§̈�°̈ ®«̄§�¦§±̈²̄³�́ªª®̄̈µ�¶·«̄³�̧¹º�»¼̧½ ¶µª̈¾�¿µª�»»½



��������	
������������
����
������	������������
��������� ��!�"�#��$�%�������� ��!�"����&��	���	�'�()��*
���	������	�+)�� ,-�.../0123456789121287591/07��

:;<=>?@AB�C@AD;>�;EEFG?�HA;IA@J�C@<<GK�L@AD;>�MG=?A@<�FN>CG�OPQQR��STG�HA;IA@J�NF�DGN>I�CA;FF�HA;J;?GK�UN?T�H@A?NCNH@?N>I�D=FN>GFFGF�@>K�;?TGA�H@A?>GAF�N>�?TG�VNKG@=�W@<<GB�U@?GAFTGKR���X;AG�GY@JH<GF�?;�F=HH;A?�?TG�H;?G>?N@<�A;<G�;E�LZF�N>�@FFNF?N>I�?TG�HA;:N>CG�?;�KG:G<;H�:;<=>?@AB�;EEFG?�HA;IA@J�HA;?;C;<F�@>K�F?@>K@AKF�N>C<=KG��GYHGANG>CG�N>�KG:G<;HN>I[�AG:NGUN>I�@>K�NJH<GJG>?N>I�F?@>K@AKF�@>K�HA;?;C;<F�E;A�IAGG>�N>EA@F?A=C?=AG�?T@?�C;=<K�TG<H�?;�\=@>?NEB�G>:NA;>JG>?@<�@>K�;?TGA�C;]DG>GEN?FR��STNF�N>C<=KGF�̂?;AJU@?GA�X@>@IGJG>?�@>K�_;U�̀JH@C?�aG:G<;HJG>?�J;>N?;AN>I�@>K�HGAE;AJ@>CG[�bG?<@>K�U@?GA�D@<@>CG�J;>N?;AN>I�HA;?;C;<F[�@>K�J;>N?;AN>I�?TG�GEEGC?N:G>GFF�;E�>@?=A@<�CT@>>G<�KGFNI>[�N>�@KKN?N;>�?;�?TG�SVLZ�̀>?GIA@?GK�VGF?;A@?N;>�cAN;AN?Nd@?N;>e�@�J=<?NH<G�DG>GEN?�@HHA;@CT�?;�AGF?;A@?N;>��H<@>>N>I��ZKKN?N;>@<�AGEGAG>CGF�EA;J�;?TGA�f=ANFKNC?N;>F�N>C<=KGe�g����VGF?;AN>I�>@?N:G�UN<K<NEG�T@DN?@?�@>K�C@H?=AN>I�C@AD;>�g� h;<K�̂?@>K@AK�WGANENGK�iJNFFN;>�VGK=C?N;>�jWiVk�g� L<NJ@?G�L;JJ=>N?B�@>K�DN;KN:GAFN?B�F?@>K@AK�g� L<NJ@?G�ZC?N;>�VGFGA:G�lAD@>�m;AGF?AB�cA;?;C;<�g� lAD@>�m;AGF?�L@AD;>�VGINF?AB[�LN?B�m;AGF?�LAGKN?F�jl̂k��>̀�C;>C<=FN;>[�L;>FGA:@?N;>�n>?@AN;�?T@>oF�?TG�XN>NF?AB�;E�i>:NA;>JG>?�@>K�L<NJ@?G�LT@>IG�E;A�?TG�;HH;A?=>N?B�?;�C;JJG>?�;>�?TG�pW;<=>?@AB�L@AD;>�nEEFG?F�cA;IA@J�aNFC=FFN;>�c@HGAq�rst�NF�F=HH;A?N:G�;E�?TG�HA;H;FGK�HA;IA@JR��Ln�@>K�LZF�@AG�N>?GAGF?GK�N>�H@A?NCNH@?N>I�N>�?TG�?GCT>NC@<�U;AoN>I�IA;=HF�?;�<G:GA@IG�FCNG>?NENC�@>K�?GCT>NC@<�GYHGA?NFGR�STNF�NF�N>�@KKN?N;>�?;�;EEGAN>I�;=A�GYHGANG>CG�N>�KG:G<;HN>I�@>K�H@A?>GAN>I�?;�KG<N:GA�HA;:N>CN@<�@>K�<;C@<�HA;IA@JFu�HA;fGC?F�?T@?�UN<<�DG�C@H?=AGK�?TA;=IT�?TG�HA;H;FGK�HA;IA@JR����L;>FGA:@?N;>�n>?@AN;�@<F;�<;;oF�E;AU@AK�?;�;HH;A?=>N?NGF�?;�E@CN<N?@?G�JGG?N>IF�UN?T�?TG�cA;:N>CGuXN>NF?AB[�LZF�@>K�?TG�;AI@>Nd@?N;>F�UT;�JG?�;>�?TNF�F=DfGC?�N>�mGDA=@AB[�OPQvR��̀E�B;=�T@:G�@>B�\=GF?N;>F�@D;=?�?TNF�F=DJNFFN;>[�H<G@FG�C;>?@C?�JG�@?�GY?R�OOwx�G]J@N<e�fAd@KoNyC;>FGA:@?N;>;>?@AN;RC@R��z;=AF�?A=<B[� �{;]Z>>G�Vd@KoN[�X ĈR�|=FN>GFF�aG:G<;HJG>?�@>K�c@A?>GAFTNHF��LCe�}NJ�h@:N>G[��hG>GA@<�X@>@IGA�������L;>FGA:@?N;>�Z=?T;AN?NGF�@>K�L;>FGA:@?N;>�n>?@AN;�L;=>CN<��~��������������������~����������������������������� ���������������



ontario.ca/climatechange 

Developing a Voluntary Carbon 

Offsets Program for Ontario 

Discussion Paper 

Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change 

November 2017 

Item 4.4.2

https://www.ontario.ca/environment


Contents 

Purpose ..................................................................................... 1 

Climate change and its effects ..................................................... 2 

Tackling climate change in Ontario .............................................. 3 

What are carbon offsets? ............................................................ 5 

Ontario’s carbon offset pathways ................................................ 7 

Getting there ............................................................................. 8 

Building Ontario’s natural capital ............................................... 11 

Thinking globally, acting locally ................................................ 13 

Share your views with us ........................................................... 14 

References ............................................................................... 15 



Developing a voluntary carbon offsets program for Ontario  

1 
 

Purpose
Combatting climate change is a shared responsibility that requires collective action. The intent 

of this discussion paper is to start a conversation with Ontarians about the development of the 

proposed voluntary carbon offsets program, which will allow the Province to lead by example 

through making government operations carbon neutral beginning in 2018. This discussion 

paper aims to: 

 Provide an overview of the key elements of the proposed Ontario voluntary carbon 

offsets program; 

 Seek input on measures being considered;  

 Provide an early opportunity for Ontarians to participate in development of the 

proposed Ontario voluntary carbon offsets program; 

 Provide an overview of environmental co-benefits and opportunities to build Ontario’s 

natural capital; and 

 Promote opportunities for participation in the carbon market. 

This discussion paper will also help the Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change in 

gathering information and gaining your insight on the following topics: 

 The scope of the proposed Ontario voluntary carbon offsets program; 

 Potential projects and activities; and 

 Community participation in the carbon market.

  



Developing a voluntary carbon offsets program for Ontario  

2 
 

Climate change and its effects
Climate change is the result of a buildup of carbon dioxide (CO2) and other greenhouse gases 

(GHGs) which trap heat in the Earth’s atmosphere. Figure 1 below illustrates this process. GHG 

emissions from manmade sources are higher than they have been in any other point in history 

(IPCC, 2014). 

Across Ontario we have seen an increase in prolonged heat waves, torrential rain storms, 

windstorms, even drought. These events have become more common – a clear sign of a shift in 

our weather patterns (NRCan, 2014). This shift is called ‘climate change.’ It threatens our 

health and safety, our environment and our economy. 

People and businesses in Ontario are already feeling the effects of these changes, which range 

from damaged infrastructure, extreme weather events such as flooding, to the reduced ability 

to grow food in some regions.

 

 

Figure 1. Carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gases trap heat in the earth’s atmosphere.



Developing a voluntary carbon offsets program for Ontario  

3 
 

Tackling climate change in Ontario 
The Ontario government recognizes climate change as a problem with unique solutions and 

opportunities. Ontario’s Climate Change Strategy and Five Year Climate Change Action Plan 

(CCAP) 2016 – 2020 have been developed in order to tackle the complex challenge of climate 

change.   

Ontario’s Climate Change Strategy sets the long-term goal of reducing GHG emissions in 

Ontario by 80 percent below 1990 levels by 2050 as shown below in Figure 2. To meet this 

objective, mid-term targets of 15 percent below 1990 levels by 2020 and 37 percent below 1990 

levels by 2030 have been set. 

 

 

Figure 2. Ontario’s greenhouse gas reduction targets. 

To achieve these targets, the Province has implemented a cap and trade program to reduce 

greenhouse gas emissions and drive a prosperous low-carbon, high-productivity economy.  In 

addition, the Five Year Climate Change Action Plan (CCAP) 2016 – 2020 sets out the various 

activities that the government will undertake to mitigate the effects of climate change across 

our province.  Actions under CCAP include: 

 Reducing GHG emissions in sectors not covered by cap and trade to meet provincial 

GHG reduction targets; 

 Creating a prosperous low-carbon economy with world-leading innovation, science and 

technology; 

 Demonstrating government leadership and collaboration;  

 Developing  a resource efficient, high productivity society; and 

 Facilitating adaptation and risk awareness to the impacts of climate change. 

https://www.ontario.ca/page/climate-change-strategy
https://www.ontario.ca/page/climate-change-action-plan
https://www.ontario.ca/page/climate-change-action-plan


Developing a voluntary carbon offsets program for Ontario  

4 
 

In addition, CCAP includes making government operations carbon neutral beginning in 2018. In 

order to accomplish this, Ontario will develop a separate quality, branded, voluntary carbon 

offset class for use by government, private sector and others, as an additional way to enable 

participants to reduce emissions, and to support the government’s carbon-neutral 

commitment. 

These actions build on the foundation already established in Ontario to innovate and invest in 

a high-productivity economy that values our natural capital. It shifts Ontario to an economy 

that supports growth and prosperity, while better protecting our air, land and water and 

leaving a strong environmental legacy of a healthy world for future generations.  



Developing a voluntary carbon offsets program for Ontario  

5 
 

What are carbon offsets?
A carbon offset is a reduction in emissions of carbon dioxide or other greenhouse gases (GHGs) 

to neutralize or offset emissions made elsewhere. These offsets are generated from projects 

that reduce, avoid or sequester (i.e., capture or contain) GHGs from sources that are not 

covered by a cap and trade program. Carbon offsets are a tool that can be used to mitigate and 

build resilience to the effects of climate change. One carbon offset credit represents the 

reduction of one metric tonne of carbon dioxide or its equivalent (CO2e).  

There are two markets for carbon offsets. In the compliance market, companies and other 

entities regulated under a cap and trade program can buy carbon offsets in order to comply 

with caps on the total amount of CO2e they are allowed to emit. In Ontario, compliance offset 

credits can be used to a maximum of 8 percent to offset emissions under the cap and trade 

program.  

In the voluntary carbon offsets market, governments and other entities not regulated by a cap 

and trade program can purchase carbon offsets to mitigate their own GHG emissions from 

transportation, heating buildings, and other sources. Voluntary carbon offsets can be used by 

these entities to achieve their own emissions reduction objectives (e.g., attain carbon 

neutrality). 

An illustration of the relationship between the development and use of carbon offsets (both 

compliance and voluntary) is shown in Figure 3 below. 

 

Figure 3. Carbon offset credits created from projects that reduce, avoid or sequester GHGs, 

can be sold to people, organizations and businesses that want to achieve emissions 

reductions. 



Developing a voluntary carbon offsets program for Ontario  

6 
 

Examples of activities that may generate offset credits in either the compliance or voluntary 

markets include the capture or destruction of methane emissions from landfills, re-establishing 

wetlands or planting trees to sequester carbon. 

Methodologies, set out in carbon offset standards and protocols, define the rules that project 

developers must follow in order to create offset credits. Once offsets projects have been 

implemented, a project developer can sell these carbon offset credits to people, organizations 

or businesses that want to offset their emissions. Carbon offsetting allows GHG avoidance, 

reduction, and sequestration activities to occur in segments of the economy where they can be 

achieved most efficiently.  



Developing a voluntary carbon offsets program for Ontario  

7 
 

Ontario’s carbon offset pathways
Ontario’s proposed voluntary carbon offsets program is intended to be separate and distinct 

from the compliance offsets program under cap and trade. Voluntary carbon offset credits 

would not be eligible for use in Ontario’s cap and trade program. Instead they would be used 

by government, the private sector and others to meet voluntary emissions reduction objectives 

(e.g., carbon neutrality commitments). 

Another key distinction between Ontario’s compliance and voluntary carbon offsets is the shift 

in focus from GHG reductions alone, to the inclusion of additional environmental co-benefits. 

Table 1 below illustrates the similarities and differences between Ontario’s two offsets 

pathways. 

Table 1. Ontario has proposed two distinct streams of carbon offsets. 

Compliance grade carbon offsets Voluntary carbon offsets 

• A compliance grade offset credit is a credit 

for one tonne of GHG emission reductions 

that an entity can buy to help meet up to a 

maximum of 8 percent of its cap and trade 

compliance obligations in Ontario.  

• A voluntary offset credit is for one tonne of 

GHG emission reductions which the 

government, private sector and others can 

purchase to meet voluntary emissions reduction 

goals (e.g., carbon neutrality commitments). 

• Compliance offsets may be generated from 

projects in sectors not covered by the cap 

and trade program.  

• Voluntary offsets may be generated from 

projects in sectors not covered by the cap and 

trade program.  

• Compliance-grade offset credits would be 

eligible for trading with jurisdictions that 

have linked their carbon market with Ontario 

(i.e., Quebec and California).  

• Voluntary carbon offset credits would not be 
eligible for use in Ontario’s cap and trade 
program. 

• Compliance offset projects must be 

conducted and monitored in accordance 

with a protocol approved by Ontario. 

• Ontario is developing compliance offset 

protocols including the Landfill Gas Capture 

and Destruction protocol, currently posted to 

the Environmental Registry. 

• Offset projects that wish to be issued voluntary 

offset credits, would be undertaken and 

monitored in accordance with a protocol 

approved by Ontario. 

• Ontario’s compliance grade offsets 
program is focused exclusively on GHG 
reductions. 

• Ontario’s voluntary carbon offsets program 
considers the value of additional 
environmental, social and community 
benefits in addition to GHG reductions. 

https://www.ebr.gov.on.ca/ERS-WEB-External/displaynoticecontent.do?noticeId=MTMzNTQz&statusId=MjAzMDc1&language=en


Developing a voluntary carbon offsets program for Ontario  

8 
 

Getting there
Ontario’s proposed voluntary carbon offsets program would create a clear set of requirements 

for anyone who wants to facilitate the creation of carbon offsets projects to reduce, avoid, or 

sequester (i.e., capture or contain) GHGs and to sell the carbon offset credits generated from 

these projects. 

Ontario’s proposed program for quality, branded voluntary carbon offsets will position our 

province as a leader in a voluntary carbon offsets market. As illustrated in Figure 4 below, the 

program will: 

 Support the government’s commitment to carbon neutrality and meet annual offset 

demand; 

 Promote additional environmental co-benefits; 

 Facilitate participation by Indigenous, northern and agricultural communities and 

municipalities in the carbon market; 

 Drive innovation and support the transition to a low carbon economy through 

investments in natural capital; and 

 Provide a mechanism for government, private sector and others to reduce both their 

carbon and ecological footprints, ensuring that benefits accrue to the citizens of 

Ontario.

 
Figure 4. Ontario voluntary carbon offset program objectives.



Developing a voluntary carbon offsets program for Ontario  

9 
 

The Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change is proposing to establish criteria for: 

 Creating voluntary carbon offsets and ensuring they are credible; and 

 Ensuring that voluntary carbon offsets that are generated are rigorous in quality and 

standard. 

Project developers who wish to create voluntary carbon offset credits will be required to 

include environmental co-benefits in the development of their projects that support ecosystem 

adaptation to climate change and facilitate climate resilient communities as illustrated in 

Figure 5 below. Examples of such benefits include capturing and filtering rainwater to reduce 

flood risk, run-off and nutrient loading to the Great Lakes.  

 

 

Figure 5. Voluntary carbon offsets would be measured in tonnes of CO2e 

and demonstrate environmental co-benefits.

Ontario intends to develop and/or adapt a suite of methodologies, including GHG 

quantification standards and protocols, to support the development of projects under the 

voluntary carbon offsets program. These materials will support proponents in the development 

of projects that reduce/avoid/sequester GHG emissions and generate co-benefits. 

The Ministry will establish a series of technical working groups that leverage scientific and 

technical expertise and traditional knowledge to inform program design and development for 

the government’s proposed Ontario Voluntary Carbon Offsets Program. These technical 

working groups will provide input into standards development, methodologies and project 

criteria.  



Developing a voluntary carbon offsets program for Ontario  

10 
 

Existing standards and protocols that will be considered include those developed by the 

Climate Action Reserve (CAR), the American Carbon Registry (ACR), Verified Carbon Standard 

(VCS), Plan Vivo and Gold Standard as well as the ISO 14064 standards for greenhouse gas 

inventory and reporting. 

In addition to establishing the technical working groups to inform the design of  the proposed 

Ontario voluntary carbon offsets program, the Ministry of the Environment and Climate 

Change is continuing to engage with Indigenous organizations and community 

representatives, stakeholders and others to inform the development and implementation of 

the program including: 

 Building knowledge and community partnerships; and  

 Promoting opportunities for participation. 

Figure 6 below sets out how the process described above will inform the development of the 

proposed the Ontario voluntary carbon offsets program.

 

Figure 6. Ontario voluntary carbon offsets program development roadmap.  



Developing a voluntary carbon offsets program for Ontario  

11 
 

Building Ontario’s natural capital
The development of a separate, quality, branded voluntary offset class provides a unique 

opportunity to mitigate climate change by leveraging land-use activities in the Province. By 

focusing on land-use to fight climate change, many environmental co-benefits such as flood 

management, are incorporated into the design of the program. As we consider the role of 

land-use in mitigating climate change in our province, we must also think of the complex 

interactions of natural systems and other important services they provide to Ontarians. 

Ecosystems provide many basic services that make human life possible such as flood 

management and erosion control provided by trees; air and water purification and natural 

cooling on hot days provided by forests and wetlands; and pollination by bees of plants and 

flowers that provide us with food.  

These processes work together to make ecosystems healthy, sustainable, functional and 

resilient to climate change. Recognizing the importance of the complex interdependencies 

between natural and human systems and the need for a holistic, ecosystems-based approach is 

a message that the Ministry has heard often in discussions with Indigenous partners. As such, 

the voluntary carbon offsets program supports Ontario’s Climate Change Strategy, which 

includes commitments to: 

 Improve the resilience of our communities to climate change; 

 Increase our natural capital; and 

 Protect valuable agricultural lands, natural resources, and ecosystems for the future. 

Increasingly, governments, communities and businesses are considering the value of these 

services provided by ecosystems and the value of natural capital. These services are often 

invisible in the way we measure economic growth, but are critical to our province’s prosperity. 

Examples of land-use activities that build natural capital and could generate voluntary carbon 

offset credits may include: 

 Integration of trees into the agricultural landscape to increase biodiversity; 

 Building green infrastructure such as green roofs, green walls, bioswales, and reclaimed 

green space to: restore ecosystems; reduce landscape fragmentation; and improve 

inter-connected networks of green open spaces to improve habitat connectivity; and 

 Re-establishing wetlands. 

Project activities that can be used to generate voluntary carbon offsets, including those based 

on land-use, are shown below in Figure 7 below.



Developing a voluntary carbon offsets program for Ontario  

12 
 

Figure 7. Various project activities can be undertaken to generate voluntary carbon offsets.

 

Wetland restoration and conservation 

Wetland conservation and restoration activities facilitate carbon sequestration while producing 

additional environmental co-benefits like improved nutrient management and increased 

biodiversity. For example, coastal wetlands store and cycle nutrients, thereby protecting the Great 

Lakes from excess nutrient loading (MNRF, 2017). Carbon offset projects that target wetlands are an 

example of a project type that generates a carbon offset in addition to producing environmental co-

benefits. Ontario has approximately 25 percent of all wetland areas in Canada, 10,000 square 

kilometres of which are located in southern Ontario. Wetlands in the southern part of the province 

continue to experience significant development pressures and cover a relatively small average area 

of 25 hectares (MNRF, 2017). At the same time, the value of the services provided by these wetlands 

– including both carbon and beyond-carbon benefits – ranges from between $15,171 to $354,632 per 

hectare per year depending on size and proximity to urban areas (Troy and Bagstad, 2009; MOECC, 

2010). The sale of carbon offset credits created from wetlands conservation and restoration projects 

would recognize in part, the range of ecosystem service values that wetlands provide. 



Developing a voluntary carbon offsets program for Ontario  

13 
 

Thinking globally, acting locally
Climate change does not respect national or provincial borders and GHG emissions anywhere 

affect people everywhere. In addition to supporting the specific objectives that have already 

been noted, Ontario’s voluntary carbon offsets program aligns with Canada’s national climate 

change objectives as well as several international global development goals. 

The Pan Canadian Framework on Clean Growth and Climate Change sets out a national plan to 

address climate change. As part of the framework, guidelines are being developed to ensure 

the transferability of GHG offset credits developed by different programs across the country. 

The proposed Ontario voluntary carbon offsets program will endeavour to incorporate the 

terms of this framework.  

To strengthen the global response to climate change, countries have adopted the Paris 

Agreement, which came into force in 2016. In the Agreement, all countries have committed to 

working to limit global temperature rise this century to well below 2 degrees Celsius, and given 

the grave risks, to prevent an increase of no more than 1.5 degrees Celsius above pre-industrial 

levels.  To this end, Canada has committed to reducing GHG emissions by 30 percent below 

2005 levels by 2030 (Government of Canada, 2017; UNFCCC, 2014). Combatting climate 

change is a shared responsibility that requires collective action. Ontario is leading by example 

through its commitment to make government operations carbon neutral beginning in 2018. 

The proposed Ontario voluntary carbon offsets program would provide a flexible market-based 

mechanism that aligns with national GHG reduction goals and would enable the government, 

private sector and others to offset their GHG emissions. 

A strong climate agreement backed by action on the ground will support the achievement of 

the United Nations (UN) Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) to end poverty; build stronger 

economies; and safer, healthier, and more sustainable societies everywhere. In addition to 

Goal 13: Climate Action, many of the 17 SDGs directly involve taking action on climate change. 

By focusing on co-benefits beyond GHG reductions, the proposed Ontario voluntary carbon 

offsets program will align with many of the UN SDGs and their associated targets.

http://www.un.org/sustainabledevelopment/


Developing a voluntary carbon offsets program for Ontario  

14 
 

Share your views with us
Please consider the following questions and share your perspective with us: 

1. Are there additional priorities related to the development of the proposed voluntary 

carbon offsets program that have not been considered in this document? 

2. In addition to the five program objectives listed in this discussion paper (see “Getting 

there”), are there other objectives that you think the Ministry should consider? 

3. Are there specific barriers to participation in the carbon market that the Ministry should 

consider when developing the proposed the Ontario voluntary carbon offsets program? 

4. What is the best way for the Ministry to facilitate community participation in the 

proposed Ontario voluntary carbon offsets program? 

5. What environmental co-benefits (e.g., flood management) should be prioritized in the 

proposed Ontario voluntary carbon offsets program? 

6. What project types should be a priority for the Ontario voluntary carbon offsets 

program? 

7. What actions can the Ministry take to support viable end markets for Ontario voluntary 

carbon offset credits? 

8. Are there existing standards or methodologies that you feel the Ministry should 

consider when developing requirements for the creation of carbon offsets projects?  

Please submit your comments through the Environmental Registry. Questions can be directed 

to: Vidya.Anderson@Ontario.ca.

  

mailto:Vidya.Anderson@Ontario.ca


Developing a voluntary carbon offsets program for Ontario  

15 
 

References 
Government of Canada. 2017. Canada’s nationally determined contribution submission to the 

United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change.  

Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC). 2014. Climate Change 2014: Synthesis 

Report. Contribution of Working Groups I, II and III to the Fifth Assessment Report of the 

Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change [R.K. Pachauri and L.A. Meyer (eds.)]. IPCC, 

Geneva, Switzerland. 

Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change (MOECC). 2015. Ontario’s Climate Change 

Strategy. Queen’s Printer for Ontario. 

Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change (MOECC). 2016. Ontario’s Five Year Climate 

Action Plan - 2016-2020. Queen’s Printer for Ontario.  

Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change (MOECC). 2010. Assessing the Economic 

Value of Protecting the Great Lakes Ecosystems. Queen’s Printer for Ontario.  

Ministry of Finance. 2017. 2017 Ontario budget: A stronger, healthier Ontario. Queen’s Printer 

for Ontario. 

Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry (MNRF). 2017. A Wetland Conservation Strategy for 

Ontario 2017–2030. Queen’s Printer for Ontario. 

Natural Resources Canada (NRCan). 2014. Canada in a Changing Climate: Sector Perspectives on 

Impacts and Adaptation. Warren, F. and Lemmen, D. (Eds.). Government of Canada.  

Troy, A. and Bagstad, K. 2009. Estimating Ecosystem Services in Southern Ontario. Report for 

Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources. 

United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC). 2014. NDC Registry. 

United Nations (UN). n.d. The Sustainable Development Goals: 17 goals to transform our world.

http://www4.unfccc.int/ndcregistry/PublishedDocuments/Canada%20First/Canada%20First%20NDC-Revised%20submission%202017-05-11.pdf
http://www4.unfccc.int/ndcregistry/PublishedDocuments/Canada%20First/Canada%20First%20NDC-Revised%20submission%202017-05-11.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/page/assessing-economic-value-protecting-great-lakes-ecosystems#section-13
https://www.ontario.ca/page/assessing-economic-value-protecting-great-lakes-ecosystems#section-13
http://apps.mnr.gov.on.ca/public/files/er/a-wetland-conservation-strategy-for-ontario-2017-2030.pdf
http://apps.mnr.gov.on.ca/public/files/er/a-wetland-conservation-strategy-for-ontario-2017-2030.pdf
http://unfccc.int/focus/ndc_registry/items/9433.php
http://www.un.org/sustainabledevelopment/


Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 4.5 
Report Date: June 15, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That this report be accepted as an update, that the draft three party agreement be 
accepted in principle and that the Authority Chair and General Manager be authorized 
to signed said agreement upon finalization. 
 
Background: 
 
The Olde Czech Hall has been a fixture in the community of Dresden for decades. The 
Hall was struggling to make ends meet in the 1980’s and was purchased by Dresden 
Motors who own the adjacent properly for use as a showroom. Some community events 
continued to be held in the Hall through the generosity of Dresden Motors.  
 

 
 
1992 
 Purchased as part of Dresden Motors by the St. Clair Region Conservation 

Authority as part of the Dresden Floodplain Acquisition Program – Dresden 
remains one of the most flood vulnerable communities in the province 

 When the Authority purchased the property the public petitioned the Town of 
Dresden to keep this building as a community center 

Brian McDougall 

Olde Czech Hall 



Staff Report 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 After considerable discussion the property was leased in 1993 to the Town of 
Dresden, who sublet the building to a group to maintain and operate the facility 

 This was intended to be short term as the Province was not prepared to use the 
Floodplain Acquisition program to purchase a building for recreation purposes 

 Certain conditions were placed on the lease, ie no overnight accommodation, 
development, if any, was to have prior approval and not to increase chances of 
loss of life and property 

 The intent was to eventually remove the building from the floodplain 

1999 
 Formal lease of this facility to Chatham-Kent as part of the overall lease of 

Authority owned property in Dresden to Chatham-Kent 

2000 
 To date the authority has supported the use of the building to meet the needs of 

the community as requested and based on the conditions of the lease which 
includes limitations to the development and use as it relates to flooding, property 
damage and loss of life 

 There are several other conditions including the removal of the building from the 
floodplain once the community sees no further need for the structure 

Further: 
 There are numerous partners who have enhanced the grounds around the Czech 

Hall including the Dresden and District Horticultural Society, Lambton Kent 
Composite School and numerous volunteers and individual who have contributed 
time and money 

 The St. Clair Region Conservation Foundation continues to provide tax receipts 
for the Horticultural Society for projects which have enhanced the floodplain area 

 Over the past 20 years, multiple meetings have been held to reviews issues, 
propose ideas and exchange information 

 The Authority has supported the Czech Hall project based on the municipal and 
public requests and will take direction from Chatham-Kent with input from the 
Olde Czech Hall Committee in determining the point at which the Hall no longer 
is valued as an event location 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Staff Report 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Organizational Objectives: 
 SCRCA 

o Must ensure that the building is removed and the site is rehabilitated to 
meet the requirements of the floodplain acquisition program 
 Funds provided to the program by the Ministry of Natural 

Resources and Forestry covered the 50% of the cost of property 
acquisition, building removal and site rehabilitation for the Dresden 
Motors property 

 Funds provide were allocated to works completed to date 
 The cost of building demolition and site rehabilitation will be the 

remainder of the matching municipal funding required to complete 
the project and are therefore the responsibility of Chatham-Kent 

o The Authority maintains demolition insurance, to cover the cost of building 
removal in the event of significant damages 

o The Authority requires that they are also named in the liability insurance 
for the Olde Czech Hall Committee 

 Municipality of Chatham-Kent 
o Maintains its support of the Dresden Floodplain Acquisition Program and 

the Community of Dresden in having the availability of a small event 
location on a fee for service basis, however, with other services available 
in the community and in a continuing effort to reduce risk, Chatham-Kent 
is seeking to change its involvement in this situation to a partnership 
rather than a lessee 

o The Authority requires that they are also named in the liability insurance 
for the Olde Czech Hall Committee 

 Olde Czech Hall Committee 
o Is seeking the opportunity to maintain the availability of the Olde Czech 

Hall as an event location for the residents of the Community of Dresden 
and surrounding area on a fee for service basis 

o Fees are used to support the direct costs of the hall as well as 
maintenance costs of the structure and the securement of liability 
insurance 

 The proposed 3 party agreement was drafted by the Authority and is being edited 
by Chatham-Kent Legal Services 

 That agreement is intended to satisfy the above identified objectives 
 As of final edits to this report, the revised draft has not been received from 

Chatham-Kent but it will be circulated with the package or handed out at the 
meeting as available 

 That agreement is intended to satisfy all the above  



1 

COUNCIL MEETING 
Minutes from Meeting #1/18 
April 16, 2018  
Black Creek Pioneer Village 

Voting Delegates Present: 
Brian Horner, Ausable Bayfield 
Chris Darling, Central Lake Ontario 
Deb Martin-Downs, Credit Valley 
Tim Pidduck, Crowe Valley 
Richard Wyma, Essex Region 
Linda Laliberte, Ganaraska Region 
Joe Farwell, Grand River 
Cathy Little, Grey Sauble 
Sonya Skinner, Grey Sauble 
Dick Hibma, Grey Sauble 
Hassaan Basit, Halton 
Mark Majchrowski, Kawartha 
Geoffrey Dawe, Lake Simcoe Region 
Mike Walters, Lake Simcoe Region 
Tammy Cook, Lakehead Region 
Mike Columbus, Long Point Region 
Judy Maxwell, Long Point Region 
Mark Peacock, Lower Thames Valley 
Glenda Rodgers, Lower Trent 
Mark Burnham, Mississippi Valley 

Duncan Abbott, Mississippi Valley 
Paul Lehman, Mississippi Valley 
Sandy Annunziata, Niagara Peninsula 
James Kaspersetz, Niagara Peninsula 
Lin Gibson, Nickel (Conservation Sudbury) 
Stephen Kaufman,  Nickel (Cons. Sudbury) 
Carl Jorgensen, Nickel (Conservation Sudbury) 
Brian Tayler, North Bay-Mattawa 
Doug Hevenor, Nottawasaga Valley 
Frank Prevost, Raisin Region 
Richard Pilon, Raisin Region 
Lyle Pederson, Rideau Valley 
Sommer Casgrain-Robertson, Rideau Valley 
Wayne Brohman, Saugeen Valley 
Rhonda Bateman, Sault Ste Marie 
Doug Thompson, South Nation 
Steve Arnold, St. Clair Region 
Brian McDougall, St. Clair Region 
Murray Blackie, Upper Thames River 

Members Absent: 
Cataraqui Region 
Catfish Creek 
Hamilton 
Kettle Creek 
Maitland Valley 

Mattagami Region 
Otonabee 
Quinte 
Toronto & Region 

Guests: 
Keith Murch 
Chris Harrington, Upper Thames River 

CO Staff:  
Kim Gavine, General Manager 
Jane Dunning  
Bonnie Fox  
Chitra Gowda  
Jane Lewington  
Matthew Millar  

Nekeisha Mohammed 
Sarah Nichol 
Leslie Rich  
Jo-Anne Rzadki  
Rick Wilson 

Item 5.1 

bmcdougall
Highlight



2 
 

1. Welcome from the Chair  
 

The Chair Dick Hibma welcomed everyone in attendance and called the meeting to order. 
 
Mark Burnham (Mississippi Valley) introduced Chair Duncan Abbott. 
Dick Hibma (Grey Sauble) introduced Chair Cathy Little 
Mike Columbus (Long Point) returning Chair, introduced Judy Maxwell acting General Manager 
Doug Thompson (South Nation) announced their new Chair is Fernand Dicaire 
 
Chair Hibma offered congratulations to the 25 Conservation Authorities who were able to launch 
their watershed report cards together on World Water Day on March 22nd. There are an additional 
seven report cards coming for a total of 32 CA watershed report cards. 
 

 
2. Adoption of the Agenda 
 

#01/18  Moved by:  Doug Thompson  Seconded by:  Mark Burnham 
 

THAT the Agenda be adopted as circulated. 
CARRIED 

 
 
3. Declaration of Conflict of Interest 
 

There was none. 
 
 
4. Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting  

 
#02/18 Moved by:  Mark Burnham  Seconded by:  Geoffrey Dawe 

 
THAT the minutes from the meeting December 11, 2017 be approved. 

CARRIED 
 
 
5. Business Arising from the Minutes 
 

There was none. 
 

 
6. Adoption of the 2017 Audited Financial Statements, Final Report to the Budget and Audit 

Committee & Appointment of Auditors for 2018 
 

#03/18 Moved by:  Linda Laliberte  Seconded by:  Joe Farwell 
 

THAT the Final Report to the Conservation Ontario Budget & Audit Committee be received; 
 
THAT Conservation Ontario accept the Budget and Audit Committee’s recommendation that the 
Financial Statements of Conservation Ontario for the year ended December 31, 2017 be approved; 
 



3 
 

AND THAT Conservation Ontario appoint BDO as its auditor for the 2018 audit.   
CARRIED 

 
 

7. Conservation Ontario’s 2017 Annual Report & Presentation 
 

The Conservation Ontario 2017 Annual Report was included in the agenda package and will be made 
available on the CO website.   The Chair’s presentation is attached to the minutes of the meeting. 
 
#04/18 Moved by:  Doug Thompson  Seconded by:   Mark Burnham 
 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council adopt the 2017 Annual Report. 

CARRIED 
 
 

8. Council Voting Delegates & Alternates 
 

Chair Hibma referred members to the orientation presentation created for new and returning 
Council members.  The narrated presentation can be accessed on the members page. 

 
One correction was made to the Voting Delegates list: 
 
Grand River Conservation Authority: 
Voting Delegate:  Helen Jowett 
Alternate:  Joe Farwell 
2nd Alternate:  Karen Armstrong 

 
#05/18 Moved by:  Joe Farwell   Seconded by:  Lin Gibson 

 
THAT the Voting Delegates and Alternates List be accepted as amended. 

CARRIED 
 
 

9. Election of Conservation Ontario Chair, 2 Vice Chairs and 3 Directors  
 

The proceedings were handed over to Kim Gavine (CO).  Dick Hibma was thanked for his 12 years of 
service to Conservation Ontario.  All the positions were declared vacant for 2018 and the election 
procedures were reviewed. 
 
#06/18 Moved by:  Sandy Annunziata  Seconded by: Wayne Brohman 
 
THAT Bonnie Fox and Jo-Anne Rzadki be appointed as scrutineers in the event of a vote.  

CARRIED 
 
Kim Gavine called for nominations for Chair of Conservation Ontario for 2018. 
 
Mark Burnham (Mississippi) nominated Geoffrey Dawe (LSRCA). 
Lyle Pederson (Rideau Valley) nominated Don MacIver (CVC). 
 



4 
 

Kim Gavine called a second and third time for nominations and hearing none called for a motion to 
close the nominations. 
 
#07/18  Moved by:  Doug Thompson  Seconded by:  Mark Burnham 
 
THAT the nominations for Chair of Conservation Ontario for 2018 be closed. 

CARRIED 
 
Each nominee was given 3 minutes to speak.  Ballots were cast and counted.  Don MacIver was 
elected Conservation Ontario Chair. 
 
Kim called for nominations for Vice Chairs of Conservation Ontario for 2018. 
 
Michael Columbus (Long Point) nominated Mark Burnham (Mississippi). 
Brian Tayler (North Bay) nominated Lin Gibson (Sudbury). 
 
Kim called a second and third time for nominations and hearing none called for a motion to close 
the nominations. 
 
#08/18  Moved by:  Michael Columbus  Seconded by:  Brian Tayler 
 
THAT the nominations for Vice Chairs of Conservation Ontario for 2018 be closed. 

CARRIED 
 

Mark Burnham and Lin Gibson accepted their nominations and were declared Vice Chairs for 
Conservation Ontario for 2018. 
 
Kim Gavine called for nominations for the Directors (staff positions) for 2018. 
 
Tim Pidduck (Crowe Valley) nominated Linda Laliberte (Ganaraska Region). 
Joe Farwell (Grand River) nominated Richard Wyma (Essex Region). 
 
Kim Gavine called a second and third time for nominations and hearing none called for a motion to 
close the nominations. 
 
#09/18  Moved by:  Geoff Dawe   Seconded by: Frank Prevost 
 
THAT the nominations for staff Directors of Conservation Ontario for 2018 be closed. 

CARRIED 
 
Linda Laliberte and Richard Wyma accepted their nominations and were declared Directors of 
Conservation Ontario. 
 
Kim called for nominations for Director for Conservation Ontario for 2018. 
 
Doug Thompson (South Nation) nominated Lyle Pedersen (Rideau Valley) 
Dick Hibma (Grey Sauble) nominated Geoffrey Dawe (LSRCA) 
 
Kim Gavine called a second and third time for nominations and hearing none called for a motion to 
close the nominations. 

bmcdougall
Highlight

bmcdougall
Highlight

bmcdougall
Highlight



5 
 

 
#10/18  Moved by:  Doug Hevenor   Seconded by:  Doug Thompson 
 
THAT the nominations for the Director of Conservation Ontario for 2018 be closed. 

CARRIED 
 
Each nominee was given 3 minutes to speak.   Ballots were cast and counted and Geoff Dawe was 
elected Director of Conservation Ontario. 
 
#11/18  Moved by:  Mark Burnham   Seconded by:  Brian Tayler 
 
THAT the ballots be destroyed. 

CARRIED 
 
 

Vice Chair Lin Gibson presided as Chair for the remainder of the meeting. 
 
10. Standing Committee Representatives 
 

#12/18  Moved by:  Steve Arnold   Seconded by:  Joe Farwell 
 
THAT the Budget and Audit Standing Committee membership be ratified. 
   
THAT the appointment of Karen Armstrong (Grand River CA) to the Group Insurance and Benefits 
Committee be ratified. 

CARRIED 
 
 
11. Motion to move from Full Council to Committee of the Whole 

 
#13/18  Moved by: Lyle Pederson   Seconded by:  Mark Burnham 
 
THAT the meeting now move from Full Council to Committee of the Whole. 

CARRIED 
 
 
12. Discussion Items 
 

a. General Manager’s Report 
 

C.W. #01/18 Moved by:  Doug Hevenor  Seconded by:  Mark Burnham 
 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council receives this report as information. 

CARRIED 
 
  

bmcdougall
Highlight



6 
 

 
b. Special Projects Budget 2018 

 
C.W. #02/18 Moved by:  Linda Laliberte Seconded by:  Tammy Cook 
 
THAT the draft 2018 Special Projects Budget in the amount of $1,430,735 be approved as 
presented and as recommended by the Budget and Audit Committee. 

CARRIED 
 
 

c. Annual Report: April 2017-March 2018 Conservation Ontario (CO) Representatives and  
Conservation Authorities Program Discussion Group List 
 
Bonnie Fox highlighted the report noting that the list reflects those active from April 2017 to 
March 2018. 
 
C.W. #03/18  Moved by:  Mark Burnham  Seconded by:  Steve Arnold 
 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council receives this report. 

CARRIED 
 
 

d. Conservation Authorities Act Review and Implementation 
 

Kim Gavine’s presentation is attached to the minutes of the meeting. 
 
C.W. #04/18  Moved by:  Joe Farwell  Seconded by:  Michael Columbus 
  
THAT Conservation Ontario Council receives this report as information. 

CARRIED 
 
 

e. Conservation Authorities Act Implementation: Conservation Authority Best Management  
Practices (BMPs) and Administrative By-Law Model and Training Plan 
 
Bonnie Fox introduced Keith Murch noting that there is a legislative requirement to have the CA 
Administrative By-laws in place by December 2018.  The presentation is attached to the minutes 
of the meeting. 
 
It was requested that a Word version of the presentation be provided to members via the 
Council members section of the website. 
 
C.W. #05/18 Moved by:  Mark Burnham Seconded by:  Linda Laliberte 
 
THAT Council endorse the “Conservation Authority Best Management Practices and 
Administrative By-Law Model” (draft April 2018) for implementation 

CARRIED 
 
 



7 
 

f. Conservation Ontario Submissions on the “Amendments to Ontario Regulation 287/07  
"General" under the Clean Water Act, 2006” (EBR # 013-1839) and “Establishment of a  
regulation under the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002” (EBR # 013-1840) 

 
Chitra Gowda provided a verbal update. Comments on the two EBR postings were submitted on 
February 20, 2018. Very recently, decision notices have been posted on both EBRs. The 
establishment and operation of liquid hydrocarbon pipelines is added as a prescribed drinking 
water threat activity under the Clean Water Act. Municipal drinking water system owners can  
apply for a drinking water works permit for new or changing wells and intakes (and apply for a 
licence for a new system), only after receiving confirmation from the lead source protection 
authority that it is satisfied that the required technical work is complete. The required technical 
work includes delineating vulnerable areas and determining vulnerability scores under the Clean 
Water Act. Further, treated water can only be supplied to the public after the local source 
protection plan is updated with policies to protect the sources of drinking water. 
 
C.W. #06/18 Moved by:  Mark Burnham Seconded by:  Rhonda Bateman 

 
THAT Council endorse the letter, dated February 20, 2018 on the “Amendments to Ontario 
Regulation 287/07 "General" under the Clean Water Act, 2006” (EBR # 013-1839) submitted to 
the Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change. 
 
AND THAT Council endorse the letter, dated February 20, 2018 on the “Establishment of a 
regulation under the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002” (EBR # 013-1840) submitted to the 
Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change. 

CARRIED 
 
 

g. Drinking Water Source Protection Joint Advisory Committee Membership Renewal 
 
C.W. #07/18 Moved by:  Mark Peacock  Seconded by:  Michael Columbus 
 
THAT Council endorse the appointment of Joe Farwell (Grand River Conservation Authority) as 
west regional representative on the Source Water Protection Joint Advisory Committee as of 
February 1, 2018. 

CARRIED 
 

h. CO Comments on Watershed Planning Guidelines (EBR# 013-1817) 
 

Bonnie Fox’s presentation slides are attached to the minutes of the meeting. 
 

C.W. #08/18 Moved by:  Geoffrey Dawe Seconded by:  Stephen Arnold 
 
THAT the comments on the “Watershed Planning in Ontario: Guidance for land-use planning 
authorities” (EBR #013 – 1817) submitted to the Ministry of Environment and Climate Change 
on April 6, 2018 be endorsed by Council. 

CARRIED 
 

Members expressed concern with how the role of CAs is neglected in this documentation. 
 
A subsequent motion was suggested: 



8 
 

 
C.W. #09/18 Moved by:  Dick Hibma  Seconded by:  Mark Burnham 
 
THAT Conservation Ontario submit further comments to the Ministers of Natural Resources 
and Forestry, Treasury Board Secretariat, Environment and Climate Change, and Municipal 
Affairs to indicate that this Watershed Planning Initiative is a multijurisdictional responsibility 
between the Province, Municipalities and Conservation Authorities (where they exist); 
 
AND THAT the required funding for the work must reflect this multijurisdictional approach. 
 

CARRIED 
 
 

i. Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change’s (MOECC) Approach to Climate Change  
Adaptation (EBR #013-1520) 
 
Jo-Anne Rzadki highlighted the submission and noted some recent developments. 
 
There are plans to begin implementing the climate change risk/vulnerability assessments which 
would take place over a period of 2 or 3 years.    There has been a request for bids.  The 
province is also in the process of finalizing the selection of constituting board members for the 
“new climate change organization”.   She emphasized that CO will follow up proactively when 
we receive updates on these two initiatives. Discussion included requests for clarification 
regarding transferability of internal actions within provincial ministries by Lyle Pederson and the 
recommendation of Ouranos as a model for the new organization by newly elected CO Chair – 
Don MacIver.  Jo-Anne clarified that there is support for the new organization having a made in 
Ontario approach.   
 
C.W. #10/18 Moved by:  Lyle Pedersen  Seconded by:  Frank Prevost 
 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council endorses the CO letter on Ministry of the Environment and 
Climate Change’s (MOECC) Approach to Climate Change Adaptation (EBR #013-1520). 

CARRIED 
 
   

j. Status of Ontario Tree Seed Facility Closure 
 

Jo-Anne Rzadki updated Council that Forests Ontario and Forest Gene Conservation Association 
have been developing options for the Business plan noted in the report and the Province is 
considering. 
 
C.W. #11/18 Moved by:  Mark Burnham Seconded by:  Doug Hevenor 
 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council receives the following report for information. 

CARRIED 
 

  



9 
 

 
k. Update on the 2018 Latornell Conservation Symposium 

 
Jane Lewington provided a verbal update:  The Symposium dates are November 13-15, 2018.  
Members were encouraged to consider who they may nominate for a Latornell Leadership 
Award. 
 
C.W. #12/18 Moved by:  Mark Burnham Seconded by:  Steve Arnold 
 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council receives this report for information. 

CARRIED 
 
 

l. Proposal to Update CO’s Guide to Conservation Areas Brochure 
 

C.W. #13/18 Moved by:  Linda Laliberte Seconded by:  Frank Prevost 
 
THAT Conservation Ontario proceed to update and reprint 85,000 copies of the Guide to 
Conservation Areas in Ontario. 

CARRIED 
 

m. Program Update 
- Drinking Water Source Protection 

 
Chitra Gowda updated members that the agreements for 2018-19 which represents a total of 
$7.2 million covering 47 Full Time Equivalent CA staff (down from $7.8 million and 49 FTEs the 
previous year).  The drop results from a decrease in technical work which was expected as we 
move forward.  Some working groups have completed their work, notably the Knowledge 
Transfer Working Group.  A webinar will take place in the near future for the General Managers. 
 
Municipal drinking water system owners can apply for a drinking water works permit for new or 
changing wells and intakes (and apply for a licence for a new system), only after receiving a 
confirmation notice from the lead source protection authority that it is satisfied that the 
required technical work is complete. Further, treated water can only be supplied to the public 
after the local source protection plan is updated with policies to protect the sources of drinking 
water. This is a change in the role of the lead source protection authority, placing it into the 
munciapl business process of applying for drinking water permits and licences, and supply for 
water to the public. Chitra also reported that MOECC has heard concerns from some 
municipalities about potential delays on the source protection authority side in issuing the 
notice to allow for municipalities to apply for drinking waters works permits and licences.  The 
timing of the required updates to and the approval of the Source Protection Plan might result in 
delay for the municipalities to provide water as a public supply of water.  This will be taken to 
the Joint Advisory Committee to provide recommendations back to the ministry. 

 
C.W. #14/18 Moved by:  Michael Columbus Seconded by:  Mark Burnham 
 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council receives this report for information. 

CARRIED 
  



10 
 

 
13. Consent Agenda  

 
C.W. #15/18 Moved by:  Lyle Pedersen  Seconded by:  Mark Burnham 
 
THAT Council approve a consent agenda and endorse the recommendations accompanying 
Items 13a – 13r. 

CARRIED 
 
a. Procedure for Updating Section 28 Mapping: Development, Interference with Wetlands and 

Alterations to Shorelines and Watercourses Regulation 
 
THAT Council endorse the proposed “Procedure for Updating Section 28 Mapping: Development, 
Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines and Watercourses Regulations” dated 
April, 2018  
 
AND THAT it be shared with the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry. 
 

b. Conservation Ontario’s comments on the “Proposed new regulation under the Planning Act to 
prescribe transitional provisions for the Building Better Communities and Conserving 
Watersheds Act, 2017 (Bill 139)” (EBR#013-1788) and “Proposed Amendments to Matters 
Included in existing Regulations under the Planning Act Relating to the Building Better 
Communities and Conserving Watersheds Act, 2017 (Bill 139)” (EBR#013-1790) 

 
THAT the comments on “Proposed new regulation under the Planning Act to prescribe 
transitional provisions for the Building Better Communities and Conserving Watersheds Act, 
2017 (Bill 139)” (EBR #013-1788) and the comments on the “Proposed Amendments to Matters 
Included in Existing Regulations under the Planning Act Relating to the Building Better 
Communities and Conserving Watersheds Act, 2017 (Bill 139)” (EBR #013-1790) both submitted 
to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing on January 19, 2017, be endorsed. 
 

c. Conservation Ontario’s comments on “Protecting Water for Future Generations:  Growing the 
Greenbelt in the Outer Ring” (EBR #013-1661) 

 
THAT the comments on “Protecting Water for Future Generations: Growing the Greenbelt in the 
Outer Ring” (EBR #013-1661) submitted to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing on 
March 7, 2018 be endorsed. 

 
d. Policy Proposal Notice: Developing a Voluntary Carbon Offset Program For Ontario  

(EBR # 013-1634) 
 

THAT Conservation Ontario Council endorses the CO letter on Policy Proposal Notice: Developing 
a Voluntary Carbon Offset Program for Ontario (EBR # 013-1634) 
 

e. Conservation Ontario’s Comments on “New Horizons: The Draft Agricultural Soil Health and 
Conservation Strategy for Ontario” (EBR #013-1373) 

 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council endorse the letter submitted on “New Horizons: The Draft 
Agricultural Soil Health and Conservation Strategy for Ontario” (EBR #013-1373). 

 



11 
 

f. Submission of Conservation Ontario’s 2017 Annual Effectiveness Monitoring Report on the 
Class Environmental Assessment for Remedial Flood and Erosion Control Projects 

 
THAT Conservation Ontario’s “2017 Annual Effectiveness Monitoring Report on the Class 
Environmental Assessment for Remedial Flood and Erosion Control Projects” be received. 

 
g. Update on the Agricultural System and Natural Heritage System for the Growth Plan for the  

Greater Golden Horseshoe  
 

THAT Conservation Ontario Council receives this report as information. 
 

h. Drainage Act and Section 28 Regulation Team (DART) Terms of Reference 
 
THAT the “Draft Confidential OMAFRA/MNRF 02/14/2018 Drainage Act & Section 28 Regulations 
Team (DART) Terms of Reference” be approved. 

 
i. Provincial Groundwater Monitoring Network (PGMN) Partnership Agreement 

 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council endorse the proposed partnership agreement and 
accompanying memo for signing by CA PGMN Partners. 

 
j. Conservation Ontario Group Insurance & Benefits Committee Update 

 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council receives this report as information. 

 
k. 4R Ontario Steering Committee Status Report  

 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council receives this report for information. 

 
l. Conservation Authority Staff Representative Appointment to the Lyme Disease Stakeholder 

Reference Group (Provincial)  
 

THAT Council approve the appointment of Craig Machan (Conservation Halton), the current 
Chair of the Conservation Areas Working Group as Conservation Ontario’s representative on the 
provincial Lyme Disease Stakeholder Reference Group. 

 
m. Lake Ontario and St. Lawrence River Shoreline Landowner Survey  

 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council receives this report for information. 

 
n. 2017 CO Council Meeting Effectiveness Survey Results  

 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council receives this report for information. 
 

o. Program Updates 
i. Marketing & Communications 

 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council receives this report for information. 

 
ii. Business & Development &Partnerhips 



12 
 

 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council receives this report for information. 
 

iii. Information Management  
 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council receives this report for information. 

 
p. Board of Directors Meeting Minutes to be received:  

August 3, 30, Sept 25, Nov 20, Dec 11/12, 2017  
 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council receives these minutes. 
 

q. Correspondence 
i. CO Letter to Premier Kathleen Wynne re:  Bill 139, Conservation Authorites Act 

ii. CO Letter to Honourable Ralph Goodale, Minister of Public Saftey re: National  
Disaster Mitigation Program  

iii. Honourable Bill Morneau Minister of Finance to CO re Budget 2018 
iv. CO Letter to Premier Kathleen Wynne:  Re Flooding 
v. Premier Kathleen Wynne to CO re Flooding  

 
r. Project Tracking   

 
 

14. Presentation:  2018 Flooding Challenges (J. Farwell (GRCA), Mark Peacock(LTVCA)) 
 

Presentations are attached to the minutes of the meeting. 
 
 

15. Motion to Move from Committee of the Whole to Full Council 
 

#14/18  Moved by: Brian Tayler   Seconded by:  Linda Laliberte 
 
THAT the meeting now move from Committee of the Whole Full Council.  

CARRIED 
 
 

16. Council Business – Council Adoption of Recommendations 
 

#15/18  Moved by:  Mark Burnham   Seconded by:  Brian Tayler 
 
THAT Conservation Ontario Council adopt Committee of the Whole (C.W.) Recommendations:  
C.W. #01/18 to C.W. #15/18. 

CARRIED 
 

 
17. New Business 
 

The Board of Directors will meet directly following the Council meeting. 
 
Kim Gavine provided instructions regarding Queen’s Park Day. 



13 
 

 
18. Adjourn 

 
#16/18  Moved by: Mark Burnham 
 
THAT the meeting be adjourned. 

 
 



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018          Item 6.1 
Report Date: June 11, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
 Conservation Areas: 
 

• The Conservation Authority owns 15 conservation areas and manages 17 
properties for the Foundation 

• Of those 15 conservation areas, 6 are managed by the local municipality and 9 
are operated by the Conservation Authority 

• Of these 9, 3 conservation areas are regional campgrounds which attract 
campers from primarily Southwestern Ontario 

• Our three regional campgrounds have over 500 campsites and 420 seasonal 
campers and are financially self sufficient 

• Profits obtained from our campgrounds are used to offset capital improvements 
• The camping season in 2018 runs from Friday, April 27 to Thanksgiving Day 

 
Warwick Conservation Area 
 

• Hydro service, lights and a new ag tuff ceiling have been installed in the storage 
shed 

• The 9 hole mini golf course has been upgraded with new carpet and 4 x 4 lumber 
• Roads have been upgraded with gravel 
• All light fixtures and exterior lighting have been upgraded with LED bulbs and 

new fixtures 
• A new laundry shed has been constructed and installed at the main washroom 

building 
 

Kevan Baker, Director of Lands  

Conservation Lands Report 



Staff Report 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

L.C. Henderson Conservation Area 
 

• Playground equipment surfacing 
has been upgraded with 
engineered wood chips and 
subsurface drainage  

• Roads have been upgraded with 
gravel 

• Trailer pads have been installed on 
5 campsites in the Towerview 
camping area 

• All light fixtures and exterior 
lighting have been upgraded with 
LED bulbs and new fixtures 

• A catch basin and subsurface tile drainage will be installed on two campsites  
• A new solar pole light has been installed in the un-serviced camping area 
• 36 stumps have been removed and the area leveled with topsoil 

 
A.W. Campbell Conservation Area 
 

• A new concrete sidewalk has been installed 
in front of the pool washroom building 

• Improvements to be made to the main 
entrance roadway between the river 
crossing and the main parking lot (fall 2018) 

• A hydro panel has been upgraded in the 
main campground area 

• Roads have been upgraded with gravel 
• Playground equipment surfacing has been 

upgraded with engineered wood chips and 
subsurface drainage (Foundation Funded) 

• The pavilion roof has been replaced with 
steel 

• All light fixtures and exterior lighting have 
been upgraded with LED bulbs and new 
fixtures 

 
Highland Glen Conservation Area:  
 

• Approximately 60 ft of new walkway has been installed along the inside of the 
boat ramp (funded through 2017 fees) 

• A new beacon light has been installed on the outer seawall 
• Welding repairs will be completed on a section of the south seawall 

 



Staff Report 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Other Lands Activities: 
 

• Sub-surface drainage and soil erosion 
works have been completed on 
Property 82 on the McKeough 
Upstream lands 

• A new property identification sign has 
been installed (Strathroy Conservation 
Area) 

• 13 stumps have been removed from 
along the access roadway at CJ 
McEwen  

• Bannerstone (Foundation) – property 
access gates, signage, and a small 
parking have been constructed 

• County Rail trail – staff have cut along the trails edge and graded the gravel 
surface 

Marketing/Camping Statistics: 
 
Our conservation areas have been marketed in the following publications or events in 
2018: 

• Sarnia Lambton and Chatham-Kent Tourism Guide 
• Camping ad has been placed on MyFm website 
• Conservation Ontario – “Your Guide to Conservation Areas” 
• Central Lambton Travel Guide 
• Hayter Publication’s Special Editions (4) “Cottage and Campers” 
• Sarnia Art Walk (Downtown Sarnia, June 3rd and 4th) 
• 418 seasonal campers have registered in our 3 campgrounds, up from 415 in 

2017. 190 seasonal campers are registered at Warwick (189 in 2017), 121 at LC 
Henderson (119 in 2017) and 107 at A.W. Campbell (107 in 2017). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bannerstone Property 



Staff Report 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
2018 Conservation Area Staff 
 
Director of Lands   Kevan Baker 
 
A.W. Campbell Conservation Area   
Mike Tizzard (Superintendent)  
    Don Skinner (Assistant Superintendent) 
    Mary Ann Niewenhuizen (Maint. Foreperson) 
    Scott Vail (Visitor Services) 
    Michela Searson (Lifeguard - summer) 
    Erikah Campbell (Lifeguard- summer) 
    Amy Dymond (Visitor Services) 
 
L.C. Henderson Conservation Area   
Terry Barrie (Superintendent)   
    Luke Derks (Assistant Superintendent) 
    Sherry Turner (Maint. Foreperson) 
    Abbigail Withers (Visitor Services) 
    Eric Hughes (Lifeguard – summer) 
    Griffin Allen (Gatehouse, summer, part-time) 
 
Warwick Conservation Area:    
Bill Turner (Superintendent)   
    Glenn Baxter (Assistant Superintendent) 
    Jesse VanderVaart (Visitor Services- seasonal) 
    George Rueger (Visitor Services – seasonal) 
    Dawson Nethercott (Visitor Services – seasonal) 
    Emily Leyten (Gatehouse/ Events – summer) 
    Cailey Cook (Gatehouse/Events – summer) 
    Blake Leyten (Maintenance – summer) 
    Michael Cotton (Maintenance – summer) 

Morgan McKay (lifeguard – summer)    
Sydney Robbins (lifeguard – summer) 

 
Keith McLean Conservation Lands:  
Scott O’Brien (Superintendent) (Part-time - Foundation) 

 
 

 
 



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 7.1 
Report Date: June 1, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
Current Watershed Conditions: 
 
Fig 1 Current River Levels Compared to June Average Levels (SCRCA Data) 

 
 
 Reasonably dry conditions with no major events in May has resulted in river 

levels (blue) close to average (red) into June. Hot and dry weather at the end of 
May with few major storms saw a reduction in flow at all gauging stations. This is 
expected to prevail into summer based on long term weather reports  

 
Precipitation: 
 
           Fig 2 Regional Precipitation (ECC Data) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Steve Clark  

Watershed Conditions Report 

Precipitation (mm)
Last Quarter Actual Normal Actual Normal Actual Normal Actual Normal

March 44.2 62.6 57 74.9 45.9 78.4 66 75
April 103.1 75.4 100.6 84 105.4 82.2 106.6 85.1
May 45.3 69.9 65.2 74 49.2 82.9 153.8 80.8

last 3 month totals 192.6 207.9 222.8 232.9 200.5 243.5 326.4 240.9
last 3 month % of normal
regional average

last 6 month totals 342.7 373.7 496 461.7 429.9 466.3 613.3 430.5
last 6 month % of normal
regional average

last 12 month totals 687.8 846.8 893.8 945.1 794.8 987 1134.7 918.4
last 12 month % of normal
regional average

108.4%

81.2% 94.6% 80.5% 123.6%
95.0%

92.6% 95.7% 82.3% 135.5%
101.5%

91.7% 107.4% 92.2% 142.5%

Averages

Sarnia Strathroy London Windsor



Staff Report 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 With a wet April followed by a drier month of May, the 3 month precipitation 
numbers remained close to average at 101.5% of normal and overall six month 
numbers slightly above expected at 108.4%.  

 The 12 month numbers remain slightly below average at 95% likely due to a drier 
period across the region in the fall of 2017.  

 
Weather Conditions and Forecast: 
                                                    
                                                    Fig 3 El Nino\La Nina Influence 
 Overall - conditions into 

Summer show relatively 
neutral conditions in June 
stronger El Nino influence 
into July (Fig 3) 

 
 June - Below seasonal 

temperatures into first of 
the month with 10mm 
above average 
precipitation conditions 
with a warming trend 
toward the end of the 
month. 

 
 July - our region is modelled at warmer than normal temperatures with precipitation 

modelled to be seasonal to drier than normal. Years identified as being similar based 
on modelling include 2006 and 2013.  

 
Fig 5 identifies the seasonal normal (solid line) with 2018 conditions (dashed line) 

 
 



Staff Report 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

While March had notably below temperature normal numbers conditions improved 
significantly into April and May as we moved quickly into Summer This graph will 
continue to be updated in future board reports to show the trend pattern for the entire 
year. 
 
Great Lakes Levels: 
 
April lake level data (latest available as of this report) indicates a continued increase in 
overall levels for the Great Lakes in our region by 13cm over April 2017. Similarly, 
current levels remain above the 10 year average as well as above the all-time average 
(100 years). In addition, Lake Huron levels are reported to be 14cm higher in June than 
current reported April Levels.  
 
Fig 6 Great Lakes Data (Fisheries and Oceans Canada – *all figures in Metres) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 April 2018 Lake Huron Lake St. Clair Lake Erie

Mean for Month (preliminary data) 176.79 175.6 174.78
Mean for month last year 176.66 175.47 174.64
Change 0.13 0.13 0.14

Mean for month, last 10 years 176.19 175.08 174.31
Change compared to current 0.60 0.52 0.47

Mean for month, All Time 176.38 175.04 174.23
Change compared to Current 0.41 0.56 0.55

177.23 175.82 174.98
1986 1986 1985

Change compared to Current -0.44 -0.22 -0.20

Minimum monthly mean / year 175.61 174.32 173.38
1964 1926 1934

Probable mean for next month 176.88 175.6 174.82
Next month compared to current 0.09 0 0.04

Statistics for period of record

Maximum monthly mean / year



Staff Report 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
  Fig 7 Three Year Overview of Lake Levels (Fisheries and Oceans Canada) 

 
 



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 7.2 
Report Date: June 15, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
Introduction: The W. Darcy McKeough Floodway is intended to mitigate flooding in 
Wallaceburg. The control gates remain open under normal flow conditions, but when 
Wallaceburg is threatened by flooding, they are closed to divert the flow down the 
diversion channel into the St. Clair River. The McKeough Floodway controls all flood 
water upstream of the dam by diversion and temporary storage. The diversion channel is 
capable of diverting high flows from both the Bear and Black creeks when the dam is 
closed. 
 
Operating procedure: The Flood Coordinator shall present the facts on the 
circumstances of the flood threat to the General Manager. Where there is a probability 
that operation of the gates should be considered, the General Manager will present the 
facts with a recommendation to the Chair and a decision will be made. The gates at the 
dam shall be operated accordingly. The operating procedures for the gates are based on 
the following three observed/measured parameters: 
 

• Water levels in Wallaceburg 
• Rate of rise in Wallaceburg; and 
• Bear Creek flow at the Brigden gauge 

 
The table below shows the current operating guidelines established by consulting 
engineers; this is used as a criterion to operate the Floodway.  
 
The McKeough Dam has 2 concrete gates that are lowered into place to divert flows from 
the north branch of the Sydenham River down the channel to the St. Clair River. The 
gates can operate individually, however, it is recommended that both gates be opened or 
closed slowly and with the same opening.  The exception to this would be when the gates 
are used on a temporary basis to break-up ice cover or to assist in releasing an 
established ice jam. It is a general practice to raise/lower gates in intervals of about 0.5 
to 1m. The opening of the dam gates is a slow process and usually takes place over a 
period of 72 hours. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Girish Sankar  

McKeough Operating Criteria 



Staff Report 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Water Levels 
Rainfall Rate 
& Amount Ice 

Conditions 
Great Lakes 
Water Levels 

Meteorological 
Conditions 

Snow 
Conditions Ice 
Breaking Ice 

Jamming 

+ 

Flow of 
Bear 
Creek 

at 
Brigden 

of 18 
cubic 
m/sec 

(635 cu. 
ft./sec) 

or 
greater 

+ 

Rate of Rise 
at 

Wallaceburg 
of 

And 
Water Level 

at 
Wallaceburg 

of 

= 

Closure of 
the Gates 

of the 
McKeough 

Dam 

50mm/hr or 
greater  176.000m 

(577.5ft)  
 or  
40mm/hr or 
greater  176.060m 

(577.7ft) 
 or  
30mm/hr or 
greater  176.120m 

(577.9ft) 
 or  
20mm/hr or 
greater  176.180m 

(578.1ft) 
 or  
10mm/hr or 
greater  176.240m 

(578.2ft) 
 or  
Regardless 
of R of R  176.300m 

(578.4ft) 
 
Table 1: Operational Criteria for the W. Darcy McKeough Dam and Floodway 

 
Highlights of February 2018 Event: 

 
Monday, Feb 19  

• 12:00 p.m. Staff issue an advisory on Monday, Feb 19th - Flood WATCH 

Tuesday, Feb 20 
• 2 p.m. Flood watch updated with actual rainfall amounts on Feb 20th 
• 10 p.m. Flood status updated from Flood 

Watch to Flood Warning 

          Wednesday, Feb 21  
• 6 a.m. McKeough dam in operation 

Thursday, Feb 22 
• 8 p.m. Updated Flood Bulletin 

Friday, Feb 23 
• 1 p.m. 0.5 m Commenced opening 
• 8 p.m. 0.5 m  

Saturday, Feb 24  
• 9:15 a.m. 0.5 m opening 



Staff Report 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Sunday, Feb 25  
• 4:30 p.m. 0.5 m Opened 

Monday, Feb 26  
• 8:15 a.m. Opened completely 

 
Previous Operations: The extent of rising and lowering of gates would depend on the 
intensity of flooding. The design engineers estimated that the structure would be operated 
in a flood event once in every seven years. The floodway/diversion channel has been 
operated 7 times since its construction in 1984.  
 
Operating Criteria Review: Requests to review the operating criteria have been brought 
forward on several occasions from the Town of Wallaceburg (previously) and more 
recently from Chatham-Kent. Concern has most often been focused on the fact that some 
minor flooding is already occurring in Wallaceburg, before the criteria for gate closure is 
met.  
 
Further, there have been multiple requests for the review of the criteria to permit operation 
of the floodway to reduce flooding in areas beyond the boundaries of Wallaceburg. 
Although these can be reviewed, the expropriations certificate which provided the basis 
for acquiring upstream easements and properties appears to close off this option. 
 
Previous Modifications to Criteria: The initial operating criteria had allowed for 
modifications to the operating rule with experience and knowledge of different scenarios 
requiring Mckeough dam operation. The criteria was modified in 1985 and 1987. In the 
mid 1990’s, a review was undertaken with a committee of Authority Board Members 
consummating in a decision to maintain the existing criteria.   
 
Subsequent to the February 2009 Flood in Wallaceburg and February 2018, it has been 
requested that the operating criteria be reviewed and recommendations be brought 
forward to improve the data available to assist in decision making. Ice jamming in 2008 
and 2009 further highlighted the need for additional monitoring stations in or near 
Wallaceburg to provide more data to improve the understanding of water levels in 
Wallaceburg. 
 
Thirty years of data on water levels, flows, wind conditions and lake effects as well as a 
quarter century of experience in operating the floodway could provide significant input 
into an engineer’s review of the operating criteria of the structure.  
 
“Flood easements purchased upstream of the dam were acquired based on the 
understanding that the dam would only be operated when Wallaceburg was in 
‘imminent’ threat of flooding. Any change to the criteria must reflect this and a legal 
review should be sought to confirm that there would not be legal and/or financial 
implications to any change to the operating criteria.”  
 
 
 



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 7.3 
Report Date: June 1, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
National Disaster Mitigation Program: 
 
The National Disaster Mitigation Program (NDMP) was established by the Government 
of Canada to address the increasing dangers and costs faced by Canadian 
Communities as a result of flood events. The program will receive $200 million in 
funding over the course of five years to improve knowledge regarding flood risks and 
enhance current flood response programs. These improvements will help protect 
property and public safety by ensuring more efficient mitigation efforts and recovery 
procedures following flood events. 
 
Issues/Analysis: 
 
In Ontario, conservation authorities have been delegated the primary responsibility for 
risk assessments and flood plain mapping from the Ministry of Natural Resources and 
Forestry. In the 1970’s and 1980’s floodplain mapping commenced under the Flood 
Damage Reduction Program (FDRP). Since that time, there has been no federal or 
provincial investment towards flood plain analysis. 
 
The existing floodplain mapping of SCRCA is based on older Digital Elevation Models 
with coarse contour intervals of 5 meters. Floodplain elevation discrepancies are often 
noticed during review process, often 1 – 2 meters or more. Through the SWOOP 
program, our office has acquired accurate imagery (2010) that can be used to create an 
extremely detailed DEM with greater accuracy. A flood study using this DEM will deliver 
accurate floodplain mapping for the watershed.  
 
Staff at SCRCA propose to apply for funding to complete an updated floodplain 
mapping study for the watershed. However, considering the resources and funding 
limitations, the practical approach is to consider a pilot study to be conducted over the 
next 2 years (2018 and 2019) focussing on 2 regions in the watershed. Staff have 
identified a rural watershed (St. Clair Township) and an urban (Sarnia) watershed to 
conduct this mapping exercise. 
 
Finance: 
 
The total cost of this project is estimated to be $200,000. SCRCA has been approved 
for NDMP funding, 50% of the costs have to be matched by the Municipality, of which 
15% is the in-kind contribution such as labour, use of facilities and equipment, which 

Girish Sankar 

Floodplain Mapping Project 



Staff Report 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

can be readily absorbed by SCRCA. The SCRCA is seeking the remainder ($70,000) 
from  

1) City of Sarnia 
2) St. Clair Township 

 
Highlights of this floodplain mapping project will include: 
 

• Hydrologic model using DEM and/or Lidar data 
• Surveying work to validate the model 
• 2D Hydraulic model using a hydraulic software 
• Produce flood maps and reports 
• Train staff to develop floodplain mapping 
• Calibrating/Validating flood model 
• Review flood map 

 
Staff are working on a Terms of Reference for this project. We are looking to partner 
with a consulting organization that has worked with our office on similar projects 
previously. Staff have shortlisted 3 pre-qualified consultants for this work. 
 

1. Riggs Engineering 
2. Stantec Inc 
3. Golder Inc 

 



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018     Item 7.4 
Report Date: June 15, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 

 
• We submitted 6 projects 
• Only one project secured part funding to date 

 
Courtright Waterfront Restoration – Phase 1 
 

• Approximately 130 meters of Shoreline work has been completed as of today. 
• Due to timeline restrictions and higher cost provided by Bre-Ex, SCRCA 

recommended that no additional work be completed. 
• Minor restoration and repair work is completed as of June 15, 2018. 
• This is the first phase of construction at Courtright Park. 
• Pictures below is taken on April 5th looking south and north along the Courtright 

park. 
 

Structure Project 
Name Description of Work 

Total 
Project 
Cost ($) 

Grant 
Received 

 ($) 

All Structures Engineering 
Inspection 

Engineering inspection and 
reporting to review structural 
integrity and required 
maintenance of all authority 
owned dams 

$20,000 $20,000 

Girish Sankar, Director of Water Resources 

Water & Erosion Control Infrastructure (WECI) Projects 



Staff Report 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

  
Sarnia Shoreline Protection – Phase 1 
 

• Construction work was completed on June 1, 2018 
• Construction crew faced a number of weather related challenges, but were 

extremely dedicated to complete the project. 
• Restoration work is ongoing and will be completed by June 20, 2018 
• This is the first phase of construction for Helen avenue to Kenwick park shoreline 

restoration 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 8.1 
Report Date: June 8, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges this report 
dated June 8, 2018 on the Healthy Watersheds 
Program Update 
 
Background: 
 
Walk the Watershed (WTW) is an annual project in 
Lambton Shores in which landowners voluntarily allow 
SCRCA staff to walk their property to assess 
watercourse buffer condition, potential erosion 
concerns and ground-truth GIS modelling. The project 
provides an opportunity to build a relationship with local 
landowners, raise awareness of our presence in 
Lambton Shores for the purpose of improving water 
quality and soil health, assist in reducing erosion, and 
connect landowners with resources and grants to 
improve best management practices on their properties.  

 
This year’s Walk the Watershed 
focus area was Shashwandah 
Creek lowlands, downstream of 
the Shashwandah headwaters 
focus area from 2017. 
Watercourses included in the 
focus area are, Shashwandah 
Creek, Stewardson Drain, Ross 
Drain and Davidson Drain. 
Over 27 landowners have been 
contacted. So far, 20 properties 
and over 500ha have been 
assessed. Overall landowner 
feedback has been positive 
with most landowners agreeing 
to walk with SCRCA staff. 
Property assessments are set 
to finish mid-June.   

Jessica Van Zwol and Laura Biancolin 

Healthy Watersheds Program Update – Walk the Watershed 



Staff Report 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
2018 watercourse features  

 
GIS Procedure for Locating Agricultural BMPs in a Lambton Shores sub-
watershed To identify areas with potential erosion in the focus area, staff used a 2m 
resolution Digital Elevation Model (DEM) to create two derivative indices: Stream Power 
Index (SPI) and Topographic Wetness Index (TWI). SPI is a measure of a water body’s 
erosion power and can predict locations where gullies are likely to occur. SPI is 
calculated based on slope and contributing area. TWI uses similar data sets as SPI but 
can be used to predict areas of surface saturation.  Staff made improvements to the 
mapping model based on last year’s experience. Meeting with landowners and showing 
property maps with the updated overlaid indices allowed staff to ground truth in the field 
and make use of the landowner’s existing knowledge of the land.  

At left: aerial photo without model layers, showing grassed waterway (green) and three 
narrow based berms (yellow) created to prevent soil erosion.  
 
At right: aerial photo with model layers (SPI, red; TWI, pink) confirming the value of the 
infield grassed waterway and berms. Staff confirmed these erosion features in person 
and with the landowner.  
 

Watercourse Drain Class Drainage 
Area 

Channel 
Length 

Channel 
Slope 

Agriculture 
land use 

Tree 
cover 

Shashwandah 
Creek 

C: warm water 
no top 
predators 

2018: 
1,300ha 
Total: 
3,400ha 

2018: 
13.4km  
Total: 
27.5km 

0.15% 86.7% 8.6% 

Stewardson 
Drain 

F: Intermittent  2.8km2 5.2km 0.70% 88.5% 7.1% 

Ross Drain F: Intermittent 1.8km2 4.6km 0.42% 82.9% 12.3% 
Davidson Drain F/T: Intermittent 

& enclosed  
2.0km2 4.0km 0.21% 90.2% 5.3% 



Staff Report 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Below: the GIS derived indices (SPI & TWI) frequently matched exact locations of 
erosion in the field.  

 



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 8.2 
Report Date: June 8, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Board of Directors acknowledge this report dated June 8, 2018 on the Ontario 
Trillium Foundation Grant update. 
 
Background: 
 
The St. Clair River flows 64 km from Lake Huron to Lake St. Clair. The St. Clair River 
Area of Concern (AOC) covers 3350 km2 (335 000 ha) and includes the river, its delta, 
channels and its immediate drainage basin. The AOC was designated under the Great 
Lakes Water Quality Agreement (Canada & US). The wetlands and shallow open 
waters of the lower St. Clair River and Lake St. Clair provide important habitat for many 
species and are considered some of the most important wetland areas in the Great 
Lakes basin. The project focuses on one of the Beneficial Use Impairments (BUI’s), 
“Loss of Fish and Wildlife Habitat”, which requires wetland habitat creation, improved 
wetland quality, enhanced fish habitat, and tributary buffer creation to remove this BUI. 
 
Ontario Trillium Foundation (OTF) Funding: 
 
An application was submitted in partnership with the Friends of the St. Clair River in 
November of 2015 for a 3-year Grow Stream Grant for $160,300.  Funding was 
approved for the full amount. The Grow Grant aligned with the following OTF goals. 
Action Area: Green People 
Priority Outcome: More ecosystems are protected and restored 
Grant Result: Conservation and restoration efforts are better planned and more 
sustainable 
 
This collaborative project consists of three major components.  

1. St. Clair River AOC Aquatic Inventory – The St. Clair River Watershed Plan 
states that mussel and fish data is lacking for the tributaries in the AOC. 
Current mussel, fish, invertebrate, and water quality data is essential to 
prioritizing aquatic restoration efforts mandated to de-list the area.  

2. St. Clair River AOC Aquatic Habitat Restoration – Although much of the St.        
Clair River AOC requires further inventory studies to assist in restoration 
decisions, some projects were ready to proceed. Aquatic habitat restoration is 
a key component of the AOC recovery and de-listing efforts. Aquatic habitat 
restoration project examples include wetland creation/restoration, fish barrier 

Greg Wilcox 

Summary of 3-year (2016 – 2018) Ontario Trillium Foundation 
Grant in Partnership with Friends of the St. Clair River 



Staff Report 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

removal, natural riffle/pool construction in streams, and tributary buffer 
creation.  

3. St. Clair River AOC Aquatic Outreach and Education – Improved engagement 
of local residents through education and outreach on the topic of the loss of 
fish and wildlife habitat.  Education will be provided to school children through 
hands-on opportunities to experience and learn about the wildlife in the 
region. The project will help us better understand the AOC aquatic health and 
communicate the progress made towards de-listing the St. Clair River AOC. 

 
Progress: 
 
Aquatic Inventories: 
To date, thirty-nine fish surveys have been completed throughout the AOC (15 in 
2016/17, 10 in 2017/18, 14 in 2018/19). A total of 57 species have been observed with 
over 20,000 fish captured and identified. Five species at risk have been observed at 
sixteen sites. At risk fish include Blackstripe Topminnow (Special Concern), Silver 
Lamprey (Special Concern), Spotted Sucker (Special Concern), Grass Pickerel (Special 
Concern), and Lake Chubsucker (Threatened).   
 
 

 
Above: Lake Chubsucker 
 

  
Above: Grass Pickerel 
 
 
 



Staff Report 
 

Page 3 of 6 
 

Mussel surveys were completed in both 2016 and 2017, with 2018 surveys taking place 
this summer. The 2016 mussel work consisted of a large mussel relocation on Bear 
Creek as part of a barrier removal project. The project was successful as over 600 
mussels were surveyed and over 300 relocated including 69 Mapleleaf (Threatened). A 
Fawnsfoot (Endangered) mussel was discovered, which is a new species record for the 
North Branch of the Sydenham River. Additional species surveyed include White 
Heelsplitter, Pink Heelsplitter, Giant Floater, Fragile Papershell, Deertoe, Flutedshell, 
Spike, and Three-ridge. 
In 2017, fourteen intensive timed searches were completed on a 7km stretch of Black 
Creek. 1296 live mussels were surveyed, as well as 1369 dead mussels. In total 11 
species were observed including 529 Mapleleaf (Threatened) and 1 Lilliput 
(Threatened). The Lilliput is the only current (in the last 25 yrs.) record for the North 
Sydenham. A 1-year follow up survey was completed as part of the previous year’s 
mussel relocation. An additional 294 mussels were surveyed.   
In 2018, another fourteen timed searches will be conducted on Bear Creek. If funding is 
approved to remove another barrier, a new mussel relocation will begin.   
 

 
Mapleleaf    Lilliput    Fawnsfoot 

 
 

 
View from Bickford Line as the mussel relocation took place 



Staff Report 
 

Page 4 of 6 
 

To date, seven watercourses have been monitored for temperature in the AOC. After 
data analysis, watercourses will be categorized as either warm, cool, or cold water. In 
2016, 3 sites had temperature loggers deployed and all 3 were classified as coolwater.  
In 2017, 2 sites were completed with both classified as warmwater. In 2018, 2 additional 
sites are being monitored and analysis will be completed in the winter.   
 
Habitat Restoration: 
 
Through the first two years, OTF funds have contributed to 10 restoration projects in the 
AOC. One project was a barrier removal and riffle habitat creation, seven have been 
wetland creation, and two were riparian buffer plantings. A total of 23.1 acres of habitat 
have been improved/created and one in-stream barrier to fish passage has been 
removed.   
 
    Barrier Removal and Riffle Creation 
 

 
  Before       After 
 
    Wetland Creation with Control Structure 
 

 
  Before       After 



Staff Report 
 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 
Outreach and Education: 
 
In 2016, SCRCA education and biology departments joined a local AOC elementary 
school in a River Day Celebration along the St. Clair River. Students participated in Fish 
survey demonstrations and grade appropriate curriculum connected games and 
activities. All students (160) of the school attended. 
 

 
   Students getting familiar with our equipment 
 

 
Staff demonstrating seine netting      Students up close with St. Clair River Fish 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Staff Report 
 

Page 6 of 6 
 

In 2017, OTF funds were used to develop and implement the biological component of 
the Great Lakes Student Conference held in Mooretown. SCRCA staff gave students 
hands-on opportunities to handle and process live fish. Students also went through a 
mussel survey station where they could sift through sediment, find mussel shells, and 
learn how to identify them. The conference was an effort to increase Great Lakes 
literacy and had participation from the Lambton Kent District School Board (LKDSB).  
Over 70 students from four LKDSB high schools attended the conference and had the 
opportunity to learn about issues surrounding the Great Lakes, possible career paths, 
and explore cultural connections. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Staff helping highschool students at the fish station. 
 
In the fall of 2018, we will again run the “River Day” program at an elementary school 
located close to the St. Clair River.   
 
     



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 8.3 
Report Date: June 8, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges this report dated June 8, 2018 on the Healthy 
Watersheds Program Update 
 
Background: 
 
Healthy Lake Huron – Staff attended a Lambton Shores Communities in Bloom 
meeting to partner on a few projects. Through Healthy Lake Huron funding, we are 
providing coupons for discounts to landowners who purchase any of the three native 
tree/shrub species highlighted by Communities in Bloom this season. Communities in 
Bloom encourages local residents to plant native vegetation where possible.  
To support the local Phrag Phighters team, staff attended a Phrag Info night at the 
Forest Library on May 9. Although the turnout was smaller than expected, those in 
attendance were keen to put into action what they learned that evening.  
Staff attended the “Is the Coast Clear” 2-day conference hosted by the Lake Huron 
Coastal Centre for Conservation. It was a great opportunity for networking and learning. 
We were able to connect with a number of speakers who would provide great 
educational talks for landowners in our region.  
Staff are also planning to attend the Judges Tour on July 10 to highlight the 
partnerships among local residents, SCRCA, CH2MHill, and Communities in Bloom in 
the habitat restoration project of the Forest Sewage Lagoons.  
 
Healthy Watersheds Program (watershed wide) – this has been a very busy spring 
with many site visits regarding wetland and erosion control project implementation! Staff 
have met with nine landowners, providing project options and ideas. Quite exciting to 
see such interest in wetlands this spring! 
Staff will be speaking about Eastern Sand Darter, habitat restoration, and highlighting 
landowners who have implemented habitat projects in a short film series created by 
Pinegrove Productions with funding from OMNRF.  
 
Upcoming events staff plan to attend and/or speak at:  
Healthy Lake Huron All Committees meeting, Ripley, June 13 
Keynote speaker at the Women in Ag event at Podolinsky’s, Petrolia, June 19 
Innovative Farmers Association Meeting, Guelph, June 27 
Southwestern Ontario Crop Diagnostic Days, Ridgetown, July 4 & 5 

Jessica Van Zwol and Laura Biancolin 

Healthy Watersheds Program Update  



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 9.1 
Report Date: June 13, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report summarizing tree planting 
throughout the watershed this spring. 
 
Background: 
 
Tree Planting Program 
 

• Tree seedlings were almost 2 weeks behind normal delivery schedule this spring. 
The first tree delivery was not received until May 1st, making it the latest spring 
tree planting start date our tree planting program has ever seen. 

• SCRCA planting crews started almost immediately after trees arrived and planted 
approximately 55,000 trees for 28 separate projects on private and industrial 
lands over a 3½ week period. 

• 9,000 of these trees were planted for Enbridge at the Wilkesport metering station. 
This marked the final planting year of a multi-phase planting program and 
agreement between SCRCA and Enbridge gas storage division to naturalize 2 of 
its large properties in St. Clair Township. To mark the occasion, 17 Enbridge 
employees volunteered to spend an afternoon planting 900 trees on the site.  

• Another 6600 trees were ordered for 40+ landowners to plant on their own. 
• More than $168,000 in federal, provincial and local grant dollars was provided to 

property owners this year to subsidize some of the cost of trees, planting 
services and long term vegetation management. 

• All sites were sprayed for weed control soon after planting. 
• Another 200,000+ trees were resprayed for weed control this spring on sites that 

were planted in 2015, 2016 and 2017.  
 

Large Stock Trees 
• Thirteen landowners plus 2 municipalities purchased approximately 800 large 

stock trees this spring. 
• Wholesale trees were purchased from 3 individual nurseries. There were 9 

species of deciduous and coniferous trees to choose from. 
• Trees range in size from 0.5 metre tall for evergreen trees to 2.0 metres tall for 

the hardwood trees. Most of the trees come potted or in a dirt ball with burlap. 
Some species and oversized trees come in bare root form. The bare root trees 
are less expensive, however, they require much more protection when 
transporting and storing. 
  

Steve Shaw 

Conservation Services Spring Tree Planting 



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 9.2 
Report Date: June 13, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges this report dated June 13, 2018 regarding the 
treatment of catch basins with a larvicide in Lambton County’s rural and urban areas. 
 
West Nile Virus Program 

• The Conservation Authority signed a new 3 year contract with the County of 
Lambton to treat catch basins in all rural and urban areas within Lambton County, 
including the City of Sarnia. SCRCA staff will be working under the direction of 
Lambton Public Health during the treatment operations. 

• Aamjiwnaang catch basins will be treated under a separate contract with 
approval from Health Canada.  

• Permits to treat surface water are obtained from the Ministry of the Environment 
and Climate Change under the Authority’s Pesticide Operators Licence and 
Insurance. 

• Pre-treatment larvae sampling has been scheduled for the week of June 11th. If 
activity is low, a second sampling may be required the following week. 

• Larvae results are sent to Lambton Public Health. Activity levels will be used to 
determine treatment start date. Approval from the Lambton Medical Officer of 
Health is required before treatments commence. 

• Catch basins will be treated with methoprene in pellet formulation. Methoprene is 
a growth regulator which prevents the larvae of mosquitoes and other insects 
from becoming adults. There will be 3 separate larvicide applications set at 21-
day intervals staring around June 25th and finishing around the 15th of August. 

• The use of larvicide is limited to an exterminator with a Mosquito/Biting Fly 
licence or a trained technician under the supervision of a Mosquito/Biting Fly 
licence holder 

• SCRCA staff will also conduct efficacy tests as 
part of the treatment program by collecting 
mosquito pupa samples throughout the summer. 
Pupa are monitored for percent adult emergence. 
Past efficacy tests show an average of 80% 
effectiveness for controlling mosquito 
emergence. 

• A different colour paint mark for each application 
of larvicide is applied to the centre of every catch 
basin treated. 

 

Steve Shaw 

Conservation Services Larvicide Program Update 



 Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 8 
 

 

 
 
A summary of staff activity related to the Conservation Authority’s Development, 
Interference of Wetlands, and Alterations to Shorelines and Watercourses Regulation 
(Ontario Regulation 171/06 under Ontario Regulation 97/04) is presented below. This 
report covers the period from April 1, 2018 to May 31, 2018 
 
Regulations Permits: 
 
Application No: R#2018-102 Municipality: Adelaide-Metcalfe 
Subject Property: Napier Road 
Proposal: Integrity Dig 
Submission Complete By: May 14 Permit Issued: May 22 Days: 8 

 
Application No: R#2018-053 Municipality: Brooke-Alvinston 
Subject Property: 6246 Shiloh Line 
Proposal: Construction of an Addition 
Submission Complete By: Apr 16 Permit Issued: Apr 17 Days: 1 

 
Application No: R#2018-103 Municipality: Brooke-Alvinston 
Subject Property: Ebenezer Road 
Proposal: Integrity Dig 
Submission Complete By: May 16 Permit Issued: May 22 Days: 6 

 
Application No: R#2018-123 Municipality: Chatham-Kent 
Subject Property: 295 St. George Street South 
Proposal: Construction of a Gas Station Canopy 
Submission Complete By: May 30 Permit Issued: May 30 Days: 1 

 
Application No: R#2018-023 Municipality: Lambton Shores 
Subject Property: 6851 Clemens Line 
Proposal: Single Family Dwelling 
Submission Complete By: Apr 05 Permit Issued: Apr 12 Days: 7 

 
  

Meeting Date: June 28, 2018 Item 10.1 
Report Date: June 12, 2018 
Submitted by: Dallas Cundick, Manager of Planning 

Melissa Deisley, Regulations Coordinator 
Subject: Regulations Summary 

April 1, to May 31, 2018 



Page 2 of 8 
 

Application No: R#2018-067 Municipality: Petrolia 
Subject Property: 560 First Ave 
Proposal: Construction of New Single Family Dwelling & Minor Re-

grading 
Submission Complete By: May 10 Permit Issued: May 15 Days: 5 

 
Application No: R#2018-119 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: Hillsboro Road over Hickory Creek 
Proposal: Hillsboro Road Culvert Structure Repairs 
Submission Complete By: May 29 Permit Issued: May 29 Days: 1 

 
Application No: R#2018-079 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: 3718 Beverly Glen 
Proposal: Tear Down/Rebuild New Single Family Dwelling 
Submission Complete By: May 28 Permit Issued: May 28 Days: 1 

 
Application No: R#2018-122 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: 3011 Sandpiper Trail 
Proposal: Construction of an Addition on South Side of Existing Dwelling 
Submission Complete By: May 23 Permit Issued: May 29 Days: 6 

 
Application No: R#2018-097 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: 5786 Churchill Line 27, 
Proposal: Tear Down & Rebuild New Single Family Dwelling 
Submission Complete By: May 08 Permit Issued: May 15 Days: 7 

 
Application No: R#2018-078 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: 7394 Ivy Lane 
Proposal: Construction of a New Single Family Dwelling 
Submission Complete By: Apr 30 Permit Issued: May 01 Days: 1 

 
Application No: R#2018-064 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: 4995 Michigan Line 
Proposal: New Foundation Construction 
Submission Complete By: May 14 Permit Issued: May 15 Days: 1 

 
Application No: R#2018-080 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: Property West of 5285 Fisher Line 22, 
Proposal: Construction of a New Single Family Dwelling 
Submission Complete By: May 02 Permit Issued: May 02 Days: 1 

 
Application No: R#2018-054 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: 3836 Ferne Avenue 
Proposal: Construct Accessory Structures 
Submission Complete By: Apr 04 Permit Issued: Apr 19 Days: 15 



Page 3 of 8 
 

 
Application No: FA#11316 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: 3836 Ferne Avenue 
Proposal: Proposed Helical Pier Foundation and Roof Truss Works 
Submission Complete By: Apr 04 Permit Issued: Apr 18 Days: 14 

 
Application No: R#2018-094 Municipality: Sarnia 
Subject Property: 580 Woodrowe Ave 
Proposal: Construction of a Minor Addition 
Submission Complete By: May 07 Permit Issued: May 16 Days: 9 

 
Application No: R#2018-108 Municipality: Sarnia 
Subject Property: 1410 Andover Lane 
Proposal: Construction of New Detached Garage 
Submission Complete By: May 06 Permit Issued: May 24 Days: 18 

 
Application No: R#2018-040 Municipality: Southwest Middlesex 
Subject Property: 6297 Olde Drive 
Proposal: New Single Family Dwelling 
Submission Complete By: Apr 10 Permit Issued: Apr 10 Days: 1 

 
Application No: R#2018-098 Municipality: St. Clair 
Subject Property: Part 6, Plan 25R-7404 
Proposal: Construction of a New Single Family Dwelling 
Submission Complete By: May 31 Permit Issued: May 31 Days: 1 

 
Application No: R#2018-071 Municipality: St. Clair 
Subject Property: 2627 Tulloch Line 
Proposal: New Single Family Dwelling 
Submission Complete By: Apr 25 Permit Issued: Apr 26 Days: 1 

 
Application No: R#2018-048 Municipality: St. Clair 
Subject Property: 4076 St. Clair Parkway 
Proposal: New Single Family Dwelling 
Submission Complete By: Apr 06 Permit Issued: Apr 16 Days: 10 

 
Application No: R#2018-106 Municipality: Strathroy-Caradoc 
Subject Property: 286 Pinetree Lane 
Proposal: Construction of Inground Pool & Move an Existing Shed 
Submission Complete By: May 17 Permit Issued: May 23 Days: 6 

 
Application No: R#2018-066 Municipality: Strathroy-Caradoc 
Subject Property: Calvert Drive, 306m east of Glen Oak Road 
Proposal: Install New 4” Gas Main via HDD 
Submission Complete By: Apr 25 Permit Issued: Apr 25 Days: 1 



Page 4 of 8 
 

 
Application No: FA#2018-012 Municipality: St. Clair 
Subject Property: 268 Ward Line 
Proposal: New Dwelling 
Submission Complete By: Apr 03 Permit Issued: Apr 13 Days: 10 

 
Application No: R#2018-047 Municipality: Sarnia 
Subject Property: 2697 Waterworks Road 
Proposal: New Sanitary Pump Station 
Submission Complete By: Apr 04 Permit Issued: Apr 13 Days: 9 

 
Application No: R#2018-033 Municipality: Sarnia 
Subject Property: 2060 Lakeshore Road 
Proposal: Construction of an Addition & Renovation to Existing Dwelling 
Submission Complete By: Apr 05 Permit Issued: Apr 06 Days: 1 

 
Application No: R#2018-026 Municipality: St. Clair 
Subject Property: 4444 St. Clair Parkway 
Proposal: New Single Family Dwelling 
Submission Complete By: Mar 24 Permit Issued: Apr 03 Days: 10 

 
 
Total No. of Applications: 27 Average No. of Days to Issue Permit: 6 
 
Permit Review Timelines are outlined in the document “Policies and Procedures for 
Conservation Authority Plan Review and Permitting Activities” Final Version May 2010, 
completed by the Conservation Authority Liaison Committee (CALC). In the document it 
states; 

• CAs are to make a decision (i.e. recommendation to approve or referred to a 
Hearing) with respect to a permission (permit) application and pursuant to the CA 
Act within 30 days for a minor application and 90 days for a major application. 

 

 
 

Adelaide-Metcalfe
4%

Brooke-Alvinston
7%
Chatham-Kent

4%
Lambton Shores

4%

Petrolia
4%

Plympton-Wyoming
33%

Sarnia
15%

Southwest Middlesex
4%

St. Clair
18%

Strathroy-Caradoc
7%

Applications by Municipality



Page 5 of 8 
 

Regulations Inquiries: 
 
 
File Reference: R#2018-013 Municipality: Adelaide-Metcalfe 
Subject Property: 1425 Melwood Drive 

 
File Reference: R#2018-090 Municipality: Brooke-Alvinston 
Subject Property: 6393 Oil Springs Line 

 
File Reference: R#2018-121 Municipality: Chatham-Kent 
Subject Property: 26602 Winter Line Road 

 
File Reference: R#2018-100 Municipality: Chatham-Kent 
Subject Property: 219 Camden Street 

 
File Reference: R#2018-112 Municipality: Chatham-Kent 
Subject Property: 508 Davies Street West 

 
File Reference: R#2018-044 Municipality: Chatham-Kent 
Subject Property: Labadie Road 

 
File Reference: R#2018-050 Municipality: Chatham-Kent 
Subject Property: Jane Road & Zone Centre Line 

 
File Reference: R#2018-072 Municipality: Dawn-Euphemia 
Subject Property: 1537 Inwood Road 

 
File Reference: R#2018-085 Municipality: Dawn-Euphemia 
Subject Property: 1537 Inwood Road 

 
File Reference: R#2018-073 Municipality: Enniskillen 
Subject Property: 5909 Rokeby Line 

 
File Reference: R#2018-117 Municipality: Enniskillen 
Subject Property: 4058 Oil Springs Line 

 
File Reference: R#2018-045 Municipality: Enniskillen 
Subject Property: 3992 Oil Springs Line 

 
File Reference: R#2018-055 Municipality: Lambton Shores 
Subject Property: Esli Dodge CA 

 
File Reference: R#2018-049 Municipality: Lambton Shores 
Subject Property: 6526 Pine Trail Ave 

 



Page 6 of 8 
 

File Reference: R#2018-057 Municipality: Middlesex Centre 
Subject Property: 6 Ashley Lane 

 
File Reference: R#2018-099 Municipality: Middlesex Centre 
Subject Property: 10139 Ilderton Rd 

 
File Reference: R#2018-111 Municipality: Petrolia 
Subject Property: 4048 Englehart Drive 

 
File Reference: R#2018-110 Municipality: Petrolia 
Subject Property: 4042 Englehart Drive 

 
File Reference: R#2018-118 Municipality: Petrolia 
Subject Property: 488 1st Avenue 

 
File Reference: R#2018-052 Municipality: Petrolia 
Subject Property: 4050 Englehart Drive 

 
File Reference: R#2018-074 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: 4340 Lambton Lane 

 
File Reference: R#2018-060 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: 4338 4344 Bluepoint Drive 

 
File Reference: R#2018-068 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: 4764 Mack Avenue 

 
File Reference: R#2018-083 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: 4041 Michigan Line 

 
File Reference: R#2018-081 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: 3548 Queen Street 

 
File Reference: R#2018-095 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: 4410 Lakeshore Road 

 
File Reference: R#2018-105 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: 4698 Egremont Road 

 
File Reference: R#2018-034 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: 6758 Blue Heron Road 

 
File Reference: R#2018-042 Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming 
Subject Property: 7128 Muskoka Trail 

 



Page 7 of 8 
 

File Reference: R#2018-070 Municipality: Sarnia 
Subject Property: 1010 Plank Rd 

 
File Reference: R#2018-043 Municipality: Sarnia 
Subject Property: 1794 Lakeshore Rd 

 
File Reference: R#2018-108 Municipality: Sarnia 
Subject Property: 1410 Andover Lane 

 
File Reference: R#2018-075 Municipality: Sarnia 
Subject Property: 1410 Andover Lane 

 
File Reference: R#2018-107 Municipality: Sarnia 
Subject Property: 5101 Brigden Road 

 
File Reference: R#2018-038 Municipality: Sarnia 
Subject Property: 1274 Michigan Avenue 

 
File Reference: R#2018-120 Municipality: St. Clair 
Subject Property: Tyler Drive 

 
File Reference: R#2018-125 Municipality: St. Clair 
Subject Property: 1452 Courtright Line 

 
File Reference: R#2018-091 Municipality: St. Clair 
Subject Property: 1324 St. Clair Parkway 

 
File Reference: R#2018-092 Municipality: St. Clair 
Subject Property: 4166 St. Clair Parkway 

 
File Reference: R#2018-093 Municipality: St. Clair 
Subject Property: 2693 St. Clair Gardens 

 
File Reference: R#2018-113 Municipality: St. Clair 
Subject Property: 4677 Riverside Drive 

 
File Reference: R#2018-036 Municipality: St. Clair 
Subject Property: 813 St. Clair Parkway 

 
File Reference: R#2018-037 Municipality: St. Clair 
Subject Property: 959 Wilkesport Line 

 
File Reference: R#2018-035 Municipality: St. Clair 
Subject Property: 1728 Baby Road 

 



Page 8 of 8 
 

File Reference: R#2018-124 Municipality: Strathroy-Caradoc 
Subject Property: 30 Adelaide Street 

 
File Reference: R#2018-017 Municipality: Strathroy-Caradoc 
Subject Property: SE Corner of Century Drive & Melbourne Rd. 

 
File Reference: R#2018-061 Municipality: Strathroy-Caradoc 
Subject Property: 8513 Hickory Drive 

 
File Reference: R#2018-046 Municipality: Strathroy-Caradoc 
Subject Property: 989 & 991 Wright Street & 27886 Pike Road (Adelaide Metcalfe) 

 
File Reference: R#2018-041 Municipality: Strathroy-Caradoc 
Subject Property: 8527 Hickory Drive 

 
File Reference: R#2018-022 Municipality: Warwick 
Subject Property: 6445 Brick Yard Line 

 
 

 

Adelaide-Metcalfe
2%

Brooke-
Alvinston

2%

Chatham-
Kent
10%

Dawn-Euphemia
4%

Enniskillen
6%

Lambton Shores
4%

Middlesex Centre
4%

Petrolia
8%

Plympton-Wyoming
18%

Sarnia
12%

St. Clair
18%

Strathroy-Caradoc
10%

Warwick
2%

Inquiries by Municipality



 Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 
 
A summary of staff activity related to Municipal Plan Input and Review is presented 
below. This report covers the period from April 1, 2018 to May 31, 2018 
 
Municipal Plan Input and Review 
 
File Reference: PL#2018-027 
Municipality: Adelaide-Metcalfe Municipal Reference: B03-2018 
Property Location: 4225 Calvert Drive 

 
File Reference: PL#2018-016 
Municipality: Dawn-Euphemia Municipal Reference: Inquiry 
Property Location: Property Inquiry 

 
File Reference: PL#2018-012 
Municipality: Dawn-Euphemia Municipal Reference: B003-18 
Property Location: 1602 Oakdale Road 

 
File Reference: PL#2018-034 
Municipality: Lambton Shores Municipal Reference: ZO-04/2018 
Property Location: 6218 Juniper Lane 

 
File Reference: PL#2018-042 
Municipality: Middlesex Centre Municipal Reference: 39TMC0201 
Property Location: Part of Lot 8, Concession 8 

 
File Reference: Pl#2018-019 
Municipality: Petrolia Municipal Reference: SUB 
Property Location: First Avenue & Garden Crescent 

 
File Reference: PL#2018-039 
Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming Municipal Reference: A09/2018 
Property Location: 4106 Aberarder Line 

 
  

Meeting Date: June 28, 2018 Item 10.2 
Report Date: June 6, 2018 
Submitted by: Erica Ogden, Planner 

Sarah Hodgkiss, Planning Ecologist 
Subject: Planning Activity Summary 

April 1 to May 31, 2018 



Page 2 of 3 
 

File Reference: PL#2018-038 
Municipality: Plympton-Wyoming Municipal Reference: A08/2018 
Property Location: 6885 Dalrymple Street 

 
File Reference: PL#2018-032 
Municipality: Sarnia Municipal Reference: B09/2018 
Property Location: 1575 Plank Road 

 
File Reference: PL#2018-033 
Municipality: Sarnia Municipal Reference: A015/2018 
Property Location: 1930 14 Franklin Avenue 

 
File Reference: PL#2018-029 
Municipality: St. Clair Municipal Reference: A-07-18 
Property Location: 4110 St. Clair Parkway 

 
File Reference: PL#2018-030 
Municipality: St. Clair Municipal Reference: A-05-18 
Property Location: 4334 St. Clair Parkway 

 
File Reference: PL#2018-037 
Municipality: Strathroy-Caradoc Municipal Reference: A09/2018 
Property Location: 424 Victoria Lane 

 
File Reference: PL#2018-018 
Municipality: Strathroy-Caradoc Municipal Reference: SUB 
Property Location: Rougham/Falconbridge/Adelaide Road 

 
File Reference: PL#2018-015 
Municipality: Strathroy-Caradoc Municipal Reference: ZBA 8-2018 
Property Location: 170 Victoria Street 

 
File Reference: PL#2018-005 
Municipality: Strathroy-Caradoc Municipal Reference: ZBA 7-2018 
Property Location: Wright Street 

 
Environmental Assessment Review 
 
File Reference: EA2018-006 Municipality: Chatham-Kent 
Proposal: Water and Wastewater Master Plan Update 
Proponent: Chatham-Kent Public Utilities Commission 

 
File Reference: EA2018-007 Municipality: Chatham-Kent 
Proposal: Class EA Rose Beach Line Slope Stability 
Proponent: Municipality of Chatham-Kent 



Page 3 of 3 
 

File Reference: EA2018-008 Municipality: Sarnia 
Proposal: Class EA for Infrastructure Crossing of Highway 402 
Proponent: City of Sarnia 

 
Legal Inquiry Summary 
 
LL#18102-02 27689 Pike Road Adelaide-Metcalfe 
LL#18094-01 1145 Napperton Drive Adelaide-Metcalfe 
LL#18127-01 6328 William Street Lambton Shores 
LL#2018-002 6 Ashley Lane, Coldstream, Middlesex Centre 
LL#18102-01 4560 William Street Plympton-Wyoming 
LL#2018-003 22697 Adelaide Road, Mount Brydges, Strathroy-Caradoc 
LL#2018-001 Part 1, Plan 33R-1220, s/e Parts 1-7, 

Plan 33R-17142 
Strathroy-Caradoc 

LL#18103-01 24364 Saxton Road Strathroy-Caradoc 
 
Meeting Summary 
 
April 11 Pre-consultation Meeting Mt. Brydges Subdivision EO, SH 
April 12 Bill 139 Webinar EO, SH 
April 13 Pre-consultation Meeting Point Edward EO, SH 
April 17 Southwest CA Meeting DC, EO, SH 
April 24 1400 Venetian Blvd Teleconference EO, GS 
 
May 15 Pre-consultation Meeting Plympton-Wyoming DC, SH 
May 28 Pre-consultation Meeting Timberwalk Phase 5 EO, SH 
May 29 Poplar Woods Meeting EO, SH 
May 31 Planning Ecology Meeting, Credit Valley CA SH 



 Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That Michelle Gallant is appointed as an Enforcement Officer for the purpose of 
enforcing regulations made by the SCRCA, pursuant to Section 28 of the Conservation 
Authorities Act, in order to carry out the responsibility of administration and enforcement 
of this Act. 
 
Background: 
 
For the purpose of enforcing the regulations made by the SCRCA, pursuant to Section 
28 of the Conservation Authority Act, it is necessary for the Authority to appoint 
personnel as Enforcement Officers. This appointment pertains to Ontario Regulation 
171/06 made under Section 28 of the Act. 
 
It is also necessary to have the staff Enforcement Officers designated as Provincial 
Offences Officers in order that they may commence proceedings under the Provincial 
Offences Act. 
 
Michelle completed the CA Level 2 Advanced Provincial Offences Officer Course 
provided by Conservation Ontario, certificate issued May 29, 2018.  

Meeting Date: June 28, 2018 Item 10.3 
Report Date: June 12, 2018 
Submitted by: Dallas Cundick, Manager of Planning 

Subject: Appointment of Officer under Section 28 of CAA (O.R. 171/06) 



 Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018     Item 10.4 
Report Date: June 13, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the board acknowledges and concurs with the April 2018 to May 2018 municipal 
drain activity report associated with the Drainage Act and Conservation Authorities Act 
Protocol (DART) 
 
Background: 
 
SCRCA DART FILES 2018 APRIL 

 

FHR 
# 

Municipality Geographic 
Township 

Drain Name Project 
Description 

SCRs 
Issued 

2869 Chatham-
Kent 

Dover Crawford 
Drain 

Emergency culvert 
replacement 

1 

 
SCRCA DART FILES  2018 MAY  
FHR 

# 
Municipality Geographic 

Township 
Drain name Project 

Description 
SCRs 

Issued 

2890 Adelaide-
Metcalfe 

Metcalfe Brigham-
Watt Drain 

Full cleanout, 
brushing bank 
slope, brushing top 
of bank, bank repair 

4 

2891 Chatham-
Kent 

Dover Burke Drain Bottom only 
cleanout 

1 

2871 Dawn-
Euphemia 

Dawn Molly Creek 
West 
Branch 

Culvert 
replacement 

1 

2872 Dawn-
Euphemia 

Dawn Kersey 
Drain 

Culvert 
replacement 

1 

Kelli Smith 

Drainage Act and Conservation Authorities Act Protocol (DART) 
Completed Files 



Page 2 of 3 
 

2873 Dawn-
Euphemia 

Dawn 25 Sideroad 
Drain 

Culvert 
replacement 

1 

2875 Dawn-
Euphemia 

Dawn Archie 
McMurphy 
Drain 

Culvert 
replacement 

1 

2877 Dawn-
Euphemia 

Dawn 12th 
Concession 
Drain 

Culvert 
replacement 

1 
 

2879 Dawn-
Euphemia 

Dawn Coronation 
Drain 

Bottom only 
cleanout plus one 
bank slope 

1 

2880 Dawn-
Euphemia 

Dawn W.G. 
McGuire 
Drain 

Bottom only 
cleanout plus one 
bank slope 

1 

2881 Dawn-
Euphemia 

Dawn Turrill Drain Bottom only 
cleanout plus one 
bank slope 

1 

2882 Dawn-
Euphemia 

Dawn Molly Creek 
Drain East 
Branch 

Bottom only 
cleanout plus one 
bank slope 

1 

2883 Dawn-
Euphemia 

Dawn Waite drain Bottom only 
cleanout plus one 
bank slope 

1 

2884 Dawn-
Euphemia 

Dawn Patterson 
McDonald 
Drain 

Bottom only 
cleanout plus one 
bank slope 

1 

2885 Dawn-
Euphemia 

Dawn 11th 
Concession 
Drain 

Bottom only 
cleanout plus one 
bank slope 

1 

2886 Dawn-
Euphemia 

Dawn Atchison 
Drain 

Bottom only 
cleanout plus on 
bank slope 

1 

2887 Dawn-
Euphemia 

Dawn Bannister 
Drain 

Bottom only 
cleanout  

1 



Page 3 of 3 
 

2888 Dawn-
Euphemia 

Dawn 20-21 
Sideroad 
Drain 

Brushing bank 
slope, bank repair 
or stabilization and 
pipe outlet repair 

2 

2874 Dawn-
Euphemia 

Euphemia Coleman-
Turner Drain 

Culvert 
replacement 

1 

2876 Dawn-
Euphemia 

Euphemia Thompson 
and Brown 
Drains 

Culvert 
replacement 

1 

2878 
 

Dawn-
Euphemia 

Euphemia Johnston 
Drain 

Bottom only 
cleanout plus one 
bank slope 

1 

2870 Southwest 
Middlesex 

Mosa Reycraft-
Hurdle Drain 

Beaver dam 
removal 

1 

2889 Strathroy-
Caradoc 

Caradoc McEvoy 
Drain 

Bank repair or 
stabilization and 
pipe outlet repair 

1 

 
 
 
SCRCA DART FILES  2018 JUNE  
FHR 

# 
Municipality Geographic 

Township 
Drain name Project 

Description 
SCRs 

Issued 

2897 Chatham-
Kent 

Dover King Drain Bottom only 
cleanout, brushing 
bank slope 

2 

2898 Chatham-
Kent 

Dover Baldoon 
Drain 

Bottom only 
cleanout, brushing 
bank slope 

2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Prepared By: Tracy Prince ST CLAIR REGION CONSERVATION AUTHORITY Item 11.1
April 5, 2018

Revenue Expenditures Surplus(Deficit) Revenue Expenditures Revenue Expenditures

Flood Control & Erosion Control $1,279,119 $801,692 $477,427 $1,851,200 $1,851,200 ($572,081) ($1,049,508)
Capital Projects/WECI $276,500 $28,329 $248,171 $267,500 $267,500 $9,000 ($239,171)
Conservation Area's Capital Development $68,500 $9,481 $59,019 $68,500 $68,500 $0 ($59,019)
IT Capital $6,448 $0 $6,448 $19,200 $19,200 ($12,752) ($19,200)
Equipment $23,600 $0 $23,600 $72,000 $72,000 ($48,400) ($72,000)
Planning & Regulations $283,731 $143,063 $140,668 $558,155 $558,155 ($274,424) ($415,092)
Technical Studies $418,457 $18,373 $400,084 $316,819 $316,819 $101,638 ($298,447)
Recreation $885,023 $187,287 $697,736 $1,305,160 $1,305,160 ($420,137) ($1,117,873)
Property Management $50,502 $59,937 ($9,434) $243,096 $243,096 ($192,594) ($183,159)
Education and Communication $93,956 $56,309 $37,647 $232,110 $232,110 ($138,154) ($175,801)
Source Water Protection $51,429 $32,102 $19,327 $160,400 $160,400 ($108,971) ($128,298)
Conservation Services/Healthy Watersheds $876,167 $311,832 $564,335 $754,335 $754,335 $121,832 ($442,503)
Administration/AOC Management $663,855 $263,258 $400,597 $1,167,112 $1,167,112 ($503,257) ($903,854)

$4,977,287 $1,911,662 $3,065,625 $7,015,587 $7,015,587 ($2,038,300) ($5,103,925)
Notes:
1. Municipal matching, non-matching,and  Recreation levies  have been invoiced and are recorded in the actual revenue
    reported above. See General Levy Report for amounts outstanding.
2. The significant variances from budget to actual is reflective of the nature/timing and uniqueness of the particular projects. 
    The variances will reduce and disappear as the year progresses. 

Statement of Revenue and Expenditure
For the Four Months Ended 30/4/2018

Actual To Date Annual Budget Variance from Budget



Page 1 of 1

ST. CLAIR REGION CONSERVATION AUTHORITY Sarah Kellestine Item 11.2
  DISBURSEMENTS FROM April 1 to May 31 2018

CHQ. # DATE VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
19631 4/3/2018 BF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS Wetland Creation 28,681.21$      
19686 4/13/2018 SLOAN'S NURSERY & CHRISTMAS TR Trees 9,976.54$        
19661 4/13/2018 BF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS Wetland Creation 30,226.11$      
19660 4/13/2018 Atlantis Marine Construction Canada Inc Brights Grove Project 332,375.94$    
19695 5/3/2018 BF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS Wetland Creation 6,990.00$        
19708 5/3/2018 Konica Minolta Business Solutions (Canada) Ltd. Document Management 31,747.35$      
19714 5/3/2018 Marsh Canada Limited Insurance 70,398.92$      
19696 5/3/2018 Bre-Ex Construction Inc Courtright Park Restoration 197,226.93$    
19731 5/14/2018 LARRY MACDONALD CHEV OLDS Vehicle Purchase 22,201.49$      
19749 5/17/2018 MAX UNDERHILL'S FARM SUPPLY Pesticides 13,250.00$      

743,074.49$    
                                                  TOTAL CHEQUE DISBURSEMENTS - BANK #1 - 

   INTERNET BANKING January to March 2018
TRANS # DATE VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
8937 4/30/2018 WORKPLACE SAFETY & INS. BOARD WSIB 6,553.45
8929 4/30/2018 RWAM Insurance Administrators Inc Group Benefits 11,796.72
8918 4/30/2018 Canada Revenue Agency - HST HST 23,378.93
8925 4/30/2018 OMERS Pension 39,404.56
8927 4/30/2018 RECEIVER GENERAL Source Deductions 61,065.06
8948 5/31/2018 MASTERCARD Purchases 5,988.19
8958 5/31/2018 WORKPLACE SAFETY & INS. BOARD WSIB (3 pays) 11,003.13
8953 5/31/2018 RWAM Insurance Administrators Inc Group Benefits 11,722.37
8949 5/31/2018 OMERS Pension (3 pays) 59,834.48
8951 5/31/2018 RECEIVER GENERAL Source Deductions (3 Pays) 98,825.87

329,572.76$    
                                   TOTAL INTERNET DISBURSEMENTS  - BANK NO. 1 -
              PAYROLL RUNS 
              PAYROLL NO. 7 65,787.68$                                              
              PAYROLL NO. 8 71,261.65$                                              
              PAYROLL NO. 9 71,812.30$                                              
              PAYROLL NO. 10 79,914.45$                                              
              PAYROLL NO. 11 86,573.24$                                              
              PAYROLL NO. 
              PAYROLL NO.
              PAYROLL NO.
                                    TOTAL PAYROLL RUNS  - 375,349.32$    
                                    TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS  - 1,447,996.57$ 



Item 11.3
2018 GENERAL LEVY SUMMARY
 GLYSUM2018
------------------------------------------------------ Sarah Kellestine

31-May-18

MUNICIPALITY GROSS LEVY PAID TO DATE OUTSTANDING
--------------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------------

Sarnia $ 338,134.00 $ 169,067.00 $ 169,067.00
Chatham-Kent 112,683.00 112,683.00

Brooke-Alvinston Twp. 14,218.00 14,218.00 0.00
Dawn Euphemia Twp. 21,506.00 5,376.50 16,129.50
Enniskillen Twp. 15,762.00 15,762.00
Lambton Shores  M. 42,668.00 42,668.00 0.00

Oil Springs V 1,710.00 1,710.00 0.00
Petrolia T 21,898.00 21,898.00 0.00
Plympton-Wyoming T 45,371.00 45,371.00
Point Edward V 20,209.00 20,209.00 0.00
St. Clair Twp. 95,034.00 95,034.00 0.00

Warwick Twp. 17,812.00 17,812.00 0.00
Adelaide Metcalfe Twp. 15,479.00 15,479.00
Middlesex Centre Twp. 18,349.00 18,349.00 0.00
Newbury V 1,257.00 1,257.00 0.00
Southwest Middlesex M. 9,852.00 9,852.00 0.00
Strathroy-Caradoc M. 71,914.00 35,957.00 35,957.00

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------------
TOTAL $ 863,856.00 $ 453,407.50 $ 410,448.50

============ ============ ===============



Item 11.4



















 Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges and accepts the suggested revisions to the 
Delegation of Authority (Power Of Duty), and appoints the Director of Finance as the 
Freedom of Information and Privacy Coordinator under the Municipal Freedom of 
Information and Protection of Individual Privacy Act. 
 
Background: 
 
We are updating the power of duties for the Freedom of Information Coordinator to 
streamline and expedite the process of an MFIPPA request. The following chart 
demonstrates the suggested changes in red 
 

Power of Duty Executive 
Committee 

GM or 
Designate 

Severing records (S.4(2))          X X 
Disclosing records: grave environmental, Health, or 
Safety hazards (S.5)  X 

Deciding if exemptions apply:   
• Draft by-laws, private bills, closed meetings (S.6)  X 
• Advice or recommendations (S.7)          X  X 
• Law enforcement (S.8)  X 
• Relations with Governments (S.9)          X  
• Third party information (S.10)  X 
• Economic and other interests (S.12)          X  
• Solicitor-Client privilege (S.13)          X  
• Danger to safety or health          X  
• Personal privacy (S.14)          X X 
• Information available or soon to be published (S.15)          X X 

Meeting Date: June 28, 2018 Item 11.5 
Report Date: June 11, 2018 
Submitted by: Tracy Prince 

Subject: Municipal Freedom of Information Privacy Protection Act 
(MFIPPA) and Power of Duty 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Power of Duty Cont. Executive 
Committee 

GM or 
Designate 

• Individual’s access to own personal information 
(S.38)  X 

Determining compelling public interest (S.16)          X  
Assisting requester clarify request (S.17(2))  X 
Forwarding and transferring requests (S.18)  X 
Issuing Notices:   
• Forwarding or transferring requests (S.18(2),(3))  X 
• Regarding access to records (S.19, 21, 22)  X 
• Time extensions (S.20)  X 
• To affected parties (S.21)  X 
Decisions concerning manner of third party 
representations (S.21 (6))  X 

Granting access to original records (S.23)          X  
Making record descriptions available (S.25,34)  X 
Preparing Annual Reports  X 
Notice of collection of personal information (S.29(2))  X 
Ensuring accuracy of personal information (S.30(2))  X 
Disposal of personal information (S.30(4)) X  
Personal information banks (S.35)  X 
Access to personal information (S.37(3)) X  
Representing institution on appeal (S.41)  X 
Requiring examination of record on site (S.41)  X 
Fees (S.45) X X 

   
   

 



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 12.1 
Report Date: June 12, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges the education staff report dated June 12, 
2018, including the canoe race, spring education programs, ICE Training, special 
events, and committees. 
 
Canoe Race  
 
Due to high water levels at the start 
and finish of the race, the 2018 
Sydenham Canoe Race had to 
unfortunately be cancelled. Despite 
the cancellation, some paddlers still 
made donations to Conservation 
Education, raising a total of 
$1,118.25! 
 
Spring Education Programs 
 
Conservation Education continues 
to be a popular field trip focus for 
area schools.  Programs are 
booked daily from early April 
through to June 26th. Teachers 
appreciate the hands on opportunities to connect classroom learning to the natural 
world. They recognize that our programs cannot be replicated in the school yard. 
 
ICE Training: (Innovation, Creativity and Entrepreneurship) 
SCRCA continues to expand ICE Training for Secondary School partners. This spring 
we delivered two full ICE training sessions to watershed schools. 

• May 16th, 2018 – Holy Cross Secondary School participated in a condensed 5-
hour training session held at Strathroy C.A. and the SCRCA main office. 

• May 23rd, 28th and June 4th, 2018 – École Secondaire Catholique Saint-
François-Xavier (SFX) participated in a 3-day ICE training session. In addition to 
the training, SFX was able to secure funding to make the students ‘winning idea’ 
into a work project at LCH. On June 4th the students built a boardwalk over a 
‘problem area’ on one of our teaching trails! It was a wonderful experience to 

Sharon Nethercott 
Melissa Gill 
Conservation Education Progress Report 

Standing water was still covering the parking lot 
area at the starting line on Friday, April 20, 2018. 
Conditions at the finish line located at Shetland 
Conservation Area were also similar. 



Staff Report 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

have the students experience the problem (day 1), brainstorm ways to fix the 
problem (day 2) and finally implement the solution (day 3)! 

 
Students from Ecole 
Secondaire Catholique 
Saint-Francois-Xavier 
install a boardwalk over a 
muddy area at L.C. 
Henderson Conservation 
Area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special Events 
 
Kid’s Fun Fest Sarnia  
SCRCA staff participated in Kids Fun Fest 2018 on Saturday June 19th in Sarnia.  The 
booth highlighted camping and SCRCA programs. Outdoor education staff offered two 
activities for local kids to learn more about the natural world. Photo shows an example 
of the natural artwork created by youth who visited SCRCA booth. 
 

  
 



Staff Report 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Committees 
 
Sarnia-Lambton Arbour Week Committee:   
Education Staff continue to chair the committee and helped to organize a tree planting 
at Standing Oaks (Home for the medical fragile) in Sarnia this May. We planted 11 large 
stock native trees including Serviceberry. Sugar maple seedlings were delivered to each 
student in 4 winning classrooms in Lambton County who participated in the Arbour 
Week Contest. Students were encouraged to think about the variety of ways that trees 
protect us and our communities. Each student created a poster that reflects his or her 
understanding of the important roles trees play in cities and towns. 
 
 



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 12.2 
Report Date: May 25, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated May 25, 2018 on 
Conservation Education Fees and approve the recommended fee increases for Fall 
2018 programming. 
 
Background: 
Fees have not increased since 2008. 
 
Outdoor Education Field Trip Fees: 
 
Current:      Proposed: 
$4.50 per student per 2 hour program   $5.50 per student per 2 hour program 
$8.50 per student per 2 programs    $10.00 per student per 2 programs  
$60.00 minimum fee per 2 hour program $110.00 per 2 hours ($5.50 x 20 

students in a class = $110.00) 
 
Fees at Other Attractions: (LOCAL MUSEUMS) 
 
Stones and Bones, Sarnia, $7.00 per adult, $3.00 per child under 12 
Oil Museum of Canada: Family $15, Adults $5, Students (13+) $4, Children (4-12) $3 
 
Specialist High Skills Major (SHSM) and ICE Training 
 
Attendance at SHSM programs is often between 10-15 students.  A lot of planning and 
development is involved in being prepared for these students and our minimum $60.00 
fee does not accurately reflect the amount of work that goes into developing these 
programs. 
 
Current:      Proposed: 
$4.50 per student per 2 hour program  $250/half day and $400 per full day 
($60.00 minimum fee) 
 
ICE (Innovation, Creativity and Entrepreneurship Training) is a Ministry of Education 
mandated requirement for SHSM students where students are led through a series of 
activities designed to teach them how to solve a challenge. Training includes 
brainstorming, prototyping, strategizing and testing their ideas. SCRCA acts as a sector 
partner providing Conservation oriented challenges for students to solve. 

Sharon Nethercott 
Melissa Gill 
Proposed Fee Increase, Conservation Education, Fall 2018 



Staff Report 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Current:      Proposed 
None       $400.00 per day 
 
Neighbouring Conservation Authority SHSM and ICE Fees: 
 
UTRCA: 
$7.00 per student per 2 hour program 
$120.00 minimum fee per program 
SHSM Fee: $200.00 -$400.00 per day, depending upon program 
ICE Training: $400.00 per day 
 
ABCA: 
$7.00 per student per 2 hour program 
$119.00 minimum fee per program 
SHSM Fee: 2hr program = $12/student (minimum $204.00) 
ICE Training = $275 per day per instructor flat rate 
 
LTVCA: 
$8.00 per student per 2 hour program 
$14.00 per student per 2 programs (4 hours) 
$120.00 minimum fee per 2 hour program 
$210.00 minimum fee per 2 programs (4 hours) in same day. 
SHSM: Not currently offered. 
 
In School fees (unsponsored programs): Taking Outdoor programs to the schools 
 
$100.00/1 hour/class  
$75.00/1 hour for each additional class in same school on same day. – Recommend to 
keep fee the same. There is not a lot of request for these programs, since we offer 
several sponsored in school programs. 
 
Community Groups: (Youth/Special Request) 
 
Current      Proposed 
$60.00      $80.00 



 Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 
 
For the second year, the SCRCA and Lambton Public Health have partnered for a 
schoolyard greening initiative called “Tomorrow’s Greener Schools Today – Lambton.” 
The intent of the project is to plant trees with elementary school students to increase 
greenspace and shade in playgrounds. From a health perspective, once the trees 
mature they will protect children from harmful UV radiation. From a conservation 
perspective, by teaching the children how to plant trees the project encourages 
environmental stewardship. An educational component regarding the benefits of trees is 
provided by the Authority and Lambton Public Health during each event. 
 

   
 
 
 
There is continued enthusiasm for the project. Last year staff planted 40 trees with five 
elementary schools, this year 68 trees were planted with 139 students at six elementary 
schools. Feedback from the schools has been very positive – it is a source of pride for 
the students and it is the first time many of the students have had the opportunity to 
plant trees. 
 
This year, Lambton Public Health and the Authority were successful in securing a 
$5,000 TD Friends of the Environment Foundation grant as well as $1,000 from the 
Great Lakes Guardian Community Fund to cover the cost of the trees for 2018. 

Meeting Date: June 28, 2018 Item 12.3 
Report Date: June 11, 2018 
Submitted by: Nicole Drumm 

Subject: Tomorrow’s Greener Schools Today 

Through the planting project, students help bring much needed greenspace to their 
schoolyards 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 

 
 
Feedback: 
It is so exciting for Rosedale to be the recipient of 11 trees. Our large playground is hot 
during June and September, and the shade these trees will begin providing now, and 
continue to provide in years to come is immeasurable. 
 
The experience applying for the “grant” for the trees was a wonderful opportunity for 
Grade 5 students to understand persuasive (a form of writing we study) in an authentic 
setting.  Examining our site, and proposing where trees would benefit our playground, 
and not interfere with open games areas, was a way to apply science and geography for 
a true purpose. 
 
We can only imagine the number of requests you must receive, and appreciate that our 
application was successful. 
 
Definitely the greatest joy for the students came on tree planting day.  The organization 
of the event by the SCRCA staff was amazing.  Students dug the holes and planted the 
trees.  The pride they have in themselves and the project and the environment is 
significant.  Being a contributor to our school and larger community is an important part 
of understanding character education. 
 
Through this project, students have seen the importance of their learning in a real life 
way. Thank you so much for the opportunity, and the success! 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Jim Brennan,  
Principal, Rosedale Public School 

A TDFEF recognition event was held at one of the participating schools. The event 
was attended by Liz Bujaki, Principal at Gregory Hogan Catholic School; Martina 
Jackson, Health Promoter with Lambton Public Health; Krista Campbell, TD Branch 
Manager; Joel Houle, TD Branch Manager; Steve Arnold, SCRCA Chair; Nicole 
Drumm, SCRCA Communications Technician; and a group of students participating in 
the Greener Schools program. 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 12.4 
Report Date: June 11, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated June 11, 2018 on the 
SCRCA’s participation at Sarnia Artwalk. 
 
Sarnia Artwalk 2018: 
 
On Saturday, June 3rd and Sunday June 4th, Christina Street in downtown Sarnia was 
closed to traffic to allow for the 16th annual Sarnia Artwalk. The event, which draws 
approximately 25,000 people to the downtown core, celebrates Sarnia’s arts and culture 
community. 
 
Once again, the SCRCA set up a booth displaying information on the services and 
programs we offer. This year, the display focused on our conservation areas and 
campgrounds along with Species at Risk. Kids and adults alike were drawn to our booth 
by the Eastern Foxsnake display and the chance to win a free camping weekend at one 
of our local parks. We also handed out pens and bags with the SCRCA logo along with 
pamphlets highlighting our campgrounds, conservation areas and stewardship 
programs.   
 
Despite the rain on Sunday, the event was a resounding success and provided us the 
opportunity to talk with and educate our local community on who we are as an 
organization and what we do to promote conservation. 
 

  
 

Donna Blue 
 
Sarnia Artwalk 2018 



 Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018     Item 12.5 
Report Date: June 11, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges the St. Clair River Area of Concern report 
dated June 11, 2018. 
 
Background: 
 
After receiving support for re-designation from the Canadian RAP Implementation 
Committee (CRIC) and the Bi-National Public Advisory Council (BPAC), and 
acknowledgment from Aamjiwnaang First Nation and Walpole Island First Nation, 
Status Assessment Reports for three Beneficial Use Impairments (BUIs) - “Bird or 
Animal Deformities or Reproductive Problems”, “Restrictions on Dredging” and “Beach 
Closings”, were posted on the Friends of the St. Clair River website for public comment 
for one month. One comment was received. The Status Assessment Reports have now 
been presented to federal and provincial government officials for re-designation 
consideration. If approved, these BUIs will be move from “Impaired” to “Not Impaired” 
status. 
 
Staff continue to draft the 2012 – 2017 Accomplishments Report. It is anticipated that 
the report will be complete by the end of summer. 
 

Kelly Johnson 

St. Clair River Area of Concern Update 



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 12.6 
Report Date: June 11, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges the Scholarship Program report dated June 
11, 2018. 
 
SCRCA Scholarship Program 2018: 
 
Applications for the St. Clair Region Conservation Authority (SCRCA) Scholarship 
Program were mailed to local high school principals and their department heads in 
February 2018. Four scholarships are available to graduating high school students who 
are pursuing post-secondary studies in an environmental field (e.g., biology, ecology, 
agriculture, etc.). Eligible students must live or attend a secondary school within the 
SCRCA boundary. 
 
This year, we received 5 applications. Applications were reviewed by a committee 
established by the St. Clair Region Conservation Foundation. The selection committee 
consisted of Steve Arnold, Archie Kerr, Brian McDougall and Donna Blue. The 
Foundation Board of Directors approved the recommended scholarship recipients at 
their meeting on June 7, 2018. 
 
All four scholarship recipients have demonstrated their interest and involvement in local 
environmental initiatives. The following awards will be presented in July. 
 
A.W. Campbell Memorial Scholarship - $1000 

Jared Newport, Lambton Kent Composite School, Dresden, Ontario 
Brandon Jordon, Wallaceburg District Secondary School, Wallaceburg, Ontario 

 
Tony Stranak Conservation Scholarship - $500 

Naomi Rosedale, Holy Cross Catholic Secondary School, Strathroy, Ontario 
 
Mary Jo Arnold Conservation Scholarship - $500 

Emily Smith, Great Lakes Secondary School, Sarnia, Ontario 

Donna Blue 
 
Scholarship Program 



Staff Report 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Meeting Date: June 28, 2018      Item 14.1 
Report Date: June 27, 2018 
Submitted by:  
 
Subject:   
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Board of Directors acknowledges the report dated June 27, 2018, regarding 
Restricted Acts (Section 275) of the Municipal Act, and endorses the proposed 2019 
budget development guidelines as presented and further approves a temporary 
increase in the General Manager’s signing Authority to $500,000 for the period from 
July 27, 2018 – December 1, 2018. 
 
Background:  
 
The Municipal Elections Modernization Act, 2016 outlined many changes that effect this 
fall’s municipal election as well as future elections. 
 
In 2018, one of the specific changes is the duration of the Restricted Acts or “Lame 
Duck” period for municipal councils and subsequently for Conservation Authority Boards 
based on the municipal council’s members that comprise many Boards. 
 
There are two potential Restricted Acts or “Lame Duck” periods as follows: 
1. Between July 27, 2018 to October 22, 2018 (Nomination Day to Election Day). 
2. Between October 23, 2018 and December 1, 2018 (The day after the election to the 
end of the term of Council). 
 
When is a Council in a “Lame Duck” Situation? 
A municipal council can be in a “Lame Duck” situation if it is determined that there is the 
potential or certainty that less than three-quarters (75%) of the existing council 
members will not be returning to office as determined on: 
1. Nomination Day – July 27, 2018 
2. Voting Day – October 22, 2018 
 
The Authority Board of Directors is comprised of 17 elected representatives and 3 
appointed representatives. Appointments for 2018 commenced at the 2018 Annual 
Meeting on February 22, 2018 and continue to the 2019 Annual Meeting scheduled for 
February 28, 2019.  
 
 
 
 
 

Brian McDougall 
 
Restricted Acts Period for Authority Board  



Staff Report 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Therefore, as of this date, as three members of the Board of Directors have confirmed 
that they are not seeking re-election this fall and as three members of the Board of 
Directors who have been nominated for the October 22 election and, if circumstances 
remain unchanged, will face opponents in the election, the Authority Board of Directors 
fall under the Restricted Acts or “Lame Duck” classification as of July 27, 2018 as less 
than 75% (a maximum of 14 out of 20, as of this date, equalling 70%) will be returning. 
 
What are the Restricted Acts (Section 275 (3)) of the Municipal Act? 
1. The appointment or removal from office of any officer of the municipality; 
2. The hiring or dismissal of any employee of the municipality; 
3. The disposition of any real or personal property of the municipality which has a value 
exceeding $50,000.00 at the time of disposal; and 
4. Making any expenditures or incurring any other liability, which exceeds $50,000.00. 
 
Act 4, as underlined above, is the only act that the Board of Directors would be in 
contravention of in the normal course of proceedings for the Authority Board. 
 
Funding applications, agreements and the Authority’s annual budget are believed to be 
the only traditional business exceeding $50,000.00 that would be transacted during the 
period from July 27, 2018 – December 1, 2018.  
 
Staff proposed to continue with the traditional budget process for the development and 
communication of the draft 2019 Budget, save endorsement of a set of guidelines to be 
used by staff in the preparation of the draft 2019 budget. 
 
The following guidelines have been drafted for the Board’s review and support: 
 
 Inflation: Annual Consumer Price Index for Ontario as per Statistics Canada 
 General Levy Increase: up to 5% 
 Interest Income Surplus directed to Reserves 
 Continue to adjust planning and regulation fees toward user pay system 
 Balance increased fees and general levy 

 
Further, in order to maintain business continuity, it is recommended that the Board of 
Directors delegate the General Manager to act on their behalf in submitting applications 
and executing agreements in the Authority’s best interest during the period from July 27 
– December 1, 2018. All actions undertaken under this temporary delegation will be 
reported to the Board of Directors, during the period of “Lame Duck”.  


	1 BD Jun 2018
	2. BD Jun 2018
	3.1 BD Jun 2018 amended
	4.1 BD Jun 2018
	4.2 BD Jun 2018
	4.2 BD Jun 2018
	4.2.1 BD Jun 2018

	4.3 BD Jun 2018
	4.4 BD Jun 2018
	4.4.1 BD Jun 2018
	4.4.2 BD Jun 2018
	4.5 BD Jun 2018
	5.1 BD Jun 2018
	6.1 BD Jun 2018
	7.1 BD Jun 2018
	7.2 BD Jun 2018
	7.3 BD Jun 2018
	7.4 BD Jun 2018
	8.1 BD Jun 2018
	8.2 BD Jun 2018
	8.3 BD Jun 2018
	9.1  BD Jun 2018
	9.2 BD Jun 2018
	10.1 BD Jun 2018
	10.2 BD Jun 2018
	10.3 BD Jun 2018
	10.4 BD Jun 2018
	11.1 BD Jun 2018
	Sheet1

	11.2  BD Jun 2018
	Sheet1

	11.3 BD Jun 2018
	glysum2018

	11.4 BD Jun 2018
	11.5 BD Jun 2018
	12.1. BD Jun 2018
	12.2 BD Jun 2018
	12.3 BD Jun 2018
	12.4 BD Jun 2018
	12.5 BD Jun 2018
	12.6 BD Jun 2018
	14.1 BD Jun 2018



